CRHARTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, NG AND AFFLIATES
MNOTES 7O COMBOLID ATFD FINAMCISE STATEMENTS
Dacamber 31 2023 aryl 2022

MOTE 11 - LOMG-TERM DEBT

A sumynary of long-term debit any capital leaeq obilgabong 55 of Desermbior 31 @ as foliows:

2622 20322
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Commntanal iz oan, with Reqionz Barik, commanoing
May 2023, secdrad by cedain assats of CHS, principal
maliring in vaning amauns, intarsst payabie =11.75%%
plits gria-morth simols SOFR (5.41% at Decernbar 31,
25273} due dhsough May 2077

3 036 38‘:1 24428800
cesa ouregnt podicr of loog-term debt (2000848 {1,382 300
iess unametized debt issuanco cosls {B3,566) {33340

5 27372177

Tha agreement undadying the bnrd msues and the 2017 Taxable Loan as gescribed above werag modifier
in day 24623 to change the Obligated Oroup. The Chligated Group aow includes Chaplars Seair Paliative
Cara, LLL, Chaptars Aeaiin Pr‘:r?nﬂ(‘y, LLZ, Chaplers Health Btaling, 110, Chaplars Heallh Home
Cormnect, Ine., Hesolos of Dreachobea, and Cornarstoes Heelth Services, LLC, The addition wasz to ado
Comersionea

The agrsermants undarlying the pond ssuss: ang the 2097 Taxable Loan dascribed atove contain
cevananis that provided for, 2mong other things, tha mainienance of certain ralios, condgiiicns for issuance
of adefiona indebtednass and the transferapiilly of funds, At Decamber 34, 20273, CHS was oud of
compliance with cerfain finarcial covenants. CHS obtained a waivar fom the financial ingtitulion
subsenlcn! to year and. The Series 2217 Bong and 2017 Takable Loan ars sgaurad Under 4 Master Trust
indgentura and Supplernaniel indemivres and are colalersized by pladasd revenuss, ali rights, titles,
mieresls and esiates in and o aif real gicnerty and the revenus fund az outlined it tha agreements,
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, IND. AND AFFILIATES
NOTEE TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decamber 31, 2023 gl 2022

werm Gf .jae related :ul.gatwr‘.. n Gonjmcllm. wtin :h«a muanca of the Serfas 2017 Band, 2017 Taxable
Loan, 2023 Tarm Lear, and 2023 Revolve:, (RS racorded debt issuanca crsts of approximaialy $185 000

"‘“ar’o*hed dsbt ssuaree cosis as of Decemnber 31, 2023 and 2022, was awroxprra.cif $463.000 and

$333.000, raspectively, and is included i the non-aurrent ponticn of long-tesm debt in the accompanying
caﬁbo ligted balances sfeels  Amortizafion expense was opproximarely $60.600 for the yaars grded
Decermbar 31, 2023 and 2028 and |s inciudad in inkerest in e aocormpanying consolidated statomants of
aperationg,

Dbt Malurities: Matuiitiss of long-tevm deti and capeat lsase abligations are as follows:

Series 2017 & 2023
Bonds & Ltoans

2024 $ 2,200,648
MIPE ¢: LB‘:I,S?D?
2028 2,367,453
2027 5,028,087
2008 4,795,400
Theraafior 18802451

¥ .._3003¢ %89

Inlgres! Rale | SIonanis CHS uliizes interest ralo swap egroomanis 16 medify CHS's sxprsurs o
intevest rate riak by f‘nﬁve*ﬂrg a porion of ile variable rate orrowings (o a Fxad-rate bass, this raducing
the Impact of intergarate charges on futum intarast axpenss, The 2 agrasmants involva the receipr of
variabio-rate payments amounts 'n excharge for fxedeae iiterast nayments aver the hfe of the
agreemants withGui an exohange of tha dndarying principte amaant, In f*mJLu*r.Jon wilh tha Series 2017
Baond and 2ah Taxablig Loan, in Margh 2017, CHS entersd into wo indares! -ate swap agrasments with
Repiors Bank to convert 3 portms, of 1g variable-rats borowings to 4 fixad-rale basis These swap
agrasmeants matured o Aprl 4, 2024,

CHS pays a fixat rate of 1.45% and receivas a varanie-rale payment hased an 7% of S0FR for ons swap
and pays a fixad raie of 2.182% and receives & varakle-rate payinent based on SOEX for the oiher sSwWap.
Al December 31, 2023 and 2022, the ncticnal amount of these swap agrecnents otaled approximatety
£22.876.000 and $24 48¢ 000, respactivsly.

MOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

CHS spuisers noncentibutory suppiemental executive refirement plans {SERP) jor a select grogn of
maragerment or highly compersatad smployees. The pians cal for benefits to be fard in 8 lurp s
amtount on the 457 day ‘oliowing seperation kom service ax long as the participant has attained the vasiing
dates for empivyer-corcibued amoeunts. Emplovee-conributag amounte may be distributad basad on o
list of optinns provided in the plans.

{Continued)



THAPTER= HEALTH 3YSTEM, INC. AMD AFFILIATES
NCTES 70 SONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Decernzer 31, 2023 and 2822

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE RENEFIT PLANS (Sondnusd)

Digiribalions wqual o 100% of the ameurt credited o the pardigipgni's aocount will be made to the
nodticipant or boneficary if the even: of total and poonanent disakility, deats termination due o change n
the control of e ampioyer or temmiration without s2ige prior to the veating date. Tota) assels beld o fund
tha Hubilily and wmial accrued labiliies w0 the plans were appeaximately $2,117,000 and $1.851 600
Decesnber 31, 2023 and 2022, respactively and are included in othar assets andt othar Inng-term lizbiities
in the accompanying comsolidgier] taizncs shoets.

CHS, in its sole disoretion, may at cny time make addiinonal depnsis of cash or other property in Yusi with
the plans trustee to augmsnt tha principle to be held, sdministerad, and disposed of by the Plans’ ristas
as providec in the bust agreement, Expenses reisted o these plans wess approximataly 31,021 0800 and
BER7 DN faw the vears ended Dacember 31, 2023 and 2022 respactively

CES has sstalishad a aliremnent olan under Soctien 443(0} of the internal Revenues Cods whereby sligibis
smployers may elact to dafar a poshon of thair salary. The plan ailows smployass to maie deposits (o seif-
directed savings accoums ihrough payradi deductions. CHS has the eption 10 make dscalionary
nangiestive contibutions for aligibia participating erployaes, as wall as matching sontributons ased Lpon
the amount of sligibla compensation sonaibutad by the eraloyes up to carten spaciiied mitations,
Employass vestin the amploysr discratinnary nanslestive corliibullens and matching contribuiion aver a
sheyaar period. Farficpants’ forfeliuras ave used o offset CTHS's fulure plan contribudions,  Employar
Lontrnutions io he pisn were approvimalaly 52,247,007 ang $1.820,000 for the yoars shdueg Deceinbear 31,
2023 and 2022, respectivery.

Caomerstane nas esiablished a retiramont olan under Section 4036 of ine Intarnal Revenue Gnde whsreby
sligivle emntoyaes may aioct o defer a portion of thair salary. The plen allows empioyess to make depasits
Y seifadiractee savings aceounts through payeoll deductions. CHS hias the option 1o make discrationary
noneiactive conlnibutions or ahgibie participating empisvees, 55 well a8 matchng contributicons based upon
ihe amount of eligible compensation coptribisted by the emaloyes up o cerals spacifisd limitations.
Employees st norvsliy work 0 8xeess of wonly hours 8 week o participate in the plan and over 1,000
heurg 8 vear to vast in the employar's contribution. Employer conlribittions {o the pian wera apprazimataly
5234 000 for the seried of Agrt 1, 2022 thrmugh Decembear 31, 2022 and aie noluded in #alaries and
Benahts o0 ihe sonsolidated slaloments of aperations. Cornerstong migrated 2o the OHS plan on Deichan 1,
2027,

HMope has esiobiished 3 retirerment slans under Jection 403(k) of the internal Revanue Cnde whereny
aligibie empicyees may elect 1o dafer a partion of thair salany. Two of the plans only allow for enpicyes
centributions. Hope does nol contrlbute 1o eithss of thosa two plana, The third glan is a retirement plan
sinler Section 4035} of the Internal Rovenue Code in which siigitle employees who are a¢ leas: 21 yasrs
of aye and have oe year of service. This retiremant plan is solety furded by Heopa, at the discretion af the
board of direvlors and & deferminec annually. Employer conivioulicns (o the pian weie appraximately
F798 060 far the penod of Marsh 1, 20273 thraagh Denamber 41 2028 and are included ic salares and
henefits on the consoiidated statemants of nperations.

Capital Casiny has «stabiishad a retiroment pian uncer Sectior 403bY of the Internai Revanue Code
whershy eligitle empioyess may alact to daier 2 porien of their salary. Capitat Caring matches smployes
contibutions dollar for dollar up to 1% of each efigible empioyse’s salary. Employar contrloutions o the
plan ward approsamataly $158.000 for the pericd of May 1, 2073 through lanerber 31, 2023, and ane
inchudied in safaries and Lanelts on the consclidaled statements of operations

(Continued)



CHAPTERS HAEALTH SYSTEM, (NG, AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dztember 31, 2023 and 2022

ROTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Comerstone Foundation was establisned o exclusively foster, promote, support, dovelop, ant sneourege
the functions of GComerstone. U5 GAAP requires Comerstone to recognize &g an asset ds niorest in the
ret agsels of Comarstone Foundalion, and to refloct in its changas in nes as=eis te changes in the net
assets of Cornarstons Fonndaiian, Total net assets held by the Foundation as of Cocember 31, 2023 and
2022 amounted 10 57925 500 and $8. 597 S8R5, raapactvely, and are classifiad as inizrest in net assis of
Caomersions Founcation on the consolidaied bafance sheels and with denoe restriciions by Cornarstone
because Comerstone does net canirad the fiming or amount of e coniributions made by Uamerstono
Faundation. Tha change in bunefcial interest in the nat assets of Comerstone Foundation is recordec
wlthin the consolidated staternents of operatians within the changes in net 2ssals with donor rastrictions.

During the pedod enced Decomber 31, 2073 and 2022, Cornersiona Foundation made grants o
Garmarstone totaling approximataly 31,500 0060 ard $3,619,309, respactivisy  provide funsting for certain
programs of Comerzione. Cornersione Foundation owsd Cornaerstons $538.633 and 51,492,303 ai
Decambaer 3%, 2023 ard 2072, respeciively. for operating axpanees paid on Cornesstons Frindation’s
Rettail and unpald granis o Cornarstona. Such amownts are recorded as due from mlated paely in the
sonsoitdatad batance sheels at Decgmber 31, 2023 and 2022,

MOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lilgation. During the normsl gourse of business. THS may He subiact in vancys treatensd or assatted
claims relatad to profassionsd sabifity . employrment o othar matiers. CHI maintaing Corynercia: insurancs
an a claims-made basis for medical malpraciice, 85 wal as other comraaicial insurance 1o cover ganaral
lfabliities. Managerment is not aware of any thwsatened claims thet ars nat cove<ed by iIs risk managemant
pregrams O that, i the avent of an adverse outonme, woula Fave a significant impact on the financia;

pesition of CHS,

Venrkars  urmpensg SHE maeniaing workers' pompensastion insuranae through o captive insuranc
orpany. ACCruglia 'fi.‘li‘ wwker:; compensation ciaims have been ,h,frmamd oy 1 Tﬂnaqafrom bagel UJOi"
f03s runz and olains data provided by Mg insurarce company, Eslimated acoruais for weorkers'
componsation clams folaied apprmtnmm{y 51299000 and §47372.000 afl Decamber 3% 2023 and 2020,
respeclively, and are incluged #n ascrosd snmployee compensation and related bensefits in the
ALCombANYing consolidsiad halanse shacts,

MOTE 15 - SELF-FUNDED (NSURANCE

Employes Health losurance: CHE is salf inaured for empioyes Aeslts care to piovide medical ard ormer
healih care benefils lu eligible emplayees anc coverad dependenis. Reinsurance, coveiing cosis abuve
$200.000, for years enced Devember 31, 2023 and 2022, per individual is maintained through a nommersial
£XCess COVRraqe policy  Estimated ascruals for alaims incurred but not yel reported tolaled approximatzly
$2,082,000 and $1,420,000 at Cecombar 31, 2021 and 2022, respactively, and are noluded in accrued
ampioyes compensaton and retatord banefis in tho acocinpainying consofidaled balsnce shsets, Tha
estimate of the labilty for unassertad ciaims ansing from fheurrec but ot reporied olaims is based on an
analysis of historival claims ¢ata. CHS incumed approximately $20,819.000 and $10.815.040 in anpansa
ritated to seif-insured smployes oaith banetits i the Lqﬁ"zomprsnyns]g vonsoiidaied sintements of nporatinns
during the years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2022 respectivaly.

{Continued)



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYS3TEM, INC AND AFFILATES
NOTES TO CONMSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Diocamber 31 2023 and 20232

NOTE 13 - SELF-FUNDED INSURAMCE (Continued)

Camerstone was seli-insured for a perfion of enpicyes heaith benofits ang nvgrated o SHE' plan in
Cotpba- 2075 Fatimated] acoruals or claims incurred bt nal yel reporied totaled approximately $580,000
ai Decemnber 31, 2022 and are inciuded in ascrued employes compensation anid reigiad benefits in he
accampanying cansolidated batanece sheels. The eslimate of she fiabiity for unasseried dlaims arising from
reurmed Lul aol isporied oiaims is based on an analysis o Nistorionl claims data. Carnersrone incurred
aporoxirnately 33,370 000 0 expensa related to soff insured employes heafln banefhs in the acoompanying
censolidaten stotemenis of aperations during the pened of Aprdl 1 through December 31, 2022

Capitat Caring is seff-irsurad for crmooyes health saie o provide medical and othear health care benefits v
clpiole employees a7 coveres depandents. Estimated aceruafs for ciaims incunad but not yet reporied
wigled spproximately 8722 000 #t Decemnber 37 2023 and are inciuded in accrued amgloyes
rompeasatisn and isiated heraflls in the ascompanying sonsotidated balance sheels, The sstimate of the
Hahllity for unasseried claims arlsing from fecurrad but not reported ciaims ’s based on an analvsis of
historical claims dala. Capiial Carng inclrrad aporoximately 3,179,000 in expanse ralated o seif-nsures
smployas health banafits in the accompanying consolidates staterments of operaiens distng the perod of
May 1, 2023 through Decemper 31, 2023,

HOTE 16 - LIABILITY FOR UNMPAID CLAIMS

Madicat claims axpense and the labilily for unpaid claims includa eslimates of CHS obligaions for mecies!
sare services hal havs been renderad by ihird parties on hehaif of msurad consumars for whigh the OHE
13 cantiactualiy obligated 10 pay (throudh the THS' captation arrangsrments), but for which claims have
giher nol vel been rsceived, processtdd, or paid. CHé davelops sstimates for medizal care services
i ourad hut not repored (SBNRY, which includes estimates for ciaims thal have not bsan received or fuily
n-ocassed, uliizing actuanal madels CHS recorded # fabilily for accrued third-perly nmedical expense
cigims of aparaemataiy 52,483,000 and §1.613,000 at Dacember 31, 2023 and 202Z. rospectivaly.

CHS purchases providsar excess nsdranve o piciect egainst significant, salastiophic cianms sxpenses
‘roured on hehalf of s patients. The tofat amourt of provider e<cess insurance premiums was $4,065.215
ane $440 806 for ihe years anded December 31, 2023 and 2022, respechvely.  The provider ovcess
raUrAnCe promiums less reimbursaments are mporisd in medicat claims expense in the consofidaled
statements of opsratons, Recoveries due are inciuded in capitaed sccounts receivahiz inthe consolidalied
nalance sheats. CHE provider zxeess insurance deducthia for the plan wis $17.52 and B17.70 per
mamber ger manth for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2622, respectively.

{Cortinuad)



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTER NG, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLISATED FiMAMTIAL STATEMENTS
Cacambar 31, 2023 angd 20672

MOTE {7 - MET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Mgt gasets with donor restrictions are availabls for e fellow.ng oursoses ot Decomber 31

2023 2022

densefloial intarast in tha net asaets of Sornerstone

Faundation % 7,925,500 F B, 993,965
Epyp the oparatiors of LiiePath Hosnire 4178796 3,195, 461
ror tha eparations of Good Shepherd Hospice 2,284,723 2,187,307
For the enerations of Hemando-Pagce Huspice 5805032 732,700
Forthe operations of Capiial Cafng Hospice 3,492 353 -
Fer the operat:ons of Hope Haaithcira 223584 :
Endowmsnt -~ LifePati Hospice Bad 808 544 605
Endowment -~ Good Shepherd Hospice 164,984 166,994
Esdovmert -~ Capital Carlag 2.481,514 -
For iha oparations of Chasters Health Fourdation I 1 Tt ALY, 769

£ 237246 % 14,428 801

MOTE 1B - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

L.5. CAAR deiines fair value as the price thal would be received 107 gn aseel or oaid b rarsfsr 2 habiity
{an exit orles) In the GHS's prnciple of most advaniageows market oy e assal or takdly i ah ordeny
transaction batwean markel garthtipanis on tha measursmeant date. The fair vaiue hiarsrahy raglives an
gy 0 maximiza e uze of observabie npuis and minimize the ase of unobsevably inpuls wien
FraaEsuing far vakle, Thecs e threa lsvels of inputs thad ray ne vsad e measurs Tair valus as foliows:

Levet 11 Guolad prioes for identical agssts or Gubiilies in activa markels that tha anlity has the
ahilily to acoess a3 of the measurament dsla. The far valses of cash and cash aquiva.ensls, money
markat funds, mutual funds, equily securidies, and roal estate funds are detarmined by obtaining
quated prices on nationally racegnized sectritiay exchorgos.

Lavs! 2. Significent other ozservabla inpuis alher than Lavel t prices such as quoted prices for
simvlar asseis or fabilities; gueied oricos in markets that ars ha! active: or other inpais tvat are
abservable or van be corrcboraied by obsonvahle market data. “he fair values of GHS'c
goverminent debi securities and compuorate bonds ere delormined By mabix priving, a market
method, which i3 & mathematical teshrique widely used in the induslry o value delt seouritios
without relying exciusively on gucted prices fur the specific securiies bul rather by rabing o te
sacuriiies’ restonstip 1o other henchmark quoted securites.  CHS's derivaiives, which arg
comprisad of Lo inlerest rate swop aareemacts, are slse reperied at fairvalue using Lovel 2 inputs.
CHE opblained the fair value frem a flaancial insthition which utilizes ailemal madals with
sbuervable market data inputs ta estimate 1he valug of this instrument imarkat apgroach valuation
terhnigus].

{Continued)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, ING. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CORSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS

Dacembei 31, 2023 and 2522

HOTE 48 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contrved)

Level 3 Significani unobsen/able inputs that reflect a saporting antifty’s own assumplions about the
The trtarest in net

assumptions that market pRticipants wadd use in pricing &= assel ar fabildy.

dssets of Camaerstone Foundaiion is basad on the underlying asseis of Goernarsicne Foundation,
which zre not redeemabls upen request by Comerstone or GHS. The inierest i net assels of
Comerstonz Foundation iz largely composed of uncarfving qivasirments that have abservabis
inputs and markat activity ziicwing for pricing basad op the marked prices of the itemhs it the

invesimants (maks! appronch valuation tachnigue).

1 many cases, a valualion teshnigue usad o measurs ialr value includes Inputs froem muitizle levals of the
f2ir value hisrdrchy. The iowast level of signdicant input determmines tha placemant of tha entire fzir vaius

meassremant in tha baracohy.

The following tables prasent e financial Insitumens camied & fair valva on & recuricg basis as of

Dgcerrber 31, 2023 ane! 2022, by valudtion heerarchy, ali of which wera Dased on tha markat approach

which uges oiices ard other -elavant informaiion censsaled by markel transsciions invoiving lgentizai o

comparable assafs.

Assats and lishiittes maasured on a moursng basis are as folows:

Assais
Asoels limitod o5 0 uso;
Cash and cash soahatels
kMoney markst funas
futual funds
Total assets (imiled a5 io use

Investments

Srd Vil A

Ling! 1 L

5 562930 5 - &

3 6EEe.sr
LEh3.585
1864123

10,447,488

ash and cosh squivaigris 859,729 - . 255,729
tMorey market funds 3,202,305 - 3252303
U& govomment agenaiss - 1,827 55% TRETASG
Corparate bonds : g1 281 G5y 20
Eailnby mutuad funds [ E Rt Ve Yk
Bond mutuai funds 5802 173 S 802 623
Commodities rmufual Ands 1432430 - 1,427,439
Faa estale fund 1G 175 a4 - - 15,175,034
Equily secuntics BRI L 1at.ald
Total vestments 108,764 563 2518840 - 109,283,705
mteresi rala swap agreoments e ade, 80 L | EEREEY
nieres{ in nef asseis of
Cornerstong roundation e e 7.025,000 7,325, 004
Total asseis $1147,292352 §  2B80168R2 § 7025800 § 127933514
{Conlinued;
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTERL NG, AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANMTIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 20723 apd 2022

Fa.r Value Measurement sl Docombar 34, 2022

- Rilidhicl I: ?i,s_!:g.ﬂ__ e Iﬂ_d_i—
fgagty
Assais Fmited 83 to ase:
Easn and cash squivalarts 4 345284 % 5 - B B457 644
Money market fnds
besteat fpds O RA2R28E B ) o
Tokal assets imitad a3 1o use
[vastigenis
Cash and cash equivaisnls 1,780 247 - - +.7HC, 247
Mirsy marks?! funds 7,420,132 - - TAZG 132
LS guaernment zgancies - G73813 - 573,813
{omporate boeds - 258 390 - 258,340
By miutual Lnss TLOGN 847 : 7005 207

Berd muisat funds b Tl ] - - 8,818,880
Commadisias mutuar funds 1509 074 - - 1,800 474
Fool estae fund 243 147
Equity sacuriiies 89545 941

Totat invesinents o B S R A G
Irteroet rata sweap sgiecmonis - I 5?838?
iniergst 0 ael asswes of
Comersione Fowndziion § & - i
Tota assals £ 105 S s, 3.107,376.665

A raconcifiation of heginning and anding balenees or Orgamization's fay valte maasuameants using Lavel
3 Inputs ia e follows:

interest in Mast
Maaaty of
Comerstone Foumda

Assels al camary 1, 2023 F £.993 4985
Change i interest in net assets of
Comeisione Foungation

Asaets &1 Decermber 31, 2022 i 73

[Cantinuad)

34,



CHAPTENRS HEALTH SYSTER NG AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO COMSOUDATED FINANCISL. STATERENTS
Necember 31 2023 and 2027

NOTE 1% - FUMCTIHOMAL EXPEMSES

Tha corsolidaiod financial stalcmenis report censin categarias of cxpenses thad are atiributabls 1 more
than orc program of sypporting function. Therefore, thesa cipanses require aiipcation on a roasonabis
dasiz that s consistantly applied. The exgenses that are ailocated fnclude depreciation, miaresl, and
wocupany. which are cilocated on a zquare-foclawge basis, as well as salaries ana berefits, which ars
alizeated on the basis of estimates of Fme and offort.

Total
Frogram Management Expensas
Year ended Devember 31, 2023 Sendess and General  Fundraising 2023

Sa'aries and bengfits 3 200 828 441 0,663 622 & 5708117 ¥341 885176
Purchased servces 49,735,195 1,184 37 e asy 45 850 EoG
Durabde medica| anquiomant,

=3

supplies and dnugs SHE Y F32,032 3707842
Medical ciaims axpense d5 wETV FA3.0m1 33,852 By/
raurance and othar $EEY 1 1083,302 -::G 212,040
Diegreciabion and amort!zalicn EE T b-f-ﬂ 2201, 48% 217,823 14,663 944
Interost 2484 544 a7 39,671 2 ERG 1ha
Afibatiun expenses N - BRI - 1,188,522

$ dﬁ" 473,972 3 IE 0,9 93_ 3 G419.649

Fragradti Managernant
ans Geperal
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CHAPTERS HEALTH BYSTEM, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CELGATED GROUP STATEMENT OF GRERATIONS
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. AMD AFFILAIES
MOTE TO SONSOUIDATING FINANTIAL STATEMENTS
Yeas anded December 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - COMBOLDATIMNG DETAIL

Tre socompanying consofideiing belance shest and consolidating siaterrent of operslinns refleat the
finercial positicn and operztions and changes in not assets of Chaplers Hzalth Jyslermn, Inc. (GG} ang
is major oseratng znfities. The amounts noluded in CHUd are comprisad of CHNU, Agsurity Dirzet

Contracting Entity, inc., ard glimination: belwsan the wo companias.

The amsurs inciudad in sther within the Obfigated Growp innludes: Chaptars Mealth Palliative Care LLC,
Ghaplers Mealth Pharmasy, LLC, Chapters Heaith Staffing, LL32, Chaprers Health Home Connect, inc.,

ire

Hoapice of Okaachicbae, and Comearsione Health Services, LLE,

The amounts included i Capitet Carlng includss: Capital Caring Healih and Capital Hozplos.

Tha amounts Includad in other that am not in the Obligaled Group are camptsed of Alicare Meadicat of
Florlda, Care Patners, LLG, Achigve Mome Carg, |LLC, Caplizl Canng Haalth, Capital Paliiative Cara
Consglaata, Capital Carng Stey at Homa Sarvices, livs., and Caplal Carng Advancad linass Senvicas,
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
Division of Corporations

January 11, 2022

CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY

Re: Document Number 783935

The Articles of Amendment to the Articles of incorporation of CHAPTERS HEALTH
SYSTEM, INC., a Florida corporation, were filed on January 10, 2022.

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, piease telephone (850} 245-
6050, the Amendment Filing Section.

Irene Albritton

Regulatory Specialist 1l
Division of Corporations Lefter Number: 622A00000783

Account number: 120000000195 Amount charged: 35.00

www.sunbiz.org

Division of Corporations - P.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314



SECOND ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
fo
THIRD RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORFPORATION
of
CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 617.1001, 617.1002 and 617.1006 of the Florida
Statutes, Chapters Health System, Inc., a Florida not for profil corporation, hereby adopts the
following amendments to its Third Restated Articles of Incorporation (the “Articles of
Incorporatien” or “Articles”}, to be effective upon {iling;

1. Name of Corporation. ‘ihe name of the corporation is Chapters Health System. Inc. {the
“Corporation”).
2. Text of Amendments.

FIRST: Article I of the Articles of Incorporation is hereby deleted in its enfirety and
replaced with the following;:

ARTICLET
Name and Address

The name of the Corporation is Chapters ITealth System, Inc. (the
“Corperation”). The principal office address of the Corporation is 12470 Telecom
Drive, Suite 301, Temple Terrace, Florida 33637,

SECOND: Article ITI of the Articles of Incorporation is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:

ARTICLE IH

Purposes

The Corporation is a not for profit corporation that is (i) organized
exclusively for charitable, religious, edu cational, and scienfific purposes,
including, for such purposes, the making of distributions lo organizations that
gualify as exempt organizations under Section S0T{c}{3} of the Internal Revenue
Code, as amencded, or the corresponding section of any future lederal tax code



(the “Cede”), (i1} established, organized and operated in accordance with Section
S01{e)(3) of the Code; (iii} incorporated under the Florida Not For Profit
Corporation Actk; and, (iv) organized and operated exclusively for the beneftt of,
to porform the functions of, or to carry out the tax-exempt purposcs and missions
of LifePath Hospice, Inc., Good Shepherd Hospice, Inc., Hernando-Pasco
Haspice, Inc., Hospice of Okeechobee, Incorporated and Chapters Health Home
Connecl, Inc., each an organization described in Section 501{c){3) and classified
as a public charity under Seetion 509(a)(2) of the Code {collectively, the
“Supported Organizations™), for so long as the Supperted Organizations qualily
as aorganizations described in Section 301{c){3) of the Code and classified as pubic
charities under Section 50%(a)(2) of the Code. Inconnection with its relationship
with the Supported Organizations, no less than a majority of the directors of the
Corporation must also be persons who are directors of the Supported
Organizations. The Corporation is also authorized to perform any lawful act or
activity for which corporations not-for-profit may be tormed under the Florida
Not For Profit Corporation Act, including, without limitation:

1. To own, Tease, establish, support, manage or fuenish, directly ar
indirectly, any assel, facility, single-member limited liability company (the
single-member of which shall be the Corparation) or service for the support and
care of persons with or affected by advanced illness,

2. To promote the philosophy that the quality of lite is important
and that life should be lived to its fullest exient by those persons with or alfected
by advanced illness.

a To promote understanding of the needs of persons with or

aftected by advanced illness.

4. To obtain public involvement and support by disseminafing the
alms, purposes and activities of the Supported Organizations, this Corporation
and its single member limited liability companics to the general public.

3, To solicit, raise and receive funds and endowments for the
purpose of carrving out the purposcs of the Corporation.

6. To operate without regard to race, creed, age, sex, religion or
national origin.

7. Tao do all other tasks, including the conducting of all activities,
necessary, snitable, convenient, useful or expedient in connection with, or
incidental o, the accomplishment ol any of the purposes set forth herein to the
full extent permiticd by the laws of the sovercign State of Florida,



Restrictions. Netwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles to
the contrary, the Corporation shall not have or exercise any power which would
cause it not to qualify as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 501(c){(3) or
509{a)(3) of the Code; nor shall the Corporation engage directly or indirectly in
any activity which would cause the loss of such qualification.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles 1o the contrary, the
Corporation shall not pay dividends and no part of the net earnings, current or
accumulated, or property of the Corporation, shallinure to the benefit of, o1 be
distributed to, the Corporation's members, directors, officers or other private
petsons, except that the Corporafion may pay compensation in a reasonable
amount fo its members, diteclors, or officers for services rendered, may confer
benefits upon its members in conformity with the Corporation’s purposes so long
as such members are qualifying exempt organizations under Section 301{<)(3) of
the Code at the time of conferring such benefits, and upon dissolution, final
liquidation or partial liquidation, may make distributions to ifs qualifving
members to the extent permitted by these Articles of Incorporation and
applicable law.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Arlicles to the contrary, no
substantial part of the activities of the Corperation shall be carrying on of
propaganda, or otherwise altempting to influence legislation.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary, the
Corporation shall not participate in, or jntervene in {including the publishing or
distribution of statcments) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for
public office.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary, the
Corporation shall not be controlled directly or indirectly by one or more
disqualified persons (as defined in Section 4946 of the Code) other than
foundation managers and other than one or more organizations described in
Sections 5309(a)(1) or 509(a)(2} of the Code,

THIRD: Article IV of the Articles of Incorporation is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the {ollowing:



ARTICLE IV

Registered Aeend and Office Address

The Registered Agent for this Corporation is Andrew K. Molosky. The
Registered Office address for this Corporation is 12470 Telecom Drive, Suite 301
Temple Terrace, Florida 33637,

FOURTH: Article V of the Articles of Tncorporation is hercby deleted in its entivety and
replaced with the following:

ARTICLEVY

Managemoent
The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Dircctors,
The number of directors, election and terms of office shall be determined by the
By-Laws of the corporation. An clected Director may be removed from the
Board of Dircctors for cause at any BEme by a majority vote of all Directors then
entitled to vote. An elected 1Mrector may be rtemoved from the Board without
cause at any time by a vote of two-thirds of the Directors then entitled to vote.

3. Date and Manner of Adoption. There are no members or members entitled o vole on
these Articles of Amendment. These Articles of Amendment were approved by the

Corporation’s Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting held on December 7,
2021 at which a quornm of directors was present, to be effective upon filing. The
number of votes cast n favor of approval of these Articles of Amendment was sufficient
for approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, Lhe President of the Corporafion has executed these
Second Arficles of Amendment to Third Restated Articles of Incorperation on this 7th day of
Becember, 2021, to be cffoctive upon Fling.

CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.

Andrew K, Molosky, President/CEQ
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THIRD RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
nf
CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC,

(A Corperation Nof for Profit)

These Third Restated Articles of Incorporation vestate the original provisions of
the Second Restated Articles of Incorporation of Chapters Health System, Ine,, fk/a HPC
Healthcare, Ine, fkfa LifePalh Elospice and Talliative Care, Inc., (fk/a LifePath, Toc., f/k/a
Hospice of Hillsborough, Incorporated, filed on May 1, 2008, as amendad on January 24,
201 &, May 25, 2001 and June 1, 2011, and as amended by the Articles of Restatement

dated November 27, 2012, to be elfechive as of December 17, 2012,

ARTICLE1
Name and Address
The name of tha Corporation is Chapters Health System, Ing, {the Corporatien™),

The principal effice address of the Corporation is 12470 Telecom Thive, Suite 300 West,

Temple Yerrace, Florida 33637

ARTICLEII

FTerm of Existence

This not for profit corparation shali have perpelual existence,

ARTICLE 111
Purposcs
‘The Corporalion is a not for prefit earporation that is (i} orgavized exclusively
tor charitable, religious, cducational, and scientific purposcs, including, for such
purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt

organizations under Section 5301(c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, or the



corresponding scetion of any future federal lax code (the “Code”), (i) established,
organized and operated i accordance with Section S01{c)(3) of the Code; (i)
incorporated under the Florida Not For rafit Corporatien Act; and, (iv) organized and
operated exclusively for the benefit of, 1o perforn: the funclions of, or to carry out the
tax-exempt purposes and missions of LifePath Hospice, Ine, Good Shepherd Hospice,
Inc., and Chapters Iealth Senior Independence, Inc., each an organization deseribee in
Section 501{c)(3) and classified as a public charity under Section 509{a)(2) of the Code
(collectively, the “Supported Organizations”), {or so long as the Supported
Organizations gualily as organizations desgeribed in Section 301Ec)(3) of the Cade and
classified as pubte charities under Section 509%(a}(2) of the Code. In ronnection with iis
relationship with the Supporled Organizations, ne less than a majority of fhe directors ol
the Corporation must also be persons who are divectors of the Supported Organizations.
The Corporation Is also authorized to perform any lawtul act or activity for which
rorparations not-for-profit may be formed under the Florida Not For redit Corpuration
Act, including, without limitation:

i. To own, lease, establish, support, manage or furnish, divectly or
indiwectly, any asset, facility, single member Himited liability company (the singbe-
member of which shall be the Corporation) ov service for the support and cave of
persons with or affecled by advanced illaess.

2. Ta promote the phitosophy that the quality of life is imporiant and that
lile should be lived to its fullest extent by those persons with or affected by advanced
illness.

3. To promote understanding of the needs of persons with or uffectoed by
advanced itlness.

4, To oblain public involvement and support by disseminating the aims,
purposes and activitics of the Supperted Organizations, this Corperation and its single
member Jhnited liability companies to the general public,

3 To solicit, raise and receive funds and endowmants for the purpose of

carrying out the purposes of the Corporation.

28]



. To operate without regard to race, creed, age, sex, religion or national
arigin.

7. To doall other tasks, including the conducting of all activities, necessary,
suitable, conveniont, useciul ar expedient in cornection with, ov incidental to, the
accomplishment of any of the purposes set forth herein to the full extent permitted by

tha laws of the sovereipn State of Florida,

Restrictions. Motwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles to Lhe
contrary, the Corporation shall not have or exercise any power which would cause it not
to qualify as a tax-cxempt organization uader Sections 5G1(c3(3) o 308(a)(3) of the Code;
nor shall the Corporation engage directly or indirectly in any activity which would
cause the loss of such qualificalion,

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary, the
Corporation shall not pay dividends and no patt of the net earnings, current or
accwitulated, or property of the Corporation, shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributed 1o, the Corporatien's members, diveclors, officers or other private persons,
except that the Corporation may payv compensalion in a teasonable amoun! to its
miembers, ditectors, or officers [or services rendered, may confer benefits upol its
members in conforaity with the Corporation’s purposes so long as suclh members are
qualifying exemipt organizations under Section 301(c){3) of the Code al the line of
canterring such benekits, and upav dissolution, final fiquidation or partial liquidation,
may make dislributions to its qualilying menbers (o the extent permilted by these
Artivles of Tncorporation and applicable law,

MNotwithslandmg any other provision of these Articles to the coittrary, no
subslantial parl of the activities of the Carporation shall be carrying on of propaganda,
or otherwise atlemipting (o influence legislation,

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Acticles to the contrary, the
Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing ar
dlisteibution of stalements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public

wiiice.



Notswithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary, the
Corparatien shall not be eontrolled divectly or indivectly by one or mowe disqualitiod
persons (as defined in Section 4946 of the Code) other than faundation manugers
and other than one or nore organizations described in Scotions 500N 1) or H09(a)(2)

of the Code.

ARTICLE IV

Registered Agent and Office Adduess
Lhe Registered Agent for this corporalion is Kathy 1., Fernandez, The Registered
Office address for this corporation is 12470 Telecarn Drive, Suite 300 West, Temple

Terrace, Florida 33637,

ARTICLEV
Maonagament
‘The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors.
Number of membears, election and tenns of office shall be delermined by the By-Laws of
the corporation, Any mwember of the Board of Directors may be removed by at least a
two-thirds majority vote of the Board of Direclors present at a regularly calied wmeeting

conlaining a quorum of 50% plus one perion,

ARTICLE VI
Dy-Laws
The By-T.aws of this Not for Profit. Corporation shall be adepted by the Tioard
of Divectars and said By-Laws may bo thereafter altered, amended, added to or

rescinded by at least a majority vete of the direclors then tir office,

ARTICEE VII

Amendments
‘The Corperation reserves the right to amend these Third Restated Articles of
Incorparation at any reguiar or special meeiing of the Boavrd of Dicectors by at least a

majority vote of the directors then in office.



ARTICLE VI

Dristributions on kiquidalion or Dissolution

Upon dissehdion of the Corporation, or Hquidation of its assets, whether
voluntary or involuntarily oc by operation of law, except as, and to the extent otherwise
provided ov required by law, the net assels remaining after payment of all debts and
cbligations of the Corporation and of all costs and expenses of such Hquidation o
dissolution, shall be distributed to an organization which shall have qualified {for a
Federal Income Fax Fxcrption vader the terms of section 501{(c)(3) of the Code, as
amencded, or to the State ol Florida, Bducational Truat Fund, subjeet always to the
provisions of these Articles, a speciflic condition of which is that none of the net assets of
this Carporation shall be distributed to or used for the benefit of any officer or director
of the Corporation or any other private individual; provided, however, that nothing
contained in these Articles shall be construed to prevent a distribution from the net
asscls of the Corporation lo a distributee othovwise propetly made i accordance with

the provisions of these Articles and applicable law,

ARTICLE IX

Tndetnuification

The Corporation shall indemnify any officer, director or emplayee, or any former

officer, director or former employes, to the fullest extent peymitted by law.

WHEREFORE, the undersigned Chair of the Board of Directors of Chaptors
Health System, Inc, has executed these Thivd Reslated Articles of Incorporation this 27

day of November, 2012, to be effective as of December 17, 2012

a
As It

e__JONN M, ROIOSKY
5. Chair of Board (Jfé.)il'el?.{t).{'ﬂ{_"




FIRST ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT Ty T
to - < <

THIRD RESTATED ARTICLES QOF INCORPORATTON - . i‘:‘
A

of
CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC,
i{Document No. 763935)

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 617,108, 617.1002 and 617.1006 of the Flonda

Statutes, Chapters Health System, Inc., a Florida not for profit corporation, hereby adopts the
following amendments to its Third Restated Articles of Incorporation {the “Articles of
Incorporation” or “Articles”), to be effective as of February L, 2015:

Name of Corporation. The name of the corporation is Chapters Health System, Inc.
(the “Corporation”}. '

Text of Amendments.

FIRST: Article 1l of the Articles of Incorporation is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:

ARTICLEINN

Purposes

The Corporation is a not for profit corporation that is (i) organized
exclusively for charitable, religivus, educational, and scientific purposes,
including, for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that
qualify as exempt organizations under Sectiom 501{c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, as amended, or the corresponding section of any future federal
tax code {the “Code”), (ii) established, organized and operated in accordance
with Section 501 (c}(2) of the Code; (iif) incorporated under the Florida Not For
Profit Corporation Act; and, (iv} organized and operated exclusively for the
benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the lax-exempt purposes
and missions of LifePath Hospice, Inc., Good Shepherd Hospice, Inc,
Hernando-Pasco Hospice, Inc., and Chapters Health Home Connect, Inc., cach
an organization described in Section 301(c)(3} and classified as a public
charity under Section 30%a)(2} of the Code (collectively, the “Supported
Organizations”), for so long as the Supported Organizations qualify as
organizatiuns described in Section 501{e)(3} of the Code and classified as pubic
charities under Section 509(a)(2) of the Code. [n connection with its
relationship with the Supported Organizations, no less than a majority of the



dircetors of the Corporation must also be persons who are directors of the
supported Organizations. The Corporation is alse authorized to perform any
lawtul act or activity for which corporations not-for-profit may be formed
under the Florida Not For Profit Corporation Act, including, without
limitation:

1. To own, lease, establish, support, manage or furnish, directly or
indirectly, any asset, facility, single-member timited liability company (the
single-member of which shall be the Corporation) or service for the support
and care of persons with or affected by advanced iiness.

2 To promote the philosophy that the quality of life is important
and that life should be lived to its fullest extent by those persons with or
affected by advanced illness.

3. To promote understanding of the needs of persons with or
affected by advanced illness.

4. Toobtain public involvement and support by disseminating
the aims, purposes and activities of the Supported Crganizations, this
Corporation and its single member limited Hability companies to the general
public.

5. Tosolicil, raise and receive funds and endowments for the
purpose of carrying out the purposes of the Corporation.

6. To operate without regard to race, creed, age, sex, religion or
national origin.

7. To do all other tasks, including the conducting of all activities,
necessary, suitable, convenient, useful or expedicent in connection with, or
incidental to, the accomplishment of any of the purposes set forth herein to the
full extent permitted by the laws of the sovereign State of Florida.

Restrictions. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles to
the contrary, the Corporation shall not have or exercise any power which
would cause it ot to qualify as a tax-exempt organization under Sections
501{c)(3) or 509(a)K3) of the Code; nor shall the Corporation engage directly or

indirectly in any activity which would cause the loss of such qualification.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary,
the Corporation shall not pay dividends and no part of the net earnings,
current or accumulated, or property of the Corporation, shall inure to the



benefit of, or be distributed to, the Corporation’s members, directors, officers
ot uther private persons, except that the Corporation may pay compensation
in a reasonable amount 1o its members, directors, or officers for services
rendered, may confer benefits upon its members in conformity with the
Corporation's purposes so long as such members are qualifying exempt
organizations under Section 5301{c)(3) of the Code at the time of conferring
such benefits, and upon dissolution, final liquidation or partial hquidation,
may maku distributions o its qualifying members to the extent permitted by
these Articles of Incorporation and spplicable law.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary,
no substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be carrying on of
propaganda, or otherwise attemnpting to influence legistation.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary,
the Corparation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the
publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of
any candidate for public office.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles to the contrary, the
Corporation shall not be controlled directly or indirectly by one or more
disqualified persons (as defined in Section 4946 of the Code) other than
foundation managers and other than one or more organizations described in
Sections 309{(a) 1} or HU9(a)(2) of the Code.

SECOND: Article ¥V of the Articles of Incorporation is hereby deleted in its entirety
and replaced with the following:

ARTICLE VYV

Management

The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of
Directors. The number of directors, election and terms of office shall be
determined by the By-Laws of the corporation. Any member of the Board of
Directors may be removed by at least a two-thirds majority vote of the Board
of Directors present at a regularly catled meeting containing a quorum of 50%
plus ong person,

Date and Manner of Adoption. There are no members or members entitied to vote
on these Articles of Amendment. These Articles of Amendment were approved by
the Corporation’s Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting held on



December 2, 2014, at which a quorum of directors was present, to be effective upon
filing. The number of votes cast in favor of approval of these Articles of Amendment
was sufficient for approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the President of the Corporation has executed these First
Articles of Amendment to Third Restated Articles of Incorporation on this 20 day of
December, 2014, to be effective as of February 1, 2015

CHATPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.
.f’fﬂ_q—

tnandez, President



Twelfth Amended Bylaws

of

Chapters Health System, Inc.

ARTICLE I: Name
The name of the corporation shall be Chapters Health System, Inc. (the “Corporation™), a not-far-
profit, non-poiitical, non-sectarian Florida corporation.
ARTICLE Il Purpose

The purposes of this Corporation are those stated in Arlicte Ul of its Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE iIll: Piace of Business
The principal office of the Corporation shall be located at 12470 Telecom Drive, Suite 300 West,

Temple Terrace, Florida, or at such other location in Hillsborough County, Florida, approved by
the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IV: Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be from January 1 to December 31, both inclusive, of each
year.

ARTICLE V: Board of Direclors

SECTION 1. Membership

The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board” or the “Board of Directors”} shall consist
of the President and Chief Executive Officer {“President/CEQ”} of the Carporation and not less
than fourteen {14) or more than twenty (20} other duly elected members {each individually, a
“Director,” collectively, the “Directors”).

SECTION 2. Qualifications

Each Director shall be eighteen {18) years of age or older, of good morai character and reputation
and shall possess by reason of education, experience and background the technical skills and
judgment to be a director of the Corporation.



SECTION 3.

A

SECTION 4.

A

Election

Any Director or other person may submit a name to the Nominating Committee for
consideration as an elected director. Election of persons to replace elected
Directors whose terms have expired shall occur at the annual meeting. Election
of persons to fili vacated or newly created seats on the Board may occur at any
meeting of the Board. The Nominating Committee shail submit its slate of
nominees for election as directors at the applicable meeting of the Beard.
Directors may also make nominations from the floor. Those persons who are
approved by a majority vote of the Directors present at such meeting at which a
quorum is present shall be deemed elected.

Effective April 1, 2022, through March 31, 2027, the Board shall include eight (8)
individuals elected by the Board in its discretion from among individuals
presented to the Nominating Committee for consideration by Cornerstone
Hospice & Palliative Care, inc., a Florida notfor-profit corporation
("Comerstone”). During the five (5) year period following April 1, 2022, the
Cornerstone board of directors {the “Comnerstone Board™) will present to the
Nominating Committee individuals to succeed such Directors (or for renewal
of their existing terms), and the Board will only elect successors (or renewals)
of such eight (8) Directors from individuals designated by the Cornerstone
Board. In the event the Board fails to elect an individual designated by the
Cornerstone Board, then any vacancy in such eight (8) Board seats shall be
filed by a representative designated by the Comerstone Board and such
representative(s) shall have full rights and authority as any other member of the
Board. From April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2027, in the event of an increase in
the maximum number of Board seats as set forth in Article V, Section 1 of these
Bylaws, the Cornerstone Board shall have the sole authority to designate
individuals to additional seats (in addition to the eight (8) Board seals
referenced above) if necessary to assure that the ratio of individuals
designated by the Cornerstone Board to serve on the Chapters Board shall not
be less than one-third {1/3) of the total members of the Chapters Board. For
purposes of designating individuals to serve on the Chapters Board as
referenced in this Article V, Section 3.B., allreferences to "Cornerstone Board"
shall be interpreted as excluding all officers and employees of the Corporation
serving thereon.

Term of Office

Directors elected by the Board of Directors at the annual meeting shall hold office
untif a successor has been elected or unti! death, resignation, removal or
declaration of vacancy. Each term of an elected Director who is not an employee
of the Corporation shall consist of three {3) years or any portion thereof.

An elected Director whao is not an employee of the Corporation may serve no longer
than three (3) consecutive terms, or, if his or her initial term was less than one (1)
year as required by Ariicle V, Section 4.C befow, no longer than four (4}
consecutive terms, and may be re-elected to the Board after a one (1} year hiatus
following the completion of his or her service as a Director. If an elected Director
reaches the maximum term limit described above while he or she is serving as the
Immediate Past Board Chairpersen on the Executive Committee, his or her term
shall be extended until he or she is replaced by a new Immediate Past Board
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Chairparson on the Executive Committee.

C. The initia! term of a Director elected at a regular meeting to fill a vacancy created
by reason of the departure of a Director or an increase in the number of directors
shall expire at the next annual meeting at which Directors are elected.

SECTION 5. Attendance

If an elected Director is absent unreasonably from two (2) consecutive Board meetings, a letter
may be sent asking that his or her intent be clarified. if an elected Director is absent unreasonably
from three {3) consecutive Board meetings, the Director may be removed for cause from the
Board of Directors and his or her seat on the Board declared vacant by a majority vote of all
Directors then entifled to vote. The Director who is removed and whose seat is declared vacant
will be notified of such declaration.

SECTION 6. Resignation

An elected Director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the
Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Such resignation will be effective on the date specified in
the resigning Director's notice of resignation, but if no effective date is set forth in such notice,
then the effective date of such resignation shall be the date of such notice of resignation. If a
resignation is made effective at a later date, then the vacancy created by such resignation may
be filled before the vacancy occurs, provided, however, the new Director may not take office until
the vacancy occurs.

SECTION 7. Removal

An elected Director may be removed from the Board of Directors for cause at any time by a
majority vote of all Directors then entitled to vote. An elected Director may be removed from the
Board without cause at any time by a volie of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors then entitled to vole.
Any Director who is removed from the Board is not eligible to stand for election again until the
next annual meeting at which directors are elected. Any Director removed from the Board of
Directors shall turn over to the Board within 72 hours any and al! records of the Corporation in his
or her possession.

SECTION 8. Vacancies

Any seat on the Board that becomes vacant through resignation, removal or death of an elected
Director, or through an increase in the number of directors, shall be filled without undue delay. At
the next regular meeting of the Board after a vacancy occurs where a quorum is prasent, following
a nomination by the Nominating Committee, a new Director shall be elected to fill the vacant seat
by a majority vote of the Directors present, with vacancies in the gight (8) Board seats filled by
individuals designated by the Cornerstone Board to be filled in the manner described in Article V,
Section 3.B. of these Bylaws.

SECTION 9. Quorum

A A quorum of the Directors shall be 8 if the total number of Directors on the Board
is then 15, 16 or 17.

B. A gquorum of the Directors shall be 9 if the total number of Directors on the Board
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is then 18 or 19.

A quorum of the Directors shall be 10 if the total number of Directors on the Board
is then 20 or 21,

A quorum of the Directors shall be a simple majority if the total number of Directors
on the Board is then less than 15 due to any vacancy or vacancies not yet filled as
prescribed in these Bylaws. However, under no circumstances shall a quorum of
Pirectors be fewer than five (5).

if no quorum is present at a meeting of the Board and if written nofification of the
meeting and agenda has been given to all Directors, the Executive Committee may
act on all matters on the agenda, except as limited by Articie VII, Section 1, of
these Bylaws.

SECTION 10. Meetings

A.

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held not less than quarterly in
each calendar year, or as ofien as deemed necessary by at least one-third of the
Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present, at a date, time, and
place that they determine. Meeting notices shall be given to all Directors at least
ten {10) days in advance, either orally (by telephone or in person) or by written
notice delivered via hand delivery, overnight commercial courier, United States
mait or facsimile, or by carrect delivery of the notice to an electronic mail {*e-mail”)
address at which the Director has consented to receive notice.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairperson of
the Board or by any three Directors. All requests for special meetings must be
given to the Secretary or Assistant Secretary in writing signed by the requesting
Director(s). The Secretary or Assistant Secretary shall notify alt Directors of the
date, time and place of such special meetings, specifying the purpose, at least two
{2) days in advance, either orally (by telephone or in person) or by written notice
delivered via hand delivery, overnight commercial courier, United States mail or
facsimile, or by correct delivery of the nofice to an e-mail address at which the
Director has consented to receive nofice.

The annual meeting of the Corporation shall be convened by the Board of Directors
on or before May 31% of each year.

Directors may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee
thereof by means of a conference telephone or similar electronic communication
device whereby all persons can hear each other at the same time. Such
participation shall constitute presence in person at the meeting,

Any action required to be taken or that may be taken at a meeting of the Board of
Directors or a committee thereof, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in
writing, setting forth the actlion so taken or to be taken, signed by all of the Directors
or all of the members of the committee, as the case may be, is filed in the minutes
of the proceedings of the Board of Directors or of the committee, as the case may
be. Such consent shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote.



SECTION 11. Waiver of Notice of Meeling

Notice of a meeting of the Board of Directors need not be given to any Director who signs a waiver
of notice either before or after the meeting.

SECTION 12. Powers and Duties

The powers and duties of the Board of Directors shall be as follows:

A.

B.

To assume ultimate responsibility and full legal authority for the Corporation;

To ensure that proper policies are in place for governance of the Corporation's
{otal operation;

To develop and implement an effective organizational planning process
addressing the needs of external and internal customers of the Corporation;

Te define the Corporation’s long range strategic and operational plans, budget and
resource allocation;

To ensure the organizational mission, core purpose and core values of the
Corparation are sustained over time;

To ensure that ethical and legal standards are practiced and monitored by
exercising reasonable oversight with respect to the adoption and implementation
of an effective corporate compliance plan and reporting system;

To hold meetings of the Board and its committees as specified;

To elect and remove Directars of the Corporation,

To appoint and remove the principle executive officer of the Corporation;

To ensure that proper financial controls are in place for disbursement of the funds
of the Corporation;

To ensure that an annual financial statement audit is conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards by an independent certified public
accountant selected by the Audit and Compliance Committee;

To appoint and elect officers of the Corporation as set forth in these Bylaws;

To take all actions that the Corporation or Board or Directors are required or
authorized to take in accordance with the articles of incorporation, articles of
organization, bylaws or operating agreements of all not-for-profit corporations or
limited liability companies of which the Corporation is the sole member; and

To devise and carry into execution such other policies and programs as the Board
deems necessary of proper to promote the objectives of the Corporation.

SECTION 13. Confiict of Interest



No contract or other business or personal transaction or relationship between the
Corporaticn and one or more of its Directors or any other corporation, firm,
association, entity in which one or more of its Directors are directors, officers, or
employees or are financially interested, or a person with which one or more of its
directors are related, shall be void or voidable because of such interest or kinship,
because such Director or Directors are present at the meeting of the Board of
Directors or a committee thereof which authcrizes, approves, or ratifies such
confract, transaction or refationship, or because his or her or their vote(s) are
counted for such purpose, if:

1. The fact of such interest or kinship is disclosed by the interested or related
Director(s) as soon as practicable and in ne case later than five {5) days
following knowledge of its existence, or the fact of such interest or kinship
is otherwise known to the Board of Directors or committee which
authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract, transaction or relationship by
a vote or consent sufficient for the purpose without counting the vote(s) or
consent(s) of such interested or related Director(s); or

2. The contract, transaction or relationship is fair and reasonable as to the
Corporation at the time it is autherized by the Board, a committee, or the
Directors entitied to vote on such contract, transaction or reiationship.

Commoaon or interested Directors may be counted in determining the presence of a
quorum at a meeting of the Beard of Directors or a committee thereof which
authorizes, approves or ratifies such contract, transaction or relationship.

SECTION 14. Compliance

A.

The Board of Directors shall abide by the authority and objectives set forth in ail
applicable federal and state laws and rules, governmental third party program
requirements, accreditation standards, and these Bylaws as adopted and
amended.

The Board of Directors shali act with the highest integrity to advance the best
interests of the Corporation and to help the Corporation achieve its mission and
operate in a manner consistent with its charitable purposes.

Any Director who contributes to or participates in activities that are not in
compliance with or that contribute to the Corporation's non-compliance with any
applicable federal or state taw or rule, governmental third party program
requirement, accreditation standard, or these Bylaws as adopied and amended, or
who fails to act with the highest integrity to advance the best interests of the
Corporation and to help the Corporation achieve its mission and operate in a
manner consistent with its charitable purpose, shall be subject to removal from the
Board for cause.

SECTION 15. Compensation

Directors who are not employees of the Corporation shall receive no compensation for their
services as members of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof; provided, however,
Directors may, pursuant to Article V, Section 13 of these Bylaws, receive compensation that is
fair and reasonable for services rendered to the Corporation in a separate capacity. The Board
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of Directors may authorize the reimbursement of expenses incurred by any Director far the benefit
of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VI: Officers

SECTION 1. Calegories

The officers of the Corporation shall be the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary and
Treasurer of the Board, the PresidentYCEQ, and one or more other senior executive officers who
have the word “chief" in their titles ("C-Suite Officers™). There may also be one or more Assistant
Secretaries.

SECTION 2. Election/Appointment and Term of Office

A, At the annual meeting of the Board of Directors, the Directors shall glect, by a
majority of those present, one Director to serve as Chairperson, one Director to
serve as Vice Chairperson, one Director to serve as Treasurer and one Director fo
serve as Secretary of the Board. Nolwithstanding any other provision of these
Bylaws to the contrary, the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Treasurer and
Secretary of the Board must be elected at a meeting of the Board of Directors at
which a quorum is present. The Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Treasurer and
Secretary of the Board shall serve for a term of two (2) years.

B. The President/CEQ of the Corporation shall be appointed by the Board of Directors
and serve until resignation, removal or death.

C. The C-Suite Officers shall be appointed by the President/CEQ and shall serve until
resignation, removal or death.

D. The Executive Assistant to the President/CEQ shail serve in the capacity as an
Assistant Secretary until his or her resignation, removal or death. In the temporary
absence of the Executive Assistant to the President/CEQ, an Executive Assistant
or Administrative Assistant appointed by the President/CEQ shall serve as an
Assistant Secretary.

SECTION 3. Vacancies

Any officer position that becomes vacant through resignation, removal or death shall be filled
without undue delay. Should the position of Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Treasurer or
Secretary become vacant, at the next regular meeting of the Board after the vacancy occurs

where a quorum is present, the Directors shall elect a director to fill the vacant office by a majority
vole of those present.

SECTION 4. Powers and Duties
The powers and duties of the respective officers of the Corporation shall be as follows:
A, Chairperson of the Board

1. The Chairperson of the Board shall preside over ajl Board meetings and
perform ail duties incident to the office of Chairperson and such duties as



from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Board of
Directors.

The Chairperson of the Board shali chair the Executive Commiittee of the
Board of Directors

B.  Vice Chairperscn of the Board

In the temporary absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the Vice Chairperson
of the Board shall act as the Chairperson and perform all duties assigned to that
position.

C.  Secretary and Assistant Secretaries

1.

The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors, insure that all notices are duly given in accordance with the
provisions of these Bylaws, be custodian of the Corporation’s records, and,
in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such
duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Board of
Directors or the Chairperson of the Board,

Each Assistant Secretary shali assist the Secretary in keeping the minutes
of the meetings of the Board of Directors, insuring that all notices are duly
given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, and being
custodian of the Corporatlion’s records, and, in general, shall perform all
duties incident fo the office of Assistant Secretary and such duties as from
time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors, the
Chairperson of the Board, the President/CEQ or the Secretary.

D. Troasurer

1.

The Treasurer shall be responsible for the financial affairs of the
Corporation and shall generally perform all duties and possess such
powers incident to the office of treasurer of a Florida corporation; including
such ather duties and powers as may from time to time be assigned or
delegated to that office by the Board of Directors, or by the Chairperson.
The day-to-day implementation of financial policy decisions of the Board of
Directors shall be the responsibility of the President/CEQ.

The Treasurer shall chalr the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors.
The Treasurer shall submit to the Finance Committee an unaudited fiscal
report monthly.

The Treasurer shall provide all financial reports and statements to the
Board of Directors and Executive Committee as they may require or
request,

E. President’/CEQ

1.

The President/CEO shall be the principal executive officer of the
Corporation and shall, in general, supervise and control alf of the business
and affairs of the Corporation. He or she may sign on behalf of the
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Corporation all contracts, deeds, mortgages, bonds and other financial or
transactional instruments, as well as any other instruments which the Beard
has authorized to be executed, except where execution thereof is expressly
delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws, ar by statute, to
some other officer or agency of the Corporation.

The President/CEQ shall perform all duties incident to his or her office, and
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to
time. The President/CEO or his or her designee shall represent the
Corporation in matters of policy and negctiation with othar agencies, and
shalf be responsible for administering the work of the Corperation in
conformity with these Bylaws, the Corporation’s Policies and Procedures,
and other policies established by the Board of Directors.

F. C-Suite Officers

The C-Suite Officers shall have such powers and duties that may be assigned to
them from time to time by the President/CEQ or the Board of Directors.

SECTION 5. Chain of Command — Absence of President/CEQ

In the temporary absence of the President/CEQ, the Corporation’s Chain of Command Policy and
Procedure will dictate the individual responsible to perform the duties of the President/CEQ.
Except for the powers inuring to the President/CEQ as a member of the Board of Directors, this
individual shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the

President/CEQ.

ARTICLE Vii: Commitiees

SECTION 1. Executive Committee

A, The Executive Committee shall carry out the work of the Board of Directors
between meetings and at meetings in accordance with Article V, Section 9.E, of
these Bylaws and make recommendations to the Board of Directors for its action.
The Executive Committee shall have all the authority of the Board of Directors
excapt that the Executive Committee is not authorized to: (1) recommend actions
or proposals required to be approved by Board members; (2) fill vacancies on the
Board or any committee therecf; or (3} adopt, amend, supplement, restate, repeal,
or rescind these Bylaws.

B. The members of the Executive Committee shall be as follows:

1.

Chairperson, Vice Chairpersen, Treasurer and Secretary of the Board;
Immediate past Chairperson of the Board;
President/CEQ of the Corporation;

Effective April 1, 2022, and continuing until March 31, 2027, four (4} of
the eight (8) individuais elected to the Board in its discretion from



E.
SECTION 2.

A.

among individuals presented to the Nominating Committee for
consideration by the Cornerstone Board; and

No less than two {2) additional elected Directors and/or elected directors of
affiliate boards as appointed by the Board Chairpersan.

The Chairperson of the Board shatt chair the Executive Committee.

The appointed Directors shail serve on the Executive Committee for a term of two
(2) years. A Director appointed to the Executive Committee may be re-appointed
by the Board Chairperson without any hiatus following the applicable two (2) year

term.

The Executive Committee shall meet monthly, or as necessary or appropriate.

Other Standing Committees

Other standing committees and their purposes shall be as foliows:

1.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee oversees, reviews and approves budgets and
Corporation funding, recommends fiscal policies affecting operations, and
monitors all fiscal operations. |ts members shall be the Treasurer of the
Board, President/CEQ of the Corporation, afl members of the Executive
Committee and any other members appointed at the discretion of the
Chairperson of the Finance Committee. Appointed Committee members
shall serve a term of two (2) years. The Committee shall be chaired by the
Treasurer and shalt meet as necessary and appropriate, but at least six {6)
times per year.

Investment Committae

The Investment Committee assists the Board and the Corporation in
ensuring that the Corporation’s financial resources are preserved and
increased through prudent investment strategies. lts members shall be
appointed by the Chairperson of the Investment Committee and shall
include the President/CEO of the Corporation. The Committee may
include, from time to time, qualified individuals who are not Directors.
Appointed Committee members shall serve a term of two (2) years. The
Chairperson of the Investment Committee shail be appointed by the
Chairperson of the Board. The Investment Committee shall meet as
necessary and appropriate.

Development Commitiee

The Development Committee oversees and assists the Board and the
Corporation in development and fund raising. Its members shall be
appointed by the Chairperson of the Development Committee and may
include, from time to time, guaiified individuals who are not Directors.
Appointed Committee members shall serve a term of two (2) years. The
Chairperson of the Development Committee shail be appointed by the
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Chairperson of the Board. The Development Committee shall meet as
necessary and appropriate.

Bioethics Committee

The Bioethics Committee reviews ethical issues and provides
recommendations and guidance to the standards and poticies governing
the delivery of health care services by the Corporation and its affiliates.
The Bioethics Committee shall be composed of multi-disciplinary
community leaders experienced and qualified to participate in discussions
related to current ethical topics, some of whom may be Directors of the
Corporation. The Bioethics Committee serves as an educational resource
for Staff Ethics Committee(s) of the Corporation and/for its affiliates and
reviews cases involving ethical dilemmas presented to Staff Ethics
Committee(s) for additional insight and recommendations. The Bioethics
Committee also serves as an advisory and review commitiee for research
activities of the Corporation and, in that capacity, provides review of
appropriate organizational studies, evaluates potential risk, privacy and
other research-related related issues.

The Bioethics Committee members shall be appointed by the Chairperson
of the Bioethics Committee and may include, from time to time, qualified
individuals who are not Directors. Appointed Committee members shall
serve a term of twg {2) years. The Chairperson of the Bioethics Committee
shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board. The Bioethics
Committee shall meet as necessary and appropriate.

Nominating Committee

The Nominating Commitiee develops, in accordance with these Bylaws,
the slate of candidates to serve as elected Directors, and recommends
nominees to fill vacancies. The Nominating Committee also develops and
submits to the Board a slate of candidates to serve in the offices of
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer of the Board, and
recommends nominees to fill vacancies in those offices.

The members of the Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the
Chairperson of the Nominating Committee from among the sitting Board of
Directors and shall include the Immediate Past Chairperson of the Board,
the President/CEQ of the Corporation and a minimum of three (3} additional
Directors. Appointed Committee members shall serve a term of two (2)
years. The Nominating Committee shall be chaired by the Immediate Past
Chairperson of the Board and shall meet as necessary and appropriate.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee establishes a2 compensation philosophy for
the Corporation and evaluates the performance and development of the
Corporation's President/CEQ on an annual basis in achieving corporate
goals and objectives and to assure that the President/CEO of the
Corporation is compensated effectively in a manner consistent with the
strategy of the Corporation, competitive practice, and all tax, accounting,
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legal and regulatory requirements. With the assistance of the
President/CEOQ and exiernal compensation specialist(s), as needed, the
Compensation Committee also oversees and approves the administration
of all compensation, equity and executive stafifdisqualified persons benefit
plans and programs and approves or disapproves all requests for additions
and/or deletions of corporate officer positions. The Compensation
Committee shall have the resources and authority necessary to discharge
its duties and responsibilities, including but not limited to, the sole autherity
to select, retain and terminate such compensation consultants, ouiside
legal counsel and other advisors as the Committee may deem necessary.

Voting members of the Compensation Committee shall be composed of all
members of the Executive Committee and shall be independent and free
of conflicts of interest. The Corporation’s President/CEO and most senior
Human Rescurces staff member shall be ex officio, non-voting members
of the Committee. Voting members of the Committee members shall serve
a term of two (2) years. The Compensation Committee shall be chaired by
the Chairperson of the Board and shall meet at least annually, or as
necessary and appropriate.

Audit and Compliance Committee

The Audit and Compliance Committee oversees the establishment and
implementation of accounting policies and processes that ensure the
integrity of the Corporation’s financial statements and the effectiveness of
the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting. The Audit and
Compliance Committee oversees the selection and performance of the
Corporation’s intemal audit function and independent public accountants.
The Audit and Compliance Commitiee oversees the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s compliance and risk processes with respect to high risk areas
and assists the Board of Directors in promoting an organizational culture
that encourages a commitment to compliance with the law. In addition to
ensuring that the Corporation implements and maintains a corporate
information and reporting system designed to prevent and detect violations
of the law, the Audit and Compliance Committee exercises reasonable
oversight with respect to the effectiveness of such system and educates
the Board about its content and operation. The Audit and Compliance
Committee ensures that legally appropriate document retention policies
and procedures are in place and that “non-retaliation” protections are in
place for employees who disclose potential legal violations under the
reparting system. The Corporation’s Chief Compliance Officer shall have
direct access and report to the Audit and Compliance Committee. The
Chief Compliance Officer shall have direct, overall responsibility for the
Corporation’s compliance system and be given adequate resources and
authority to carry out such responsibility. The Audit and Compliance
Committee shall report to the Board of Directors regularly including an
annual repori regarding the Corporation's independent audit results and
compliance activities.

The Audit and Compliance Commitiee members shall be appointed by the

Chairperson of the Audit and Compliance Committee from amoryg the
sitting Board of Directors and shall include a minimum of three (3)
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independent elected Directors. Non-voting members shall include the
Corporation's President/CEQO, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Medicat
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, Chief Information
Officer and most senior Human Rescurces staff member. Appointed
Commitiee members shall serve a term of two {2} years. The Chairperson
of the Audit and Compliance Committee shall be appointed by the
Chairperson of the Board. The Audit and Compiiance Committee shall
meet quarterly, or as necessary and appropriate.

8. Bylaws Committee

The Bylaws Commitiee reviews the bylaws of the Corporation and its
affiliate corporaticns annually, or more frequently if necessary and
appropriate, and submits recommendations for amendments, if any, to the
Board of Directors. Hs members shall inciude the Chairperson and
Immediate Past Chairperson of the Board, the vice chairperson of the
board of directors of each of the Corporation’s affiliate corporations, and
the Corporation’'s President/CEQ, The Bylaws Committee shal be chaired
by the Immediate Past Chairperson of the Board and shall meet as
necessary and appropriate. VWhen a member of the Bylaws Committee is
acting in his or her capacity as a vice chairperson of one of the
Corporation's affiliate corporations at a Bylaws Committee meeting, he or
she shall only be entitled to vote at such meeting concerning reecommended
amendments to the bylaws of the corporation for which he or she serves
as vice chaimperson.

B. Unless otherwise indicated, standing committees shall meet as necessary or
appropriate.

SECTION 3. Ad Hoc Committees

Ad Hoc committees may be appointed at the discretion of the Chairperson of the Board and meet
as necessary or appropriate.

SECTION 4. Committee Chairpersons
Unless otherwise slated in Article VII, Section 2 of these Bylaws, the Chairperson of the Board
shall appoint committee chairpersons and may serve as a chairperson and/or voting member of

one or more committees,

SECTION 5. Quorum

Unless otherwise designated by the Board of Directors, a majority of the whole committee shall
constitute a quorum.

SECTION 6. Rules

Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these Bylaws or
with the rules adopted by the Board of Directors.
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SECTION 7. Removal

The Chairperson of the Board may remove any committee member at will.

ARTICLE ViiI: Fiscal Policies
SECTION 1. Contracts

The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or agent, in addition to the officers so authorized
by these Bylaws or the Corporation's Contracting Policy and Pracedure andior Guidefines, to
enter into any contract or execute and defiver any instrument in the name of or to the Corperation.

SECTION 2. Checks, Drafis, Elc.

All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of maney, notes or other evidence of indebledness
issued in the name of the Corporation shatl be signed by such officer(s) or agent{s) as determined
by resolution of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. Deposits

All corporate funds shall be deposited to the credit of the Corporation in such bonds, trusts, or
other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

ARTICLE IX: Books and Records
SECTION 1. Minute Book

The Corporation shall keep at its principie office, or such other place as the Board of Directors
may order, a book of the minutes of alt meetings of directors, with the times and places of holding,
whether regular or special, how authorized, the nofice given, the names of those present, and the
praceedings thereof.

SECTION 2. Corporate Records

The Corpoeration shall keep and maintain at its principle office, or such other place as the Board
of Directors may order, adequate and correct accounts of its properties and business transactions,
including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains and losses.

SECTION 3. Confidentiality of Patient/Family Information

The records of any commitiee or board of the Corporation which contain information relating
specifically 1o any patient served by the Corporation or any of its affiliates shall be considered
confidential. Any disclosure of such information shall be in accordance with statutes and rutes of
the State of Florida and the United States, in effect at the time, pertaining to disclosure of
confidential patient information.
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ARTICLE X: Waiver of Notice

When notice is required under the provisions of the Florida Mot for Profit Corporation Act, the
Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, a written waiver signed by the person or
persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated herein, shall be deemed
equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE Xi: Amendments

The Board of Directors may amend, supplement, restate, repeal, or rescind these Bylaws or any
of them or any combination of them by a majority vote of those Directors present at any meeting
of the Board at which a quorum is present, provided that written notice of the mesting and of the
proposed change is mailed or otherwise delivered or communicated to all sitting Directors at least
ten (10} days prior to the meeling date. Notwithstanding the priar sentence, from April 1, 2022
through March 31, 2027, before any amendment, rastatemant, repeal or rescission of any of the
following Bylaws provisions becomes effective, to the extent it impacts on the rights of those
Directors designated by Comerstone then serving on the Board, at least one such Director
designated by Cornerstone must be among the Directors approving such amendment,
restatement, repeal or rescission: Article V, Section 3.B.; Arlicle V, Section 8; and Article Vil,
Section 1. B.4.

ARTICLE XilI: Indemnification

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Directors, Officers and committee members
of the Corporation shall be indemnifiad and held harmless by the Corporation for any and all
claims made against them personally while acting within the scope of their duties for the
Corporation.

Approved by the Corporation’s Board of Directors on December 2, 2021 to be effactive as of April
1, 2022.

CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.
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Title 11, California Code of Regulations, § 999.5¢(d)(10)

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS




11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(d)(10)

The written notice of any proposed acreement or transaction set forth in
section 999.5(a)(1) shail include a description of the applicant's efforis to inform local
governmental entities, professional staff and emplovees of the heaith facility or facility

that provides similar health care and the general public of the proposed transaction.
This description shall include any comments or reaction to this effori.

An internal announcement was issucd to employees of Chapters on Octlober 29, 2024,
An internal announcement was issued to employees of Hospice Fast Bay on October 31,
2024, A public press release was issued by Chapters on October 30, 2024. Copies of the
Chapters internal announcement and public press release are attached and the Hospice East
Bay intcrnal announcement is part of this application as the response to {d)(1 }c). A video
related 1o the proposed affiliation titled Chapters Tlealth West Affiliation Announcement was
also published on YouTube and can be accessed at the following link.
hitps/www. youtube comiwatchv=clUgdBU14TO4

[n addition, once the alfiliation transaction was announced “town hall™ meetings wrce
held with employees of Hospice FEast Bay.



CHAPTERS

HEALTH*SYSTEM

TO: Chapters Health System All Staft

FROM: Andrew Molosky. President/CEO, Chapters Health System
Bill Musick, Interim CEO, Hospice East Bay
Cathy Conway, CEO, Hospice of Santa Cruz County
Karen Rubel, President/CEO, Nathan Adelson Hospice
[ria T. Nishimura, Willamctte Vital Health

SUBIECT: Creation and Launch of Chapters Health West

DATE: October 29, 2024

We have exciting news to share with you. Chapters Health Syslem, in partncrship
with Hospice East Bay, Hospice of Santa Cruz County, Nathan Adelson Hospice and
Willamette Vilal Health, have joined together to create and launch Chapters Health
West. A press rclease announcing the launch of Chapters Health West is scheduled
for distribution 1o the media on Wednesday, October 30, 2024,

Chapters Health and all the Chapters Health West affiliates share missions that
historically demonstrate the preservation as well as enhancement of the not-for-profit
hospice model of comprehensive, community-based care. In 2024, a new era in
chronic diseasc management begins for Chapters Health, and the other Chapters
Hcalth West atliliates as together we are destined to change the healthcare landscape.
Combining resources, we continue to support ongoing innovation and crilical care
expansion with increased opportunities for team members.

We recognize questions may arisc regarding the creation of Chapters Health West but
wanted to emphasize the commilment to not only preserving but promoting and
advancing our combined legacy of exceptional care for the communities we
collectively serve.

As always, thank you for your commitment and for all you do for patients, families
and communitics!



CHAPTERS

HEALTH"SYSTEM
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Chapters Health System Launches New Chapters Health West Division
Pioneering a New Fra of Not-for-Profit Hospice Care in Western States

Temple Terrace, FL (October 30, 2024): Chapters Health System, in collaboration with four highly
respected not-for-profil organizations — Iospice Fast Bay (Pleasant Hill, CA), ITospice of Santa Cruz
County (Santa Cruz, CA), Nathan Adelson Hospice {Las Vegas, NV) and Willametie Vital [Icalth
(Salem, OR) — is proud to announcc the creation and official launch of Chapters Health West. This
landmark partnership signifies the beginning of a new cra in not-tor-profit hospice care across the
Western United Stales, blending innovalion with a commitment to compassionate, community-bascd
care.

“We are building a futurc where we can do more, innovatc more and serve more,” said Andrew
Molosky, MBA, CHPCA, president and chicf executive officer for Chapters Health, By aligning our
strengths, we will continue Lo deliver cxceptional care while expanding our capacity to meet the
growing needs of those navigating serious illness and gricf in our communities.”

‘The launch of Chapters Health West comes at a critical time when the healtheare landscape is rapidly
changing, with a growth prevalence of for-prolit entitics in hospice care. The new partnership
underscores the mission of all involved affiliates to preserve and enhancc the not-tor-profit hospice
maodel, prioritizing paticnt care over prolil.

“Chapters [Tcalth West will leverage the combined strengths of its pariner organizations to enhance
services, foster innovation and ensure the legacy of compassionate care remains intact,” continued
Molosky. “While joining forces under the broader Chapters Hcalth System, each hospice will maintain
its local leadership, culture and deep-rooted community relationships. This cnsures that care remaing
personal, meaningful and aligned with the values of each unique community.”

The Chapters Icalth West partnership unitcs the pioneering spirit of the Western United States with the
long-standing values ol not-for-profit care. Patients, familics and carcgivers can expect expanded
services, advanced resources and continued support al every stage of scrious illness and grief.

*As wc officially welcome Hospice [ast Bay, Hospice of S8anta Cruz County, Nathan Adelson Hospice
and Willamette Vital Health into the Chapters [Tcalth tamily, we are exciled to work in lock step with
our shared mission 1o constantly elevate home and community-based, end-of-life care while at the samc
- time preserve their long-standing tradition in the community,” added Molosky.

--more--
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HEALTH*SYSTEM
Page 2: Chapters Health Launches New Chapters Tealth West Division Press Release

About Chapters Health System

As a [orward-thinking leader and distinguished healthcare orpanization, Chapters Flealth System is committed to
pioneering care across the spectrum of chronic illness and beyond. Established in 1983 as a commumitly-centerad, nol-lor-
profit entity, Chapiters Health has continually expanded its reach and ofterings to meet evolving healthcare needs.
Dedication to innovation and excellence is evident through its diverse portfolio of companies, including 10 hospices,
comprehensive behavioral health services, PACE Centers and an inlegrated pharmacy company. As part of iis ongoing
mission (o enhance the patient and family expericnce, Chapters Health continues to evolve and innovate, cnsuring that
individuals facing advanced illness reccive compassionate, comprehensive care tailored to their unique needs. ‘1'o learn
more, visit www.chaplershealth.orp, like us on Facehook ot [ollow us on X and Linkedin.

About Hespice East Bay

Hospice Fast Bay is a nonprotfit hospice agency dedicated to providing compassionate care, suppottive sctvices, and gricf
counseling to individuals and families facing life-limiting illnesses. Founded in 1977, our mission is 1o enhatce the
quality of life for patients and support the journey of their loved ones,

About Hospice of Santa Cruz County

Since 1978, Hospice of Santa Cruz County has committed to ensuring dignified living and dying for the people of Santa
Crur and Northern Menterey County. As the leading nonprotfit provider of hospice care for individuals of all ages, the
organization has consistently demonstrated cxemplary end-of-life care. Its broad spectrum of scrvices includes community
grief supporl for adults, Camp Erin for bereaved children, palliative care services, KidWISE [or concurrent care for
children, pel companion, and music therapy programs, hospice care for veterans. and bilingual end-of-life education and
outreach. Accredited by ACHC, Hospice of Santa Cruz County boasts the highest quality scores in the region,

About Nathan Adelson Hospice

Hospice Nathan Adelson Flospice, the trusted partner in hospice care and palliative medicine. is the largest and longest-
established hospice in southern Nevada. Founded in 1978, Nathan Adclson Hospice provides comprehensive end-of-life
care to more than 400 patients and families every day. Recognized as a national model [or supcrior care, the vision of
Nathan Adelson Hospice is that no one should end the journey of lile alonc, alraid or in pain. Fer more information, visit
www.nah.org,

About Willamette Vital Health

Willamette Vital Health has been the area’s non-profit, mission-driven provider of hospice and supportive care services in
the mid-Willamette Valley [or over 45 ycars. In addition to expert care and supporl for patients facing life-limiting
illnesses and their [amilics, Willamette Vital Health offers the "l'okarski [Home and a range of community Gricf Care
SCTVICES,

HiH
Contacts:
Phocbe Ochman Anna Grace Thompson
ochimans/@carenu.com annagrace thompsonZsinkstor oo

g13/532-7221 371/429-2482



Tille 11, California Code of Regulations, § 999.5(d)X11)

ADDITIONAL ATTACHMENTS




11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(d11)(A

Any board minutes or other documents relating or referring to consideration hy
the board of directors of the applicant and any relaied entity, or any committee thereof

of the agreement or transaction or of any other possible iransaction involving any of the
health facilities or facilitics that provide similar health care that are the subject of

agreement or transaction.
Please see (d)(11)D) for all documents related to the consideration of this (ransaction.

HLB has considered numerous allernative transactions, but that none of them were in direct
competition with this transaction.




11 Cal. Code Reg. Seetion 999.5(dy(114B

Copics of all documents relaiing or referring to the reasons why any polential

transferce was cxcluded from further consideration as a potential transferce for

any of the health facilitics or facilities that provide similar health care that are
the subject of the agreement or transaction,

N/A



11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(dy{1 1))

Copies of all Requesis for Proposal sent to any potential iransferee, and all
responses reeeived therelo,

N/A



11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 99%.5(d 111N

All documents reflecting the deliberative process used by the applicant and any
related entity in selecting the transferec as the entity to participate in the proposed
agreement or transaction.

Book Club is a code word that was used for Chapters Health Systems in meetings prior to
announcement. Attached (o this Section are the following:

. A copy of the Strategic Planning Committee Minutes dated March 5, 2024
. A copy of the Board of Directors Minutes dated March 7, 2024

» A copyv ol the Board of Directors Minutes dated April 25, 2025

. A copy ol'the Board ol Directors Minutes dated May, 21 2024

. A copy of the Board of Directors Minutes dated July 15, 2024

. A copy of the Board of Directors Minutes dated August 26, 2024

. A copy of the Strategic P'lanning Committee Minutes dated October 14, 2024



Haspice

] Tlere wken

East Bay | Graup Name: EBIC STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE Minutes

" Date: March 5, 2024
Time: 11:00am-12:00pm

Facilitator: Marc ié"G-érg

Mote Taker: Bill Musick

Lecatian:  Zoom

. Board Committee Members: Marcia f-“:erg,_S_ue Burroughs, Frank Puglisi, Cindy Sikva

Ermeritus Committee Members: Lynn Brady, Sharan [versen

HEB Staff: Bill Musick

Guests: Karen Rubel — CEQ, Nathan Adelson Hospice (Las Vegas), Cathy Conway ~ CEQ, Hospice of Santa Cruz

Ground Rules:

_I'_I_'I_.E-H nesfResponsible

Motien to approve the
Strategic Flanring Committee
Meeling Minutes for January
24, 2024

Motion: Frank Puglisi

= Start and end meetings an time * (One person talks ¢+ Come prepared = Everyone listens
_ = Focus on solutions «___Respett and honor ideas *  Sifence means agreement
Agenda Topics Time  Leader ~ Discussion
Weleome/Introduction of Marcia | Marci Gerg called the meeting to order at 11:03am )
Guests L Gery o B
Bill Karen Rubel and Cathy Conway discussed why their organizations are considering nE
Wusick, | affitiation as a subsidiary of a parent sole member and why they consider Chapters
CEOQ Perspectives on Xaren Health to be an option worth exploring. Both answered questions from the
Atfiliation Rucbel, | committes members.
! Cathy
) Conway_ R
i Motion: Move to apgprove minutes of the January 24, 2024 meeting without
i ! corrections.
Strategic Planning Commitiee .
Meetigg MinutesgApprouai Marcia
Gerg

for January 24, 2024

I Serond; Sue Burroughs
_' Yote: Unanimously a pproved

Submitted by:

Bill Musick Date: 03.11.2024




- Bl

Review 2017 dacument with an eye toward addressing a meféer inwhich HEB
kecomnes a subsidiary of a larger organization.

This item was tabled

Motion: Marcia Gerg
Second: Frank Puglisi
Vote: Approved unanimausly

Matian: Cindy Silva
Second; Frank Puglisi
Vote: Approved unanimously

~ Strategic Filters/Criteria for
Member Substitution Model | Musick | Proposed Motion: Recommend revised oriteria document as discussed to the fulf
i board.
) Thecomm ittee discussed the Book Club obb"o_;l_uﬁitv.
Acti . . - .
Pm‘.‘;:'t‘; pursue Book Club Al Motion: Recommend to the fult board that HEB continue te participate in Western
Jects ; | States exploration of the Book Club oppartunity.
h T The committee’s charter was updated during oUr ¢ommittae transition process
' that included Sue Burroughs, Marcia Gerg and Bill Musick, The revised version is
mmittee Charter Updata Bilt ] provided to the full commitiee for review and approval.
fusick
| Praposed mation: ta recommend revised charter to the Governance Commitlee,
~Future Mesting Scheduis _; ) - lune 4t —-Re}!eat_Ff@nﬁing )
a. Adjournment ) | ) The meeting was adjourned at 12:23pm




*Governange Commiltee;
Vote 1o approve Give AND
: Get Policy

*Finance Committee — May

“5min

Cindy Silva

Wechanism far follow vp- at end of every vear, we would ask board
members to self-evaluale; we would provide them with the
information on meeting attendance, giving, getting, etc. and having
conwersation with each board memhber to discuss where we might be
ahle to provide assistance,
At the end of year, management will send out report showing what
each beard member (no name listed) has contributed monatarily,
volunteering, amaunt af “get”.

- will send out the report of min, max, avg and median for past 3
YEArs.

: Wgtion to approve the Give

AND Get Policy as presented

; Motion: Cindy Silva

Second: Lori McAdams
Vote: Approved unanimously

Introduction regarding fiﬁanﬁals provided by Bill Musick.

Committee has met singe the iast board meé{ﬁg, draft minutes attached,

- nvestmenl- Inyestmont committee meeting hald and we are doing
very well with an approximate 529 million in our portfalic. We did

our review of john Pogue and decided to continue working with him.

- Audit Financial audit presented and appraved earlier in today's

Quality, Safety & Compliance- Discussion regarding audits {Advance

Financials {Intro 29 John Kopehik - duly 2024 financial update provided by Rahel Legesse
PPT/Cverview PPT) N
¥
- See draft minutes beginning ot pr. 23
Other Committee Reports
- *Investment — Eric Rudney
- “Audit - Cindy 5ilva agenda
- Strategic Planning - Marcia - Strategic Planning- deferred to CEQ Update- Eook Club
Gerg 50 - Bruns House- No update
- Bruns House — Cindy Silva | o | Michelle Lopes

*Quality, Safety &
Compliance- Lindsay
Duggan

- Retnll Ops— Dennis Ross i

*Development— Larna Lee

directives, pulse, etc)... moving to audit in real time so Lthat we ¢an
make adjustrments accordingly.

- Retail Ops- No update

- Development MoTown in Rossmoor event taking place on August
8". Hops for Hospice in Moraga on September 26™, Working an the
next gaia and looking for venue. As part of engagement activities we
have partnered with a company to publish a Hospice Information
guide, which is free to us, with the costs being subsidized by
advertisers. Will be used as a marketing tool for us_

- Lorna will have Mats
send infa on Hops for
Hospice and MoTown tg
the Board members




CEQ Update: HR Concerns
(PPT)

1

110
L min

Bitl Musick

Stancby f:ra;r investigation update provided by Bill Musick.

CEQ Update: Book Club (PPT)

20
min

Bill Musick

Book Club updale provided by BIll Musick
schedule Committee meeting prior to August 26" Board meeting to
discuss succassion planning/focal leadership recommendation

It would be critical for Bill to know if there are certain things that
board members wouid like to know or have before the August 26™
board meeting so that we can, potentially, make yes/no decision at

that meeting.

Guality of care for patients

Level of employee satisfaction

Financials of all affiliates on par

Bruns House research any contractsfagreements in place with
the Bruns family and/ar stipulatiens that we want to putl in
place in definitive agreement.

what types of Inssas are we willing to incur if we cantinue to
have losses at Bruns House {internal decision]?

Future Meeting Schedule

5 min

Michelle Lopes

Meeting Review
a. ‘What worked?
B What needs to be
done differently?

August 26", 1pm- Spm- potential vote on definitive agreement
[could require special meeting i timing docs not align} — in person

- Educatien
session/assessment on
whether there should be ;
any restrictions in i
agreement re: Bruns
House and speciaity
programs prior Lo
August meeling?

- Lynn and Sharon to talk
to Bruns family to see if
there are any
agreements in place

Rill- What has Chapters

done with ather hospice
. houses to “turn them

i around”? Track record

© on other IPU's within th
system.

Rahel- Financials for
Bruns for the past few
years for its
performange.

' Mexico timeshare
! deeision

| Motion Lo adjourn meeting
{at W2ipm

Motion: Cindy Silva
i second: John Kopchik




Vate: pproved unanimausly




Jrep B b M TR

Graup Name: BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES

Date: March 7, 2024

Location: HEB Offices, 3470
Buskirk Avenue, Fleasant Hill,
CA 04523

Facilitatar: Michelle pres

Note Taker: Bill Musick

Board Emeritus Members: Lynn Brady

Guest: Andrew Molosky, CEQ — Chapters Health System

! Board Cammittee Members; Michelfc pres,_r_\;"l_a'rcia Gerg, Sue Burroughs, lohn Kopc'h_ik, Frank Pugtisi, Lindsay Duggd n,_Ldrha Lee,
: Anneke Reza, Cindy Silva, Paulina Yan

HEB Staff: Bill Musick, Rahel Legasse [Virtual), Emma Baron, Dr. Mina Chang, Stacey Manley, Marlo Johnston

\;Ed_ é;,IIES:
- Start and end meetings on time « Ope person talks e Come prepared = Everyone listens
| * Focuson solutions * Respect and honor ideas *  Silence means agreement o ) |
Agenda Topics Time Leader Discussion Action/Timelines/Respansible
Welcorne/Mission M;n;entf The meeting was called 'E) order by Micheile Lopes at ! T
) Michelle Lopes 531 i
Award +3pm
_ h Bill Musick introduced Rahel Logesse, Interim CFQ,
Introductions of New Leaders ) . i
Bill Musick and 5tacey Manley, WP - Community Engagement
and Guests
- Matian: Cindy Sitva
Approval of December 12, i Second: Frank Puglisi
hell 5 e .
2023 Board mesting minutes Michelle Lope Vate: Unanimously
_ approved
East Bz re Board of Direct .
Ras lat\:r Integrated Care Board of Directors Motion: Marcia Gerg
Approval of Consent CE:E Uelzl?“'Des't nated Ownership” of Vindanta Secand: Frank Fuglisi
Calendar Michelle Lopes ang shate P nean Vote: Approved
ico Ti Timeshare unamimousl

- Mexico Timeshare RESGLVED, that this Board of Directors authorizes and ¥

I N _ directs Mats Wallin, Chief Development Officer to
Submitted by;  Bill Musick  Date: 03.26.2024



Hard Start at 5:45pm
Chapters Health System

Andrew Maolosky

reptace former Chief Executive Officer, Cynthia
Hatton, as the designated owner of the Vindanta
Timeshare an behalf of East Bay Integrated Care, inc
for communicalions, reservations, etc.

Bill Musick introduced Andrew Molosky, CEG —
Chapters Health System, who provided an overview of
Chapters Health and Care Nu, and provided thoughts
about the crealion of a Western Region of Chapters.
Andrew responded to questions from those in
attendance

Board Chair Report

Michelle Lopes

CEOQ Update

Bill Musick

Annual Quality & Safety
Update

Michelle Lopes ceded the time for other discussion

Bill Musick alluded to the CEQ Repert in the board
packet and asked for questions. He nated that the
Value Based Insurance Design pilot ta carve in hospice !
will be terminated earfy on 12/31/2024. |

Ermrma Baron

Bil! Musick calied attention to the Anhual Qualif;,ruénd
Salety Update in the board packet and asked lor
guestions thal Emma Baron responded to.

| Committees

-~ * Investment — Eric Rudney

- * Firanee — lohn Kopchik

- Audit — Cindy Silva

- ™ Strategic Flanning —
Marcia Gerg

- * Governance - Frank
Fuglisi
* Human Resources [/
Compensation — Sue
Burraughs

Michelle Lopes

Rahel Legesse reported that the Investment
Commiltee met in February and that the committee
will be reviewing the investmont manager's
perfermance at its next meeting.

lohn Kopehik reparted that the committee was
working on revising the content and [ormat of the
financial reports to the board, and that January net
aperaling incomo was dower than anticipated duc to
high labor costs.

Cindy Silva reparied that the Audit Committee would
be meeting March 14 for a kick-off meeting with
HEB's external audilors

Marcia Gerg deferred discussion to the next item on
the agenda




- *Quality;'Séféi; &
Compliance— Lindsay
Duggan

- * Development— Lorna Lee

Frank Puglisi reporiéd Ehat the committee had met (o
discuss a GivefGet Policy and was expecting Lo arrive
at a pelicy that including expectations fora
meaningful financial contribution and participation in
fund development activities to get contributions from
others. He reported that he and Bill Musick are
scheduling a meating with a board candidate
identified by Lindsay Duggan,

Sue Burroughs reported that virtual interviews were
being scheduled with four candidates for the CEC
pasition next week.

Lindsay Duggan reported that the Quality, Safety &
Compliance Committee had mat and referenced the
Annual Repart discussed earlier,

Lorna Lee called the board's attention to the Giving in
the Garden Event on May 18, and reminded board
members to drop off bottles of wine for a Beard
“Cellar” auction item, to purchase tickets and share |
information with others. Stacey Manley will ensure '
that ticket informaticn is sent to all board members.

Book Club Project

45
min

Marcia Gerg/Bill Musick

Bilt Musick led a discussion of the pros and cons of
this project.

Motion: To continue to explore this opportunity and
participate in the April 16 meeting in Lay Vegas,

"~ Motion: Cindy Silva

. Second: Frank Puglisi
" vote: Approved

T yhanimously

Future Meeting Scr-{edixltj'_“ .

Next meeting: April 25 {Mirmual)

Adjournment

|
Motion to adjourn at 7:41pm |
|

Motion: Frank Puglisi
Second: Marcia Gerg
Vote: Approved
unanimously




| Group Name: BOARD GF DIRECTORS MEETING

Facilitator: Michelle Lopes T

Time: 5:30pm-8:30pm . Mote Taker: Cynthia Lo
Lecation: Zoom [ Board Members Present: Michells Lopes,_ﬂ’r_aFcia Gerg, Sue Burroughs, John Kopchik,- Frank Puglisi, Lindsay Duggan, Larna Lee, i

Anneke Reza, Eric Rudney, Paulina Van, Larry Sly
Board Absent: Cindy Silva

Emeritus Board Present: Lynn Brady, Jamie Gersan,

Emeritus Beard Absent: BEurl Bassler, Sharan iversen, Dennis Ross, Ernie Wintter

i Staff Present: Bill Musick, Rahel Legesse, Ernma Baran, Dr. Mina Chang, Stacey Manley, Marlo Johnston, Debra Batten

ﬁ_n_'o_u_nd_f;ulés:

4 Start and end meetings on time *  One person talks « Come prepared «  Everyone listans
| = Focusonsalytians = Respect and honor ideas = Silence means agreement _
 Agenda Tapics Time | Leader . Discussian L Actien/Timelines/Responsible !
Meeling called to order at 5:30pm by Michelle Lopes o '
: Welcome/Mission Mament - Mission moment reflected on the volunteer appreciation dinner thal was C-
e : held lastpighe. _
: Approval of Lhe March 7, ; © Michelle | - Mation te approve the
2024 Baard meeating minutes . Lopes arch 7, 2024 minutes

Motion: Marcia Gerg
Second: Frank Puglisi
Vate: Approved unanimously

.

The Board's Role in an 15 | Debra - Debra Batten gave presentation on the Baard's Role in an Ellective Marle- Send Standards of
Effective Compliance min | Batten Compliance Program Business Conduct to ail Board
Program members.
Committaes T 30 | Michelle | *Committae has met since the last board meeting, draft minutes attached. -

min topas | - Seedraft minutes beginning at pp. 7 L o

Submitted by:  Cynthialo  Date: §4,25.2024



| m.rest ment — Eric Rudney

Finance — john Kopchik
- * audit - Cindy Silva

- * Human Resources /
Compensation — Sue
Burroughs

Quality, Safety &
Campliance— Lindsay
[Cuggan

Develgpment~ Lorna Lee

Strategic Planning — Marcia
* Governance- Frank Puglisi

“Investment- Last 15 months have been a good time for the equity and fixad

Michelie

incame market, We have been able to grow our endowment ta a very
encouraging amount.

Finance- 7o be reported in 17 guarter finances topic below.

Audit- Financial audit 1* draft was due on April 15" which is being reviewed
by Rahel. 403b audit is going very smoathly this year and will be completad
on time.

Strategic Planning-tabled untii later in meeting

Gavernance- Has met several times and has a recommendation on the
agenda tonight to approve a new directar. Working on give/get policy and
anticipate it will be presented at the fuly board meeting for approval.
HR/Corpensatien - CEQ recruitment will be discussed later in the agenda.
Committee met with labor atterney to review bargaining strategy.

Quality, Safety & Cempliance- Commitiee met in February 2024. Guality
measures look good and there is nothing further to report,

Development- Gearing up for Giving in the garden on May 18 All Board
members are encouraged to attend and invite friends. Botties of wine need
to he turned into Mats/Fund Develgpment. 2 Board danations received for a
_Board mateh challenge.

Nao report as everything is later in the agenda to be discussed.

Mothing additional to add 1o the CEQ report in the agenda packet

"March ¥TD financials {See attachment at pp_. 'ﬁ]-reviewed and discussed.

| Discuss and vote on Governance Committee recommendation to efect Lori
tecAdams as a directar of EBIC. {bio attached at pp. 15)

" Board Chair Report 5 min -
— Lopes
CED Update 10 Bill .
min | Musick_;
1st Quarter Financials 15 Rahel
min Legesse
/ Jehn
Kopchik
Vote to elect new Director 10 Frank
min Puglisi /
Bill
M usicl

Metion to elect Lari
ncAdams as a director of
EBIC.

Mation: John Kopchik
Second: Lindsay Duggan

Vote: Approved unanimously




| meeting will be rescheduled.

Docdle poll to see if the time scheduled for an Executive Committee meating on
Tues May 21" 5:00pm-6:00pm will work for others. If s, an Executive Committae

Book Club Decision Tas Michelle | Recommendation from the Executive Committee to: authorize the Executive i Motion to authorize the
min Lopes/ | Committee to negotiate a Letter of Intent with Book Club. I Executive Committee 1o
. Sharon Meeting notes: pp. 28; Slides: pp. 35 negotiate a Letter of Intent
lversen with the Book Club
/Bl Maotion: Anneke Reza
Musick Second: Eric Rudney :
. B ) | Vote: Approved unanimousty
CEQ Search Decision 20 Sue Recommendation from the Executive Committes: to pause the CEQ Search while taotion to pause the CEQ
i min Burroug | the Book Club praject remains under consideration. Search whila the Book Club
hs project remains under
consideration,
Mbotion: Anneke Reza
Second; Fric Rudney
- | __ L Vote: Approved unanimousl
_ Future Meeting Schedule I'Michelte | Next scheduled meeting: July 15 via Zoom Cynthia- poll Board membe
: : Lopes Praposal ta set a meeting in fate May te vote on final LOI. Cynthia will send out a for availability for meeting on

5/21/24 ot 5pm (complate)

Meeting Review
a. wWwhat worked?
b. ‘What needs to be
daone differently?

Mation to éﬁjourn meeting at
I 8 13pm

i Motion: Marcia Gerg

, Second: sue Burroughs

1 Vote; Approved unanimeusly !
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1HospiceEast Bay | Group Name: BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING- SPECIAL MEETING ON BOOK CLUB LOI

Date: May 21,2024
Time: 5:00pm-6:00pm

Lecation: Zoom

i

Facilitator: Michelle Lopes

i Note Taker: Cynthia Lo

Board I'\._ﬂé_rr{bers PEésent: Michelle Lopes, Sue Burreughs, John I(opchﬂ;, _F-rénk Puglist, Lorna Lee, Anneke Reza, Eric Rudnev,ml-.érw Sly,
Lori Mcadams, Pauling Van

Baoard Absent: Cindy Silva, Marcia Gerg, Lindsay Duggan

Emeritus Board Present: Sharon lversen

- HEB Staff Present: Bill Musick, Mina Chang

Guests: Robert Miller, Hooper Lundy

Ground Rules;

«  5tart and end meetings on time = One person talks » Came prepared s Everygne listens
. w  Foeus on solutions % Respert and honor ideas + Silence means agreement .
Agenda Topics Time ~ Leader | Discussian o Actiunﬁimelinesfﬂe_sg_lt_msible
e : - Meeting called to crder by Michelle Lopes at 5:01pm
Wemome”mw_'f]?_n Moment ; - Introdugtion of aur newest Board member, Lori McAdams
i - Motion to approve the April 25,
- ) 2024 minutes.

E.c!ard of Directors Mechqg | Michelle Metion: Eric Rudney
Minutes approval for April 2 min N ) .
28 3034 Lopes Second: Frank Fuglisi

) Vate: Approved unanimously

T - Bill provided an update on the Book Club project. Meeting scheduied in T
15 Bitl Tampa with the hospice CEQ's, Andrew Molasky and the Book Club
E t . : ) i \ -
ook Club Update min Musick leadership. One day of this meeting witl be to work out details of
L | teadership and governance for a Western Region i
Submitted by: Cymthia Lo Date: 05.21.2024
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Preview for July 15 Board
Meeting

Bitl reviewed the key items:'kév-igrms that have been discussed and
included in the LOI senl via emaif on 5/20/24.

The Book Club has set a desired timeline to have atl LOI's signed by May
31%. The next step would be all due diligence completed by end of
Julyfbeginning of August. A Definitive Agreemenl would then follow. The
next step would be regulatory approvals. The timeline for regulatory
approvals is more an unknown as it is out of our control, We could dose
the deal after we receive reguiatory approvals. The first three monLhs
following the clase are planned as an assessment period with no changes,
with a focus on integrating funclions across the local, regional gr parent

Bill referred to the draft due diligence request that was sent out with the
draft LOl. There were no comments. He will plan to send that with the
signed LOJ.

Motion to approve the LOI
{sent via email by Bill Muysick
on 5/20/24),

Motien: Frank Fuglisi
Secand: Larry Sly
Vote: Approved unanimousiy

Bill provided a quika teview of the propased agenda topics for he July 15 board

2023 Audit Fresentation

Guest Speaker: The Board's Fiduciary Responsibilities
May YTD Financials

Give AND Get Paficy

20 Bill
min Musick
level.,
meeling.
.| Bill
S min -
Musick

Labor Strategy/Update

Boak Project Update

Decision on August Meeting (planned as retreat - likely to change with
Book Club project)

¢ Future Meeting chedule

) luly 15™ at 5:30pm

Thera was consensus Lhal Lhis meeting be held In-Persan {with Zoom
aplion]

Motion Lo adjourn meeting at
6. 02pm

Matian- Frank Puglisi
Second- fohn Kopchik .
Vote: Approved unanimously
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“Date: July 15, 2024

7 [Hospice East Bay

Group Name: BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Time: 5:30pm 8:30pm

Facilitator: Michelle Lopes

Nate Taker: Cynthia Lo

Lacatign: HED Offices/ Zoom

TOMTLES N P pwd -7 asBsuub
CRedcocEGRIVEDm Uy oL, ],
Meeling |D: 876 B7G2 5755
Passcode: 6150138

Bopard Members Present in Parson: Wichelle Lopes, Sue Burroughs, lohn Kopchik', Linasé-\,r_lihggan, Lorna Lee, Cindy Silva, Larry Slv,_--

Lori McAdams, Anneke Reza

Board Members Present via Zoom: Eric Rudney, Paulina ¥an

Board Members Absent: Marcia Gerg, Frank Puglisi

Baard Emeritus Present via Zoom: Lynn Brady, Sharon lversen

_: HERB Stafi: 8l Musick, Emma Baron, Stacey Manley, Rahel Legesse, Mina Chang, Marlo Johnston, Stacie Chin

- Guests: Noel Caughman, Best, Best & Krieger LLP; Renee Gravalin, Eide Bailey

Ground Rules;

=  Start and end meetings on time = One person talks = Come prepared *  Everyone listens
*  Focus an solutlons +  PRespect and honor fdeas »  Silence means agreerent .
) Agenda Tapics Time ~ Leader Discussion . Action/T imelines/Responsible
o Moment of silence for Calherine MclLanahan (Jamie Gerson's
Welceme/Mission Moment Zmin ; Michelle Lopes mather) -
L Congratulations- Paulina Van-Luminary Felfowship R
Guest Speaker: The Board's |, Noel Caughman presented. Cynthia Send out documents
Fiduciary Respansibilitiag ~: Noel Caughman & PPT provided by Noel (o
e
{PPT} board members
| Renee Gravalin presenled the financial audit. T T ] Metionta accept the 2022
? On the balance sheel what/who are “Funds held for others®? financial audit, as presented.
Financial Audit presentation 20 Renee Gravalin That line is related te stale dated che;ks as part gfthe Motion: Cindy Silva
min escheatment process. They are held in thal account until we | Second: Sue Burroughs
need to send them to the state Vote: Approved unanimeoushy
Submitted by:  Cynthia Lo Date:  07.15.2024




Board of Directors Meating

Motion to approve the May
21, 2024 minutes
Matian: Sue Burroughs

Governance Commitlee;
" Wole to elect Marta Hudson
 asdirector with term Jul
: 15,2024 — Dec 31, 2026 !

5 min : Cindy Silva

- Lori McAdams- Cindy Silva
- Marta Hudson- Bill will follow up with Board

Minutes Approval for May 2 min i Michelle Lopes Second: Cindy Silva
2, 2024 _
Vote: Approved
I - S | anonymously
. Board Chair Comments 5 min | Michelle Lopes - Deferred comments for discussion on topics later on the agenda
- Sue Burrnugh_s gave an overview of the 403b audit and letter of Motion to approve the 403h |
HR Commitlee: Yole on correcltions [O.r 5 findings. _ audif as pniesenlfad
recommendation to apprave | 5 min | Sue Burroughs - We WIHI be going back to review all ermployees ta ensure that all j Motion: Cindy Silva
403 audit corrections needed are rmade. ~ Second: Larry Sly
' We will report back to the board once we have developed the action | Woete: Approved unanimously
B plan and how we will be moving forward. B
- Mediation currently scheduled for August 2™ for PAGA case. Mation Lo autherize Miche
Lopes, Sue Burroughs and
lohn Kopchik 10 work with
HER staff to set PAGA
Authorization for Task Forge ) . . negotiating cap and strategy
to Set PAGA Negatiating Cap >min | Bl Musick onghehalf of the Board
Matian: Cindy Silva
Second: Linday Duggan
Vote: Approved unanimously
- Reminder: Buddies for Lori MeAdams and Marta Hudson Mation ta elact Marta

Hudson as Director for term
of July 15, 2024-Decemhber
31, 2006

Motion: Cindy Silva
" Second: Anneke Reza
i Yote: Approved unanimously i
]
| .




" Group Name: BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING DR 5T

Date: August 26, 2024
Time: 12:00pm-5:00pm

Location: Hospice East Bay,
3470 Buskirk Avenue,
Pleasant Hill, CA / Zoom

Jain 2Zoom Meating

OO, 00 e/

Meeting [Dv 822 4354 3767

Note Taker: Cynthia Lo

Facllitator: Michelle Lopes

Board Members Present In gersoﬂ':"i';'iichelle Lopes, Sue Burroughs, John I{BbchiI; Frank Puglisi, Lorna Lee, Anncke Rc:'.a, Cindy ilva,

Larry Shy, Lori McAdams, Marta Hudsan

Board Members Present via Zoom: Eric Rudney, Paulina Van, Marcia Gerg

Emeritus Board Present tn persan: Sharon [versen, Lynn Brady

Emeritus Board Present via Zaom: lamie Gerson

HEB Staff: Bill Musick, Rahel Legesse, Emma Baron, Dr. Mina Chang, Stacey Manley, Marle Johnstan

Guests: Robert Miller- Hooper Lundy; Andrew Moloslky-CH3

Agenda Topics finje Leader Discussien Action/Timelings/Respansible |

tn-Persoan Lunch 1200 | Al - Maeeting calied to order at 12:19pm by Michelle Lopes - e
: ! i - Moment of Silence in acknowledgement of the passing of Patricia loyce
* Welcome/Mission 290 ! Michelle | Sobeck [Sue Burrough’s mather) i
* Moment/Chair Camments ' : Lopes Congratulations to Marcia Gerg and Larry Sly on the hirths of their
i ! grandehildren.

: - 14 active voting members {11 in person, 3 via Zoom Marcia Gerg had to
: ) X leave meeting at 1:45pm)
; Role Call/Quorum of Active 12:25 Cynthia Lo 3 emeritus members {2 in persen, 1 via Zoom)
i Members | - 5 members of the HEB leadership team
| i - We have met guarum .
: Board of Directors Meeting ! Michelle - Wotion to apprave the July
| Minutes Approval for July  [12:30 | Lopes 15, 2024 minutes
| 15, 2024 P Motion: Frank Puglisi
Submitted by:  Cynthia Lo Date: 08.26.2024




Committee Reporls
" Investment - Eric Rudney

Finance - John kopehik
- Audil - Cindy Silva

- Strategic Planming —
tarcia

i Second: Cindy Silva :
i Vote: Approved unanimously

*Committes has met since the last board meating, draft minutes attached
| {Governance & Development). See draft minutes beginning at pp. 11

Investment- will ba maating tomorrow, Market increases recently have
us in avery goad posilion. We have made the decision 1o continue with
lohn Fogue of KCMW Envestment Advisors for another 3 years,

Finance have not met since last Board meating, Census is still low but
we can see improvements in rate of expenditures. Bruns House is having

HR/Comp- have nol mel since last Board meeting. [ssues reportad in

Development Upcoming events include Hops for Hospice, Bruns Brick
Ceremaony, Tree Of Lights. Gala planning has slarted for 2025,

Move to approve Conflict of Interast Policy [see Governance Committee

i Motion 10 approve Conflict of

interest Policy

Mation: Cindy Silva

Second: Anneke Reza
‘Jo_te Approved unanimausly

Rabert explained membership substitution and what that means for HEB in

Affiliation agresment may have additional future changes based on the

resodution of final issues with Book Club and what other members afthe
Western Region might propose.

The updated bylaws acl just fike our current bylaws. The key differenca
relates to the reserved rights as Beak Club as the sole member.

- Human Rescurcas / i12'35 Michalle ane of its belter years financially,
Compensation — Sue ' Lopes Audit Nothing to repart
Burroughs : Strategic Planning- Nothing Lo report
- Quality, Safety & CEO Reporl
g?jrgrglance— Lindsay ; QSC- will be meeting tomorrow
n .
* Davalopment— Lorna Lee ?
* Governance — Frank Puglisi Governance- Conflicl of interest vote below
ft mi ]
Gavernance Committee; 19.58 Frank draft minutes]
1 Conflict of Interest Policy =7 | puglisi
T Review of affiliation documents {provided in tﬁ;._agen'd-a packet) by Robert
Miller.
Overview of Affiliation .00~ | Robert this siluation.
Documents and Process 130 tiller




Discussion related to pros and ¢ons of HEB signing the definitive
agreement earlier than the other potential affiliates. HEB will need to go
through regulatory approvals process that the other potential affiliates are
not required to do. If we sign seener than the other affiliates, we may be
able to start this process sooner so that there is a better chance that all
affiliates will close at the same time. The risk of starting this process and
seeking regulatory approval from the Attorney General before closing is
that the transaction information will become public and could be disclosed
through a public records request. We would request a confidentiality
clause in place so that it would not become pubhic and if not agreed upan,
we will likely wait until we have made our public announcement when all
affiliates have signed definitive agreements.

; CGuaestions by Category

1:30 -
1:45

All

Discussion surrounding prajections of future financial implications being
done by the other affiliates. The results will be shared with HEB.

Sharing of potential revisions to the definitive agreement are being sharad
between the affiliates.

Discussion regarding the restrictions on use of Hospice East Bay assets:
maintenance of specialty programs.

Discussion regarding the makeup of the Board of Directors under the
potential affiliation as well as the Western Regien advisory council.
Discussion regarding the use of HEB investment dollars designated for use
in the local service area.

Break

045 -
[2:00

Aemarks from and
Questions for CHS CEO

00—
B0

Andrew
Molasky

Intraduction, background, and ger_waal comments by Andrew Malosky

~ Questions by Board members of Andrew and_f_a:)_llow__l.lp diseussion.

Additional Discussion

B:00 -
B:30

AllS
Robert
Miller

Reactions from 0 & A with Andrew Molosky

Androw comes across as very consistent. He doesn’t change his answers
based on haw Lhe question s asked or who asks it

Discussion about the Book Club leadership team.

Employee engagement scores are impressive

Pieased with Andrew’s respenses areund payroll and benefits

Very encouraging in terms of support of specialty programs as lang as we
cover any expenses due to them being unprofitable.




- It felt like we would be joining a “family” and not being hought out and

—_— —— - OVQrShEdDWEd' e e e . - —_
For all board members, emeritus members, and leadership staff, what is your
sense? (no vote from Eric Rudney or Marcia Gerg who were not avaitable at this
Consensus poll on approval  B:30— | Michelle time in the meeting)
cf Affiliation Resolution B:40 i Lopes Fully Approve - 19
’ - Approve with Reservations -1
e . - Serious Reservations -0
B0 — -
Break L L 50 ) .
Any further discussion from  3:50— | Voting None
| ¥oting members? 410 [ Members R i
: - Further Bpard action would be needed if there is material change 1o the
definitive agreemenl.
- The Board would like 3 communication from Bill Musick prior to signing of | Motion to approve the
the agreement as 1o whether Lhere have been any changes or updates to | affiliation reselution, as
the decument. presented [gives Bill Mysick
Official Vote * the authority Lo sign the
- Bill Musick- yes ; definilive agreement and
4:10 - Michelle Lopes- yes i bylaws, with the date of
Vote on resolution to * Wichelle Frarmk Puglisi- yes signing being al his
approve affiliation : - - Lopos - Marta Hudsorn yes discretion)
P 420 . .
I - Cindy Silva- yes
John Kopehik- yes Mation: Cingy Silva
- Larry Siy- yes Secand: Frank Puglisi
- Sue Burroughs- yes Vote: Approved
Anncke Brezo- yes unanirnously
- Lori Mcadams- yes
1 - Lorna Lee- yos
o - Dr. Paulina Van- yes B
Governance Committee T - Proposal is that each ef the new affiliales woufd cach nominate 2 Mation to nominate Michelie
: Recommendalion on Waoest 420 | Frank merrthers from their current hoard. Lopes and Pauylina Wan as the
. Region Council - Puglist Discussion took place at the Governange committee about who those 2 Hospice Easl Bay
_ Representatives 4:30 merrhers should he, If this propesal is adopted. .. __ | representatives to the !




Survey was sent oul Lo Board members about their desire to be on the
Western Regions Advisory Board and strong interest was shown by
Michelle Lopes and Paulina van.

Council, should the most
recent propasal for the
Weslern Region Council be
1 approved by Book Club

. Motian: Frank Fuglisi
Second: Sue Burroughs
Vote: Approved
uranimaously

Weslern F:!eéié} Advisary

Executive Committes
recommendation en CEQ
SUCCassion

Communications
Plan/Confidentiality

430 Michelke

_ Lopes f
 Sue

4:4 i

3 | Burroughs

i
i
i

45 1 g

4:55 MU sbck

Alwhat point do we transition to Executive Director Lo replace Bill?
One suggestion is Lo have a bridge period with Bill Musick remaining as
CED, bring on COO/ED apparent. Bill would cut Back on his time and salary
and the reporting structure would change so that the CO0 would Lake on
the areas they would have reparting to them as the Executive Director

Of the two previously vetted finalists for the CEQ position, one is still
interested but is actively interviewing. The second candidate is no langer
inlerested.

The Executive Committes felt thal we should have on-site interviews for at
least 2 candidates.

Our recruiter suggested that we interview 2 candidales that we didn’t
interview far the CEQ position but that may be good candidates for the
Executive Director pasition.

Suggestion to bring Keith Everrett in for an onsite interview while
screening other candidates.

HR/CED Search committee will reengage recruiter, meet to discuss, narrow

down candidates, and begin interviews for Lhe COO/ED position, once
candidates identified.

Bill has committed te stay full time through December and through Fune
part time,

Cynthfa- set up CEQ Search
Committee meeting withir
the next week

Holding off gn any communication until all of the affiliates have signed
definitive agreements.

Meeting tomorrow with Book Club leadership to discuss our future
communications plans.




Future Meet-i-ﬁgc_hgd-l.l_ }e‘ B

~__October 8% ~ 5:300m [virtuai]

Mesting Review
a. What worked?
b. what needs to be

Motion 1o adjourn meeting at 3:54pm
Mation; Frank Puglisi
Second: lohn Kopchick

i Vote: Approved unanimously

done differently?



Group Name: EBIC STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE J#aFT

Time: 3:00pm-4:00pm

" Facikitator;

Marcia Gerg

MNote Taker Cynthia Lo

! Location: Zoom

hipsy fustiyieh, zoom,us S
A825921274 pwid=xazjladC

STy T i S GalhndLr L
Meeting |D: 844 2682 1274
Passcode: 284726

Soard Present: Marcia Gerg, lohn Kopchik, Cindy Silva',”L_dri Mcadams
Board Absent: Jue Burroughs, Frank Puglisi
Emeritus Board Present: Lynn Brady, lamic Gerson

Staff Present: Bill Musick, Rahel Legesse, Emma Baron

" und ﬁules:
Start and end meetings on time = One person talks =  Come prepared = Everyone listens
» _Focus on sciutions = Respect and honor ideas » S#ence means agreement L
__ Agenda Topics . Time | Leader Discussien Action/Timelines/Respunsible
| Welcome/Mission Moment - -
- Motion to approve the
March 5, 2024 meeting
. . . minules
Strate.gu: P[gnnlng Commitiee | Marcia Motion: Cindy Silva
Meeting Minutes Apgroval 2min . .
for March 5, 2024 Gerg Second: Marcia Gerg )
Vote: Approved — Lori
McAdams and Jahn Kopehik
i . . abstained
Bitl provided an overview of the Hospice Care Accountability, Reform and
! Hospice CARE Act —Rep 10 Bill | Enforcement {CARE)} Acl that was introduced in Congress this month. It would be a
' Blumenayer _min Musick | majar reform of the Medicare Hospice Benefit and assaciated regulations. He )
; _ | highlighted same key arcas that cqq_l(_:l_impact HEE if it is passed in its current fUrnl. 1
: - ) i gave an avervicw of the information that was discussed by a small task force
¢ Bruns House and Specialty 30 Bill {Bill, Cindy, John, Lari) that met after discussiens about language specific to the
~ Programs P min | Musick | Bruns House in the affifiation agreement. The intent in this meeting is to help
b ' | ensure that there is a commaon understanding of the current programs (Weterans |
Submitted by:  Cynthia Lo Date: 10.18.2024



) .Program, Bruns House, 8ridge Progrém, Music Therapy) and determine what next |

| steps, if any, the board would like to take,

Criteria Lo use when looking at whelher or nol 19 continue these programs:

- Review programs in tenrms of which ones help make a difference in
terms of referral sources/patients and families would be more likety to
use HEB than another hospice program.

- Which programs are more likely Lo be supported by grants if we make a
concerted effort moving forward?

- Suggestion o invest in somegne that is good at grant writing to work with
the Fund Development department.

202% Goals

15
min

EF‘L‘IFE MMeeting Schedule

8ill
rAusick

For 2025, 8ill proposed that we continue our 2024 goals with the addition of an
Affiliation goal and caveat in that regard.
1. Adopl goals that are timely markers for achieving a CM3 Four-Star Rating
of Service Guality
2. Achieve Lurngyer rale of 22% or less (as a marker for employee
engagement)™
3. Exhibit financial discipline by a net operating margin equal to or better
than budget®
4. Fermulate affiliation integration plan and succe ssfully implement regional
- prionties
* Subfect ta impact by #4

- Meeting adjourned at 4505pm

Weeling Review
a. ‘What worked?
b. What needs to be

done differently?
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MEDICAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

RECITALS

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS

3.2 AVAILABILITY

4.1 CoONDUCT

4.2 MEMBERSIIM

411 COMPLIANCE . _

413 {Isk OF MAME

415 NOTIFICATION

SECTION 6: PAYMENTS

6.5 MEMBER BILLING

7.3 REPORTING_

5
]
SECTION 2: MEDICAL GROUP REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 10
2.1 RLUPRESENTA TIONS/WARRANTIES/QUALIFICATIONS . _ — - 10
SECTION 3: MEDICAL GROUP RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PROVISION OF SERVICES 11
31 COVERED SERVICLS, o _ 11
: _ 12
33 ELIGIRILITY YERIFICATION AND PROC‘FDIJRLS I
34 REFERRALS AND ALUTIIORIZATIONS _13
35 CMERGENCY SERVICES . L 13
36 PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES/PERSONNEL __ 14
37 QUTPATIENT DRUG FORMULARY AND PHARMACY 1N H)RMATIO\I . 14
I8 UMTILIZATION MANAGEMINT_ _ 14
SECTION 4; MEDICAL GROUP ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES 15
; oo i 15
. - ) 15
43 PROVINER NETWORK AND PRACTICE INFORMATION ~ 16
435 QUALITY IMPROVEMENT, AT
46 CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY APPROPRIATE SFRVICES (CLAS) PROGRAM ___ 15
47 FACILITY SITE REVIEW _ ) R I8
4.8 REQUIRED DHSCLOSURL 18
4.9 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING, ) 19
410 LIABILITY AND RLSPONSIGILITY FOR EMPLOYERS AND/OR ‘;wc ONTRACTORS 19
19
4,12 OTHER PROGRAMS _ _ 18
- _ 20
414 ALAMEDA ALLIANCH C(JMMITTEES _ _ 20
__20
5.1 ADMINISTRATION | _ e 20
52 PROVIDER MANUAL;‘PROVISION or PROTOLOLS WD PRoc FDLRES, o __ 20
5.3 MEMBER FLIGIRILITY/ROSTLRS_ _ 20
5.4 DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION L 21
5.5 SUPPORT SERVICES . 21
21
6.1 PAYMENT FOR COVERED SERVICES PROVIDED BY MEDICAL GROUP__ 21
6.2 PAYMENTS FOR NON-COVERED SERVICES _ 22
6.3 THIRD PARTY [.IENS _ 23
6.4 {COORDINATION OF BUENLFITS s o 23
23
6.6 LIMITATION OF ACTION _ 24
6.7 WITIZIOLN AND ADJUSTMENTS OF P»u MENTS _ . — _ _ 4
SECTION 7: RECORDS, AUDITS AND REPORTS 24
7.1 RECORDS T0 BE KEPT _ _ o224
72 INSPECTION RIGHTS - - ——__.. 25
26
2
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7.4  REQUIRED CHANGES . . . } 20
SECTION 8: INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 26
1 PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE, e 26
82  OTHUR INSURANCE_ , —— e 26
83 CHRITFICATES OF [NSURANCE, . . ..
8.4 NOTITICATION OF MODIFICATION/TERMINATION OF MATERIAL TERMS_ - ... .26
B.5 INDEMNTFICATION OF ALLAMEDA ALLIANCE - —_— 26
8.6 [NDEMNFICATION OF MEDICAL GROUP _ o 27
SECTION 9: MEMBER GRIEVANCES 27
g1 SUBMISSION OF MEMBGR GRIEVANCE . e T
9.2 RESOLUTION OF MEMRER GRIEVANCE ) - 27
SECTION 10: PROVIDER GRIEVANCES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 27
10.1  PROVIDER GRIEVANCES o 3 . — 27
10.2  DnspUTE RESOLUTION_ —_ —— .28
SECTION 11: TERM, TERMINATION AND NOTICE 29
1.1 TerMm o .. . . 29
112 TERMINATION WITHOUT CALSE o _ e 79
113 TERMINATION FOR MaTiRiAL BREACH e - .28
11.4  ADDITIONAL BASES FOR TERMINATION _ . - — 30
115 IMMEDIATE TERMINATION 3 o _— 30
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SECTION 12: GENERAL PROVISIONS 32
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MEDICAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Between
ALAMEDA ALLIANCE FOR HEALTH
and

East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. DBA Hospice of the East Bay

This Medical Services Agreement is entered into between East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. DBA Hospice
of the East Bay (“Medical Group”) and ALAMEDA ALLIANGE FOR HEALTH (referrad to as “Alarmeda
Alliance™) te be effective on_ay 1, 2022

RECITALS

A. Alameda Alliance for Health is a public entity licensed by the California Department of
Managed Health Care ("DMHC") as a health care service plan in the Siale of California pursuant to the
Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975 as amended (California Health and Safety Code
Sections 1340 et seq.), and the regulations promulgated thereunder {collectively, the “Knox-Keene Act”).

B. Alameda Alliance for Health has entered into an agreement with the California Department of
Health Care Services ("DHCS"). Alameda Alliance has entered into an agreement(s) with the Public
Authority of Alameda County for In-Home Supportive Services Workers (*Public Authority™).

C. Pursuant to Alameda Alliance Agreements, Alameda Alliance has agreed to provide or
arrange for the provision of specified covered health care services and supplies to eligible Alameda
Alliance Program Members who enrall in an Alameda Alliance Program, including primary and specialty
care professional, clinic, inpatient and outpatient hospitat and Ancillary Services.

D. Medical Group represents that it is licensed and qualified to provide ar arrange for the
delivery of the health care services contempiated herein either directly or through contracting providers.

E. Alameda Alliance desires to engage Medical Group 1o render certain professional health care
services to Members and Medical Group desires to provide such health care professional services to
Members, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the muiual covenants set forth in
this Agreement, Alameda Alliance and Medical Group agree as follows:

{Remainder of page left intentionally blank.)
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS

In addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following capitalized terms shall be defined
as foliows:

1.1 “alameda Alliance Agreement(s)” means the agreement or agreements between Alameda
Alliance and DHCS under the Two-Plan Madei for Medi-Cai Managed Care as the Loca! Initiative Plan in
the County of Alameda ('Medi-Cal Agreement”), Public Authority of Alameda County for In-Home
Supportive Services Workers (“Public Authority Agreement”) and/or with such other entities that Alameda
Alliance may enter into an agreement with to provide or arrange for the provision of Covered Services
and supplies.

1.2 “Alameda Afliance Program{s)” means the program or programs under the applicable Alameda
Affance Agreement to provide or arrange for the provision of Covered Services and supplies to eligible

Members and/or such other programs Alameda Alliance may establish.

1.3 _“Ancillary Services” means those support services other than physician services that are
provided by an Ancillary Services Provider and include but are not limited to laboratory, radiclogy, and
physical therapy.

14 “Ancillary Services Proyider” means an individual or entity that provides cerfain medical services
dispensed by order or prescription from a provider with the appropriate prescribing authority.

1,5 “Applicable Requiremenis’ means the following legal, regulatory and contractual requirements as
they may be revised during the term of this Agreement: (i) applicable Federal, State, and local Jaws and

reguiations (inciuding, but not limited to, applicable provisions of the Knox-Keene Act; the Medicare and
Medi-Cal Managed Care laws, regulations, guidelines, programs and instructions as well as laws
governing the use of Federal and State funds, such as the fraud and abuse prevention and detection
laws, anti-kickback iaws, the Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabitities Act, age discrimination laws,
criminai laws, and the Veteran's Preference law); (it) the provisions of Alameda Alliance Agreements,
Alameda Alliance Programs and their associated Evidence of Coverages applicable to agreements; (i)
Medicare and Medi-Cal certification requirements; {iv) applicable accreditation requirements and (v) The
Provider Manual. The following agencies have jurisdiction over Alameda Alliance and are responsible for
enforcing the Applicable Requirements and the terms of this Agreement: DHCS, CMS, DMHC, the
Government Accountability Office, the Office of Inspector General, the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services and the County of Alameda.

16 “Attachment” means any document, including an addendum, schedule or exhibit, attached to this
Agreement as of the Effective Date or that becomes attached pursuant to any Sections, all of which are
hereby incorporated herein by reference and may be amended from time to time as provided herein.

1.7 “Autherization” means the procedure for obtaining the prior approval of Alameda Aliiance for the
provision of Cavered Services when such approval is required by Alameda Alliance, as further described in
this Agreement and the Provider Manual.

1.8 “Capitated Services” means those Covered Services that Medical Group is responsible for
providing to Medical Group Members for which Medical Group receives Capitation, as set forth in the
Provider Manual.

1.9 “Capitation” or “Capitated” means the single fixed monthly payment paid by Alameda Afliance to
Medical Group for each Medical Group Member te provide the Covered Services.

1.10 “Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Servicgs” or "GMS" shall mean the federal agency that
administers the Medicare program and is part of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

1.11 “Center{s) of Excellence” means a health care facility that is a Participating Provider and has been
designated as a facility where services to Members requiring specialized Covered Services shall be
pravided.
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1.12 "Claims Processing” means the processing of a request for payment for the provision of Covered
Services not covered in Capitation to Medical Group.

1.13 ZClean Claim"” means, for purposes of this Agreement, a claim, or portion thereof, if separable, for
Covered Services which contains alf of the UB-04, CMS 1500, or electronic claim forms data elements,
includes any attachments and supplemental information or documentation, if applicable, which provides
relevant and necessary infermation to determine payer liability, and is submitted within the timeframes set
forth herein.

1.14 “Coordination of Benefits® means the determination of whether Covered Services provided to a
Member will be paid for, either in whole or in part, under any other private or government health benefit
plan or any other legal or contractual entitlement, including, but not limited to, a private group
indemnification or insurance program.

1.15 “Copayment” means those charges for Covered Services, if any allowed under the applicable
Alameda Alliance Agreement and associated Evidence of Coverage, which may be collected directly by a
Medical Group Provider from a Member as payment in addition to the compensation paid hereunger.

1.16 IContracted Provider” means a physician, hospitai, health care professicnal or any other
provider of items or services that is (i) is an employee by or has a contractual relationship with Medical
Group, and (i) has been approved for participation by Alameda Afliance. The term "Contracted Provider"
includes Provider for those Covered Services provided by Provider for which Provider has been approved
for participation by Alameda Alliance.

1.17 "Covered Services” means alt of the Medically Necessary supplies and health care services
including services by primary and specialty providers, clinic, inpatient and cutpatient hospital, ancillary
and telemedicine services which a Member is entitied to receive from Alameda Afliance under the
applicable Alameda Alliance Agreement and Evidence of Coverage, and/cr appficable law as determined
by Alameda Alliance. Covered Services shall include any other health care services required to be
covered by Alameda Allfance Programs, or other law or by Alameda Altiance Agreements, inciuding but
not limited to autism services that are not the responsibility of a separate behavioral heaith
program/vendor. Final determination of whether or not a service is covered will be made by Alarneda
Alliance in accordance with the Member's applicable Evidence of Coverage and Alameda Alliance
Agreement.

f.18 "Covering Physician” means a Participating Physician {including a locum tenens physician)
approved by Alameda Alliance who is engaged by a Participating Physician to provide Covered Services
on behalf of that Participating Physician when that Participating Physician is not able to provide such
services.

1.1¢ “Credentialing” means the process for validating the qualifications of licensed professionals to
provide services to Members. It includes an abjective evaluation of the providers’ current licensure,
training or experience, competence, and ability to provide or perform particular services or procedures.
Alameda Alliance follows National Committee on Quality Assurance (NCQA) guidslines in conjunction
with special Credentialing guidelines required by State reguiation and policy.

1.20 "DHCE" means the California Department of Health Care Services.

121 "RDMHC" means the Department of Managed Health Care which is the California State agency
respansible for the administration of the Knox-Keene Act.

1.22 “Emergency Services’ means those Covered Services provided for a medical condition including
emergency labor and delivery manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity {inctuding severe
pain} such that a prudent layperson, who possesses an average knowledge of health and medicine, could
reasonably expect the absence of immediate medical attention to result in (i) placing the heaith of the
individual (or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or her unborn child) in serious
jeopardy, (i) serious impairment to a bedily function, or (jii} serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or
part. Emergency Services shall mean those medical and hospital services required that are furnished by
a physician, physician assistant or other person gualified to provide Emergency Services and needed to
evaluate, provide consultation or stabilize emergency medica! conditions as described above. Emergency
7
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Services shall inciude screenings, examinations and evaiuations for the purpose of determining wheiher a
psychiatric emergency medicai condition exists, and whether treatment is necessary to relieve or
eliminate the psychiatric emergency medical condition.

1.23 “Eligibility Verification System" means the system set forth in the Alameda Alliance Provider
Marual for the Participating Physician to verify the eligibitity of Members to receive Covered Services.

1.24 "Exigence of Coverage® means the Combined Evidence of Coverage and Disclosure Form and
any amendments thereto, issued to Members by Alameda Alliance in connection with the applicable
Alameda Alliance Program.

1.25 “Fee-For-Service” means the direct payment by Alameda Alliance to Medical Group for Covered
Services or Non-Capitated Services that Medical Group Provider provides to Members. The lowest
allowable Fee-For-Service Medi-Cal payment that is permitted by DHCS.

1.26 “Medi-Cal Fee Scheduyle’ refers to the rates or fee schedule published by the DHCS for services
provided under the state's Medi-Cal Fee-For-Service program.

1.27 “Medical Group Member" means a Member who chooses Medical Group and/or is assigned to a
Medical Group Provider,

1.28 “Medical Group Physician" means a physician who is ticensed by the State of Califoria and
certified to participate in the Medicare and/or Medi-Cal Programs and is, {i) employed by or under contract
with Medica! Group, and (i) credentialed by Alameda Alliance or Medical Group as applicable to furnish
Covered Services to Medical Group Members pursuant to this Agreement.

1.2¢ “Medical Group Provider” means a Medical Group Physician or a nor-physician medical
practitioner, employed by or under contract with Medical Group, collectively or individually, and
credentialed by Alameda Alliance or Medical Group as applicable tc furnish Covered Services to Medical
Group Members pursuant {o this Agreement.

1.30 “Medical Group Subcontract” means the writien contract between Medical Group and each
Medical Group Provider, in a form approved by Alameda Alliance and Medical Group pursuant to which
Medical Group Providers agree to provide services to Medical Group Members.

1.31 “Medically Necessary’ or “Madical Negessity” means those health care services and supplies
which are provided in accordance with recognized professional medical and surgical practices and standards
which are determined by Alameda Alliance or by Medical Group to be: (1) appropriate and necessary for the
symptoms, diagnosis or treatment of Member's medical condition; and (i) provided fer the diagnosis and
direct care and treatment of such medical condition; and i) not furnished primarily for the convenience of
Member, Member's family, or the treating provider or other pravider; and {iv) furnished at the most
appropriate level which can be provided consistent with generally accepted medical standards of care; and
(v) consistent with Alameda Alliance policies. If there are two or more Medically Necessary services that
may be provided for the iliness, injury, or medical condition, Alameda Alliance will provide benefits based
on the most cost-effective service.

1.32 “Medicare Rafes” refers to the rates published by CMS for Alameda County for the services
provided under the Medicare program.

1.33 “Member’ means an Alameda Alliance Program beneficiary who meets Alameda Alliance’s
enroliment gualifications and who is enrclled in and identified by Alameda Alliance as a member of an
Alameda Alliance Program and eligible to receive Covered Services.

1.34 “Member Grievance” means any written or oral expression of dissatisfaction made by a Member or
the Member's representative.

1.35 "Member Grievance Procedures” means the provisions of the applicable Evidence of Coverage

that describe the procedures for the receipt, handling and disposition of Member Grievances. A summary
of Alameda Alliance’s typical grievance process is set forth in the Provider Manual. However, the
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procedire set forth in Member's Evidence of Coverage or required by law shall control the grievance
process as to that Member, if different from the procedures set forth in the Provider Manual.

1.36 "Mepn-Capitated Services” means those Covered Services for which Medical Group is not
Capitated as set forth in the Provider Manual.

1.37 "Non-Covered Services” means those services excluded from coverage pursuant to the applicable
Alameda Alliance Agreement and the applicable Evidence of Coverage under Medi-Cal and Group Care.

1.38 "Non-Medical Group Member” means any Member who is not assigned to Medical Group.

1.39 "Padicipating Hospital” means an institution licensed by the State of California as an acute care
hospital, skified nursing facility, or other licensed facility, which has an agreement with Alameda Alliance
to furpish Covered Services to Members.

1.40 “Paricipating Phvsician” means a credentialed Physician certified or authorized to render health
care services and who has an agreement with Alameda Alliance or a delegated medical group to furnish
Covered Services to Members,

1.41 "Padicipatina Provider” means any credentialed health professional, entity or institution certified
or authotized to render health care services and who has an agreement with Alameda Alliance or a
delegated medical group to furnish Covered Services to Members. Participating Provider includes but is
not fimited to nurse practifioners, physician assistants, and nurse midwives.

1.42 ‘Brimary Care Physician® or "BCP" means a Participating Physician selected by a Member or who
has been assigned by Alameda Alliance to render first contact medical care and to provide covered
primary care services. Primary Care Physicians may include general and family practitioners, internists,
pediatricians, and may also include Physicians in other areas of practice or organized groups of Primary
Care Physicians (e.g. professicnal corporations, Community Health Centers, Federally Qualified Heatth
Centers, etc.), to the extent permitted by Alameda Alliance and agplicable law.

1.43 "Provider Grieyapce” means Participating Praovider's written notice to Alameda Alliance
challenging, appealing or requesting reconsideration of a claim, or requesting resolution of billing
determinations, such as bundlingfunbundling of claims/procedure codes or alfowances; or Participating
Provider's written notice to Alameda Alliance disputing administrative policies and procedures,
administrative terminations, retroactive contracting, or any other contract issue,

1.44 “Provider Grievance Proceduras” means the procedures for the receipt, handling and resoiution

of Provider Grievances.

1.45 "Provider Manyal’ means Alameda Alliance manual and bulletins which have been prepared to be
consistent with Applicable Requirements which are provided from time to time by Alameda Aliiance to
Participating Providers. The Provider Manual describes Alameda Alliance Programs, pelicies, procedures,
terms and conditions of the agreement between Alameda Alliance and the Participating Provider for the
provision of Covered Services to Members.

1.46 "Quality improvement” or "Quality Improvement Program’ means the pelicies and procedures

adopted by Alameda Alliance to conduct ongoing quality assessment and improvement to comply with
Applicable Reguirements including but not limited to Califomia Health and Safety Code Section 1370, and
Title 28 CCR Section 1300.70. The policies and procedures ihat govern the program are set forth in the
Provider Manual.

1.47 "Referral’ means the process by which a Participating Provider directs a Member to seek and
obtain specialist services or other Covered Services from a health professional, a hospital, or any other
provider of Covered Services.

1.48 “Self-Referred Sensitive Services™ means services pravided by other Participating Providers for

Medical Group Medi-Cal Members related to fi) sexual assault; (i) drug or alcohol abuse for Medical
Group Members 12 years or older; {iii) pregnancy; (iv) family planning; {v) sexually Iransmitted diseases
designated by DHCS for Medical Graup Members 12 years or ofder.
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1.49 “Servige Arga’ means the geographic area within which Aiameda Aifiance is licensed tooperate.

1.50 “Specialist Physician® or “SCP" means a Participating Physician who is duly licensed and meets
Alameda Alliance qualifications to practice histher designated specialty and who has agreed pursuant to a
written agreement with Alameda Alliance or Medical Group to provide Covered Services in his/her
designated specialty for Members, pursuant to a Referral from Member's Primary Care Physician, if
required.

1.51 “State” means the State of California.

1.52 “Surcharge’ means an additional fee, other than approved Copayments and deductibles, which is
charged to a Member for a Govered Service, but which is not approved by the applicable State and
Federal regulatery authority, and is neither disclosed nor provided for in the applicable Alameda Alliance
Agreement and associated Evidence of Coverage.

1,53 “Third Party Liability" means the legal obligation of a third party i.e. individuals, entities or
programs to pay all or part of the expenditures for medical assistance furnished under an Alameda
Alliance Program.

1.54 "Timely Access” means the required time frame for Member access to Cavered Services as set
farth in Applicable Requirements.

1.55 “Utilization Management® or “Utilization Management Program” means the programs and
processes established by Alameda Alliance to authorize and monitor the utilization of Covered Services
provided to Members.

SECTION 2;: MEDICAL GROUP REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

2.4 RepresentationsMWarranties/Qualifications

Medical Group shall meet the qualifications set forth below throughout the term of this Agreement.
Medical Group, an behalf of itself and each Medical Group Provider, hereby represents and warrants the
following:

211 Qualifications. Each Medical Group Provider shall possess a current valid license, or other
certification in the State of California and maintain a current federal DEA registration, as applicable, ta
provide the services, equipment, or supplies contemplated in this Agreement and shall not be the subject,
gither before or during the term of this Agreement, of any disciplinary actions or proceedings under the
entity authorized to grant such license or certification; be the subject of any indictments, disciplinary
actions or proceedings under the terms of any Alameda Alliance Program; or be the subject of any
indictments, disciplinary actions or proceedings by any government entity. Medical Group shall maintain
at all times, during the term of this Agreement, the administrative, managerial and financial capacity to
perform its obligations hersunder.

2.1.1.1 Board Certified, as applicabie, according to the current American Board of
Medical Specialties in area of medical practice;

2.11.2 Remain eligible to participate in Medicare and Medi-Cal Programs and such
other third party payor programs as Alameda Alliance may reasonably require, and accept and continue
to accept assignment of patient benefits under each such payor program; and

2.1.1.3 Willing and abie to comply with the terms and conditicns of this Agreement.

212 Credentialing Medical Group. Each Medical Group Provider and Participating Provider,
as further defined in Provider Manual, who are praviding Covered Services on behalf of Medicat Group
under this Agreement shall be approved through the Credentialing process by Alameda Alliance.

2.1.3 Admitting Privileges. Each Medical Group Physician shail possess admitting privileges at
one or more Participating Hospital or possess formal coverage arrangements with another Participating
Physician for admission of Medical Group Members.
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214  Facility. Medical Group shall and shall require each Medical Group Provider to maintain a
suftable facility for medical treatment of Medical Group Members pursuant to the reguirements of
Alameda Alliance Programs and acceptable to Alameda Alliance. Accessibility to such facilities shall be in
compliance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

2.1.5 Program Participation. Medical Group and each Medical Group Provider shall be certified
and eligitle to participate in the Medi-Cal and/or Medicare Programs in order to participate in such programs.
All Medical Graup Providers, ermnployees and subcontractors who provide health care services, utilization
review, medical social work services, and administrative services shalfl be eligible to participate in the
Medi-Cal ar Medicare Program and shall not be excluded from such programs. Medical Group shall
maintain any additional quaiifications that may be required by law or as deemed appropriate by DHCS,
CMS8, OMHC, Public Authority or other appropriate government entity, or Alameda Alliance for the
enhancement of access to or quality of care.

SECTION 3: MEDICAL GROUP RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PROVISION OF SERVICES

3.1 Covered Services,

Medical Group shall provide or arrange for the provision of all Covered Services to Medical Group
Members for Alameda Alliance Programs set forth in Exhibit A through Medical Group Providers who
have been credentialed as required by this Agreement and as more fully described in the Provider
Manual. Nothing expressed or implied herein shall require Medical Group to pravide to the Medical Group
Member, or order on behalf of the Medical Group Member, Covered Services which, in the professianal
opinion of Medical Group Provider, are not Medically Necessary. Medical Group shall be responsible for
the management of each Medical Group Member’'s medical care as follows:

3.1.1  Provision of Covered Services. Medical Group shall promote and maintain the heaith of
Medical Group Member by providing all Covered Services within the scope of Medicat Group’s practice
and managing other Covered Services provided to each Medical Group Member through face-to-face,
telephonic contacts or email interface with Medical Group Member. In a manner consistent with existing
professional standards, Medical Group and Medical Group Previders shall be responsibie for: (i} the
diagnosis and treatment of medical conditions; {ii} the coordination of inpatient Covered Services
{including discharge planning}; (iii} the provision of preventive health services to which a Medical Group
Member is entilled; and (iv) making available to Medical Group Members those health education programs
routinely provided by Medical Group and Medical Group Providers at no charge to their patients. Alameda
Aliiance shall not intervene in any way or manner with the provision of health care services by Medical
Group Provider; it being understood and agreed that the traditional refationship between provider and
patient will be maintained. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Alameda Alliance retains the right to review the
care provided to Members by Medical Group Providers as part of Alameda Alliance's Quality
Improvement and Utilization Management Programs.

3.1.2 Covering Physician. if, from time to time, Participating Physician is for any reason unable
to provide covered services due to illness, vacation or other absence, Participating Physician shall
engage another qualified Participating Physician to perform such Covered Services in Participating
Physician’s (Covering Physician). Participating Physician shall ensure that any such Covering Physician
shaill {a) accept and abide by all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and Alameda Alliance
Agreement; and {b) not bill Atameda Alliance or any person other than Participating Physician for the
performance of services to Members. Participating Physician shall be solely responsible for compensating
all such Covering Physicians.

3.1.3  After hours On Call. Participating Physician shall provide or make arrangements for
Members to receive Covered Services twenty-four (24) hour-per-day, seven (7) day-per-week including
after business hours, weekends and holidays as specified.

3.14  Medical Necessity. Medical Group shall make Medical Necessity determinations for
Medical Group Members and shall determine the method, details and means of performing Covered
Services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. When those determinations are appealed, Medical
Group will assist Alameda Alliance by providing relevant medical records and participating in grievance,
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arbitration, and other proceedings. Moreover, Medica! Group agrees to cooperate with and abide by the
Medicai Necessity determination of any external review entity to which Alameda Alliance is obligated by
law.

3.1.5 Final Decisions and Exchange of Medical Group Member Information. All final
decisions regarding coverage are reserved to Alameda Alliance, and Medical Group shall refer Medical
Group Members who have inquiries or disputes regarding such coverage to Alameda Alliance for
response and resolution. This provision, however, does not and shall not be construed to prohibit any
Medical Group Provider from providing any medical treatment, or other advice which such Medical Group
Provider believes to be in the best interest of the patient. No provision of this Agreement shall be
construed to prohibit, nor shali any provision in any contract between Medical Group and its employees or
subcontractors prohibit, the free, open and unrestricted exchange of any and all information of any kind
between Medical Group Providers and Medical Group Members regarding the nature of Medical Group
Member's medical condition, the health care treatment options and alternatives available and their
relative risks and benefits, whether or not covered or exciuded under Medical Group Member's health
plan, and Medical Group Member's right to appeal any adverse decision made by Medical Group or
Alameda Alliance regarding coverage of treatment which has been recommended or rendered.

3.1.6 Performance Standards. All Covered Services provided to Medical Group Members shall
meet professionally recognized standards of practice including those set forth in the Provider Manual.

317 Non-Discrimination. Medical Group Providers shall treat all Medical Group Members, in a
non-discriminaiory maniner, pursuant io Section 12.1 of the Agreement and in the same manner as their
other patients, except as limited by this Agreement.

3.1.8 Advance Health Care Directive. Medical Group Providers shall document in a prominent
place in medical record if Member has executed an Advance Health Care Directive.

3.2 Availability

Medicai Group Providers shaif be available to provide Timely Access to Covered Services so that Medical
Group Members, in accordance with the policy and procedures of Alameda Alliance and Applicable
Requirements, may be appropriately served by medical advice and supervision seven (7) days a week
and twenty-four (24) hours a day, either directly or through adequate coverage arrangements. Medical
Group Providers shall be available for telephone consuitations with Medical Group Members and other
Participating Providers as may be appropriate to meet the needs of Medical Group Members and other
Farticipating Providers.

3.2.1 Timely Access. Medical Group will provide Covered Services in compliance with timety
access standards outlined in Title 28 CCR Section 1300.67.2.2, the Provider Manual and as follows, as

applicable:
3211 Prenatal care appointments shall be offered within fourteen (t4) days.

3212 Non-urgent care appointments with primary care physicians shall be offered
within tert (10) business days of request.

3.21.3 Non-urgent care appointments with specialist physicians shall be offered within
fifteen (15) days of request.

3214 Urgent care appointments that do not require autherization shall be offered within
forty-gight (48) hours of request,

3215 Non-urgent appeintments for Ancillary Services (for diagnosis of treatment of
injury liness, or other health condition) shall be offered within fifteen (15} days of request.

3218 Non-urgent appointments with a non-physician mental heakth provider shall be
offered within ten {10) days of request.

12
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3.3 Eligibility Verification angd Procedures

3.3.1  Eligibility Verification System. Medical Group shall and shall require sach Medical Group
Provider to utilize the eligibility verification system as set forth in the Provider Manual to confirm the
eligibility of Medical Group Members.

3.3.2 Eligibility and ldentification Verification. Prior to offering services or obtaining a Referral
or Authorization for Covered Services, Medical Group andfor Medical Group Providers are required to
verify identification and eligibility of Medical Group Members an the date of service as follows:

3.3.21 By electronic or lelephonic contact with Alameda Alliance or via the Alameda
Alliance website; and

3322 By the examination of Alameda Alliance Member identification card and a form of
pholo identification, or if no Member identification card has yet been issued, two (2) other forms of
identification, one of which shatl be a photo identification. If Member fs a minor, parent’s identification wiit
be acceptable if Member’s eligibility is verified with Alameda Alliance.

3.3.3 Improper Verification. Alameda Alliance assumes no responsibility, financial or otherwise,
for patients misrepresenting themselves as Members where eligibility is not properly verified by Medical
Group.

3.34 Member Ineligibility. For any Member who became ineligible, but whose ineligibility was
not property noted on Alameda Alliance's eligibility list at the time of ineligibility, and for whom Medical
Group inappropriatety received such payments, Alameda Alliance shall have the right to deduct from
payment to Medical Group amounts equal to any payments made. Alameda Alliance shall have no
obligation to compensate Medical Group for such services in the event that such deleted Member is
covered during the pericd of retroactive deletion by another government program, health care service
plan, insurer, or third party payor.

3.4 Referrals and Authorizations

Medical Group may refer Medical Group Members for Medically Necessary Coveraed Services that are not
within the Medical Group Provider's scope of practice to Participaling Providers in accordance with Alameda
Alliance’s Referral and Autharization procedures set forth in Provider Manual. As required by law, PCP
referrals include, but are not limited tc referrals to Alameda Alliance behavioral heaith programivendor for
autism services.

3.4.1 Alameda Alliance Autherization. Medical Group PCPs may make Referrals to
Participating Providers without Authorization from Alameda Alfiance. Specialist Physician may refer
Members lo Participating Providers in accordance with Alameda Alliance' s Referral and Authorization
procedures set forth in Provider Manual, Alameda Alliance shall provide Medical Group with a list of
Participating Providers to whom Referrals may be made. Referrals outside of the Alameda Alliance
contracted network shall require an Authorization by Alameda Allfance. Prior Authorization shall not be
required for Emergency or Self-Referred Sensitive Services.

34.2 Hospital Admissions. Except for Emergency or Self-Referred Sensitive Services, Medical
Group shall obtain a written Authorization prior to any elective hospital admission. Medical Group
Providers shall admit Members requiring inpatient hospital or other covered inpatient health care services
only to a Participating Hospital or other facility authorized by Alameda Alhance and shall comply with the
hospital admissions procedures established by Alameda Alliance as set forth in the Provider Manual.

3.5 Emergency Services

3.5.1 Compliance with Emergency Room Reguiations. In the event that a Medical Group
Member presents to an emergency room for medical care, Medical Group and Medical Group Providers
shall comply with BHCS, CMS, and DMHC regulations as applicable regarding emergency and urgent

care.
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352 Monitoring of Emergency Services. Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall
be responsibie for the monitering of all health care services rendered to Medical Group Members
including, at all times, situations where an attending physician or other health care provider furnishes
urgent care or Emergency Services or actively engages in the treatment or evaluation of a Medical Group
Member's condition.

3.53 Post Stabilization Care/Transfer. Medical Group will provide services to freat
Members, then call the Alliance for authorization once the Medical Group determines a Member is stable
for transfer or to obtain authorization for post stabilization care in accordance with the Alameda Alliance’s
Provider Manual policies and procedures.

3.6 Provision of Equipment/Supplies/Personnat

Medical Group and/or Medical Group Providers shall supply ail equipment, supplies and personnel
necessary to perform this Agreement and provide Covered Services to Members. Each Medical Group
Provider shall be responsible, at Medical Group's sole cost and expense, for providing licensed persons
or technicians to assist Medical Group Providers 1o provide Covered Services. Medical Group Providers
shall supervise all personnel used to provide Covered Services and shall ensure that they possess and
maintain currentivalid licenses and certifications required by law for the performance of the services
provided. Medical Group agrees upon the request of Alameda Alliance to provide current practice
information regarding such licensed persons and technicians tc Alameda Alliance. Medical Group and
each Medical Group Provider agree to not employ or contract with individuals excluded from participation
in State- or Federally-funded programs. Medical Group shall immediately nofify Alameda Alliance if it or
one of its Medical Group Providers or any of its or the Medical Group Providers’ employees or
subcontractors is debarred from any State or Federal program.

3.7 Qutpatient Drug Formulary and Pharmacy Information

3.7.1 Compliance with Outpatient Drug Formulary. Medical Group and Medical Group
Providers shail comply with the outpatient drug formulary, drug authorization forms and requirements, and
pharmacy benefit design {including maximum supplies, use of generics, and mail order for maintenance
drugs), as adopted and periodically modified by Alameda Alliance and as set forth in the Provider Manual.

3.7.2 Use of Prescription Data. Medical Group agrees that data regarding prescriptions
obtained by and drugs supplied to Medical Group Members are provided for the limited and restricted
purpose of Utilization Management. Under no circumstances may Medical Group or Medical Group
Providers copy or share such data with others, or utilize such data, in whole or in part, directly or
indirectly, to negotiate rebates, discounts, or contracts with pharmaceutical manufacturers or other
suppliers of pharmaceuticals.

3.7.3 Pharmacy Information. Medical Group acknowledges that Alameda Alliance and its
designees retain sole autharity to perform, in relationship to outpatient pharmacy, pharmacy ciaims
processing, formulary development, an Authorizaticn program, selection and contracting of a pharmacy
network, and determination of pharmacy benefit design.

3.8  Lilization Management

Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall cooperate with Alameda Alfiance in the impiementation
of the Utilization Management Program established by Alameda Alliance set forth in the Provider Manual
which has been established fo review and manage the utilization of healfth care services, provide
procedures for the coordination and monitoring of @ Medical Group Member including, but not limited to
medical evaluation of Medical Group Members' health condition, referral, consultation, admission to
hospitals, follow up care and coordination of referred health care services in order to make sure that
Medical Group Member receives cost effective, quality care. Alameda Alliance will share with Medical
Group utiization data that BHCS has provided to Alameda Alliance to assist Medical Group with Member
cars coordinaticn,
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SECTION 4: MEDICAL GROUP ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1 Conduct

411 Prohibition of Coercion of Members. Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall
not coerce, threaten or intimidate Members into making a particular choice of health care coverage.
Medical Group Providers shall not influence Members to change health care coverage for the purpose of
financial gain to Medical Group or Medical Group Providers. Medical Group and Medical Group Praoviders
may freely communicate with Members regarding the treatment aptions available to them, inciuding
medications and alternative medications and/or Non-Covered Services, regardiess of benefit coverage
limitations.

4.1.2 Representation of Benefits. Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall not
discuss reimbursement or knowingly make inaccurate or misteading statements about Alameda Alliance
Program benefits.

413 Non-Solicitation. Medical Group and Medica! Group Praviders shalt not solicit Members
on behalf of any other independent practice association, medical group, health maintenance organization
or insurance company. Solicitation shall mean conduct by Medical Group, Medical Group Providers, office
staff, agent, or employee of Medical Group. which may be reascnably interpreted as designed to
persuade Members to discantinue their membership with Alameda Alliance.

42 Membership

42.1  Member Selection or Assignment. Members may select any PCP within Member's
applicable Alameda Alliance Program. For Members who do not make a selection, Alameda Alliance shall
assign Members to a PCP in a systematic and appropriate manner in accordance with Alameda Alliance
procedures which may consider factors including, but not fimited to, the PCP’s language capabilities,
office location and the specialty type of the PCP. Medical Group shalt and shall require each Medical
Group Provider to accept all Members who select, or are assigned to Medical Group Provider, unless
Medical Group reguests in writing to close Medical Group Provider's practice to all new Members. Medical
Group Providers shall accept and maintain Medical Group Members without regard to health status,
frequency of visits, costs of care or cultural or linguistic factors. Medical Group acknowledges that a
Member may request transfer between Medical Group Physicians in accordance with Member's
appticable Alameda Alliance Program and Evidence of Coverage.

422 Member Reassignment.

4221 Member Reassignment Upon Medical Group Provider Termination. In the
event that a Medical Group Provider's employment or contractor relationship with Medical Group is
terminated, or Medical Group Provider is removed from service to Medical Group Members pursuant ta
section 4.2.3, Alameda Alliance shall nofify Member of such termination. Member shall have the right to
select another Medical Group Provider or another Participating Provider not affiiated with Medical Group.
In the event that Member does not sefect a new Participating Provider, Alameda Alliance shall assign
Member to a new Participating Provider. Reassignment of Medical Group Members shall be in
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Provider Manual.

4.2.2.2 Member Reassignment Upon the Request of Medical Group. Medical Group
and/or a Medical Group Provider shall not request reassignment of a Medical Group Member to another
Participating Provider due to a Medical Group Member's medical condition, frequency of visits, costs of
care, or cuttural or linguistic factors. Medical Group may request in writing that a Medical Group Member
be reassigned to a different Participating Provider only if Medical Group can show just cause in writing, to
the satisfaction of Alameda Alliancs, that health care services can no longer be successfully provided for
reasons other than heaith status, frequency of visits, costs of care or cultural or linguistic factors,
Reassignment of Medical Group Members shalf be in accordance with the provisions set forth in the
Provider Manual.

4.2.23 Right to Reassign. Notwithstanding the foregoing, when the consent of a
governmental agency to the termination of a physician-patient relationship is required pursuant to its rules
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and regulations, neither Medical Group nor a Medical Group Provider may terminate the physician-patient
relationship with a Member without first obtaining the consent of Alameda Alliance and the applicable
governmental agency.

423 Termination of Medical Group Provider at the Request of Alameda Alliance. Alameda
Alliance may require that Medical Group remove from service to Medical Group Members any Medical
Group Provider, based upon a finding by Alarmeda Alliance that Medical Group Provider is in non-
compliance with this Agreement. Alameda Alliance retains the right to (i) suspend the assignment or
selection of new Members to Medical Group or Medical Group Providers; or (i) reassign all or part of a
Medical Group Provider's Members to any Participating Providers upen a finding that a Medical Group
Provider is in non-compliance with this Agreement. In the event that Alameda Alfiance takes any action
permitted by this section, this Agreement shal! continue in effect as to the Medical Group and other
Medical Group Providers unless terminated by either party as set forth in section 12 of this Agreement.

424 Provider Preventable Condition {PPC). Provider Preventable Conditions are defined in
federal obligations as Cther Provider Preventable Conditicns (OPPCs) in all heaith care settings and
Health Care Acquired Conditions (HCACSs) in inpatient hospital settings. Within five (8) calendar days of
discovering a PPC, and confirming the patient is an Alameda Alliance Member, the Medical Group will
complete the regulatory form and submit it to Alameda Alliance's Quality Department.

4.3 Provider Network and Practice Information

Medical Group shall provide Alameda Alliance with the current practice information for each Medica!
Group Provider as set forth in Exhibit G and shall comply with the following:

4.3.1 Credentialing of Providers. Medical Group Providers, Covering Physicians and
Participating Providers shall meet the Credentialing requirements of Alameda Alliance and shalt be
subject to the Credentialing process and NCQA requirements set forth in the Provider Manual prior to
providing any health care services to Members. Only credentialed Medical Group Providers, Covering
Physicians and Participating Providers may provide heaith care services to Medical Group Members.
Medicat Group shall submil ic Alameda Alliance sufficient Credentialing data to enable Alameda Alliance
to delermine lhat Medical Group Provider meets Alameda Alliance’s minimum qualifications. Failure to
provide re-credentialing infoermation or meet Alameda Alliance’s minimum standards may result in the
termination of Medical Group Provider as a Participating Provider. Each credentialed Medical Group
Pravider shall be re-credentialed every three (3) years or as requested by Alameda Alliance.

432 Change in Medical Group Status. The composition of Medical Group may change from
time to time and Medical Group may add Medical Group Providers at its discretion so long as any such
new Medical Group Praviders agree to comply with the terms of this Agreement before rendering any
Covered Services or being assigned any Medical Group Members. Medical Group shall make best efforts
to provide written notification to Alameda Alliance at least sixty (80) calendar days in advance of the
termination of a Medical Group Provider or any material change in the provider composition of Medical
Group, any change of name, address, telephone number, office hours, tax identification number, NP,
license status or number. Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall, at the request of Alameda
Alflance, assist Alameda Alliance in preparing regulatory filings relating to provider composition of Medical
Group and Medical Group Providers in accordance with section 5.1 of this Agreement.

433 Complaints or Disciplinary Action. Medical Group shali immediately report alt findings of
liability in any civil, criminal or administrative action involving professional competency or any felony of a
Medical Group Provider. Medical Group shall immediately notify Alameda Aliiance of: (i) any written
complaint filed against any Medical Group Provider which would be reportable under Section 805 of the
California Business and Professions Code or the National Practitioner Data Bank; {ii) any disciplinary
action taken against a Medical Group Provider as an individual by any hospital, medical facility, medical
group or association, State or Federal licensing bedy, or other entity, (iii) any Medical Group Provider who
has become a defendant in a lawsuit filed by a Member or is required or agrees to pay damages to a
Mermber for any reason; (iv) any Medical Group Provider has been disbarred from any federal program, or
v) any other findings of liability in any civil, criminal or administrative action involving professional
competency or comrmission of any Telony. Immediately upon their avaitabllity, Medical Group shali submit
to Alameda Alliance copies of any adverse findings from any State or Federal entity reviewing or auditing
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any Medical Group or any Medicatl Group Provider. Findings may be subject to Alameda Alliance peer
review.

4.4 Provider Dispute Resolution

44.1 Dispute and Post Dispute Procedures. Medical Group shall establish and maintain a
fast, fair, and cost-effective mechanism to process and resolve Medical Group Provider disputes in
accordance with all applcable requirements of the Knox-Keene Act, including but not limited to California
Health and Safety Code Sections 1371, 1371.1, 1371.2, 1371.22, 1371.35, 1371.36, 1371.37, 1371.38,
1371.4, and 1371.8 and Sections 1300.71, 1300.71.38, 1300.71.4, and 1300.77.4 of Title 28 of the California
Code of Regulations. Except for matters that are subject to other grievance procedures as described in
section, in the Provider Manual, and exciuding any dispute arising out of, relating lo, or in connection with any
malpractice or professional liability claim (unless expressly consented to by the parties insurance carriers) if
the parties hereto are unabie to resolve any dispute arising out of, relating to or in connection with this
Agreement, or the construction of interpretation of this Agreement, and the intemal dispule resolution process
has been exhausted without achieving a resolution, then both parties agree to continue to engage for a
period of no less than thirty {30) calendar days, in goed faith effort to resolve prior to moving with litigation. Ne
claim arising under this Agreement shalf accrue until such time as the thirty {30) calendar day periad has
expired.

4.42 Failure to Comply with Dispute Procedures. Medical Group agrees that, in the event
Medical Group's provider dispute resolution procedures fail to comply with the obligations set forth in section
4.4.1 above, Alameda Alliance may, as required by applicable State and Federal law, assume responsibility
for the administration of Medical Group's provider dispute resolution process and for the resolution of provider
disputes relating to Alameda Alliance Members.

443 Provider Appeal Rights. Medical Group agrees that, if a provider submits a dispute in
accordance with the Medical Group Provider dispute resclution process which involves an issue of Medical
Necessity or utilization review relating to an Alameda Alliance Member, such Medical Group Provider shall
have an unconditional right to appeal that dispute to Alameda Alliances Provider Grievance Procedures for a
de novo review and resolution of the dispute. Such an appeal must be submitted to Alameda Alliance within
sixty (60) calendar days from the date of Medical Group communicated its denial of the appeal to the Medical
Group Provider.

444 Medical Group Provider Agreements. Medical Group shall be responsible for each
Medical Group Provider's performance under this Agreement and shall ensure that each Medical Group
Provider is aware of and compliant with the terms of this Agreement. Each Medical Group Provider
furnishing services on behalf of Medical Group Providers shall be subject to all terms and conditions of
this Agreement. Medical Group shall have a written employment or subcontractor agreement that
complies with the terms of this Agreement and all Applicable Requirements, with each Medical Group
Provider who will provide Covered Services to Madical Group Members pursuant to this Agreement.

445 Al future model forms of written employment or subcontractor agreements shall be
submitted to Alameda Alliance and Medical Group shall make available to Alameda Alliance any
individual written employment or subcontractor agreement upon the request of Alameda Alliance.

446 Disclosure of Provider Profiling. Medical Group shall, upon reguest from Alameda
Alliance, provide Alameda Alliance with information regarding any economic profiling of Medical Group
Providers by Medical Group in order to permit Alameda Alliance to comply with the provisions of Section
1367.02 of the California Health and Safety Code. Further, to the extent that group utitizes economic
profiting as defined in Section 1367.02 of the California Health and Safely Code, Medical Group shall
provide copies of econamic profiling information to Medical Group Providers in accordance with the
requirements of Section 1367.02,

4.5 Quality Improyement

It is understood by the parties hereto that the Alameda Alliance has established a Quality Improvement
Program in order to assure a standard of care consistent with California Health and Safety Code Saction
1370, Title 22 California Code of Regulations Section 53280, and Title 28 California Code of Regulations
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Section 1300.70, and with Alameda Alliance policies and standards. Medical Group shall cooperate with
and participate in Alameda Alliance Quality improvement Program as set forth in the Provider Manual.
Medical Group shall comply with the Quality Improvement Program, Utllization Management Program,
and credentialing and re-credentialing activities, including Facility Site Reviews (FSR). Medical Group
shall provide timely documentation for Healthcare Effectiveness Bata and information Set (HEDIS) and
ather quality improvement aclivities.

46 Culturally and Linguisticaly A \ate Services (GLAS) P

Alameda Alliance established and maintains an ongoing CLAS Program, and maintains ongoing
administrative and financial responsibitity for implementing and operating such program, to ensure access
to care for limited and non-English speaking Medical Group Members andfor Members who are sensory
impaired, as required by Applicable Requirements relating to language assistance reguiations. Medical
Group shall and shalf require each Medical Group Provider to cooperate and comply with Alameda
Alliance's CLAS Program as described in Provider Manual and Applicable Requirements regarding
cuftural and linguistic services. Such services shall be availatle at all Medical Group locations where
Members receive services from Medical Group Providers. Medical Group shall provide its employees
training on cultural competency, sensitivity and diversity training.

4.7 Eacility Site Review

Facilities used by Medical Group and/or each Medical Greup Provider to provide Covered Services shalf
comply with provisions of Title 22, CCR, Section 53230 and Title 28, Section 1300.80. Medical Group
Providers agree to altow access to the facifities used in the provision of Covered Services pursuant to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement to Alameda Alliance, and all State and Federal agencies that
have statutory or regulatory authority to inspect and license or certify health facilities. In the event that
government officials or Alameda Alliance find any deficiencies in such facilities or records, Medical Group
or Medical Group Provider, as applicable, shall have thirty (30} calendar days to substantially correct such
deficiencies which are identified by such government officials or Alameda Alliance. i Medical Group or
Madical Group Provider fails to substantially correct such deficiencies, Alameda Alliance may at its sole
discretion (i) suspend the assignment of selection of new Members to Medical Group; (ii) reassign all or
part of Medicat Group Members to another Participating Provider, or (iii} terminate this Agreement.

4.8 Reguired Disclosure

481  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. Medical Group shall provide to Alameda Alliance,
if applicable and upon request, a copy of the Articles of Incorparation and Bylaws of Medical Group, and
all amendments thereto.

482 Disclosure Statement. Medical Group shall, if applicable and upon reguest, provide
Alameda Alliance with a disclosure staterment listing major creditors individually holding more than five
percent (5%) of the debt of Medical Group. Medical Group shall provide to Alameda Alliance an updated
disclosure statement in the event of a change in creditors as described abova.

4.8.3 Material Adverse Effects. Medical Group shall notify Alameda Alliance immediately in
writing when Medical Group becomes aware of the occurrence of any of the following events: (i} Medical
Group's ar a Medical Group Provider's professional and general liability insurance is canceled,
terminated, not renewed, or materially modified: (i) an act of nature or any event occurs which has a
materially adverse effect on Medical Group's ability to perform Medical Group's obligations hereunder; (iii)
a petition is filed to declare Medical Group bankrupt or for reorganization under the bankruptcy laws of the
United States or a receiver is appointed over all or any portion of Medical Group's assets; or (iv) Medical
Group is sued, or suit is threatened in writing, by a healthcare provider for nonpayment of compensation;
or (v) any other situation arises which could reasonably be expected to materially affect Medical Group's
ability to carry out Medicai Group’s obligations under this Agreement.

4.84 Medical Group Changes. Medical Group shall also provide Plan with thirty (30} calendar
days advance notice of (i) any proposed material change in the ownership of Medical Group, (ii) a change
in its management services organization {if any), or (it} the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
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Medical Group. Medical Group shalt obtain Alameda Alliance's prior approval of same, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

485 Financial Statement. Upon request, Medical Group shall provide to Alameda Alliance a
copy of its financial statements which may include the auditor's opinion letter, annual income statement,
balance sheet, and statement of cash flow, and notes to the financial statements.

4.9 Certification Regarding Lobbving

f applicable and upon request, Medical Group shall provide Alameda Alliance with a certification
regarding lobbrying. Such certification shall be in a form acceptable to Alameda Alliance and include the
following terms:

4.91 Federally Appropriated Funds. No Federalty appropriated funds have been paid or wilt be
paid, by or on behalf of Medical Group or Medical Group Providers, to any person influencing or
attempting to influence an officer ar employee of an agency of the United States Government, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Cangress in connection
with the making, awarding or entering into this Agreement and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of this Agreement.

4.92 Non-Federally Appropriated Funds, If any funds other than Federally appropriated funds
have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency of the United States Government, a Member of Cengress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Caongress in connection with this Agreement,
Medical Group and/er Medical Group Provider shall complete and submit any additional forms that may
be required to comply with Applicable Reguirements.

410 Liability and Responsibility for Emplovees and/or Subcontractors

Medical Group shalt and shall require each Medical Group Provider to be solely responsible for the
satisfaction of any and all obligations it assumes with respect to any person it retains, employs or
subcontracis with to assist in its performance under this Agreement. Such obligations shall include, but
not be limited to, payment of all Federal and State withholding taxes applicable to employees, compliance
with Federai and Siate wage-hour obligations {including overtime), workers compensation obligations,
unemployment insurance obligations, and other applicable taxes and contributions to government-
mandated employment-related insurance and similar programs. Under no circumstances shall Alameda
Alliance, the Federal Government, the State of Califomnia or the County of Alameda incur any fiability
under this section.

411  Compliance

Without limiting any of Medical Group’s other obligations under this Agreement, Medical Group shall
comply with all Applicable Requirements as they may from time to time be amended or superseded,
including but not limited to physician incentives and Federal stop loss requirements. Any provision
required to be in this Agreement by the Applicable Requirements, whether or not provided in the contract,
shall bind Alameda Alliance and Medical Group. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the
Provider Manual, this Agreement, and/or any State or Federal laws and regulations, the provision which
governs shall be determined by the following order of precedence: Federal iaw, regulations, and
instructions; State law, regulations and instructions including, but nct limited to the Knox-Keene Act; this
Agreement; and then the Provider Manual. Unless a change is required by State or Federal law, notice of
Material changes will be given in accordance with California Health and Safety Code Section 1375.7 the
Provider Bifi of Rights.

412  Qther Programs

Medicai Group shall participate in all Alameda Alliance Programs which may be offered to Medical Group in
Alameda Alliance's sole discretion, under financial terms comparable to those contained herein. Medical
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Group shall be gaverned by the terms specified for each Program as described herein and the Provider
Manual.

413 Useof Name

Medical Group consents to the use of Medical Group's and Medical Group Provider names by Alameda
Alliance for the purpose of promoting their association with Alameda Alliance in any reasonable manner
which Alameda Alliance considers to be beneficial to Alameda Alliance.

414 Alameda Alliance Commiftees

Medical Group Physicians shali serve on such committees of Alameda Alliance as Alameda Alliance may
from time to time reasonably request.

4.15 Notification

Medical Group shall immediately nctify Alameda Alliance of any actual or threatened malpractice
demands, judgements, or any actual or threatened loss, suspension, probation, or limitation of (a) any
license or registration, {b) any Payor certification or autherization, or {¢) any medical staff membership or
clinical privifeges.

4.16 Provider Directory Updates,

Provider shalf comply with SB137 amended Section 1367.27 of the Health and Safety Code and provide
additional information on an angoing basis for updating the Alameda Alliance’s Provider Directory. This
updated provider information will be listed in accordance with Exhibit G, Provider Directory Updates.

SECTION 5: ALAMEDA ALLIANCE RESPONSIBILITY

3.1 Administration

Notwithstanding the terms and provisions of this Agreement, Alameda Alliance maintains, under the
terms of Alameda Alliance Programs and Agreements, full responsibility for adhering to anad otherwise
fully complying with all terms and conditions of Alameda Alliance Programs and Agreements. Alameda
Aliance shail perform all necessary administrative, accounting and reporting reguirements and other
functions consistent with Applicable Requirements and Alameda Alliance Agreements and the
administration of this Agreement. Alameda Alliance shall establish and maintain sngoing menitoring and
oversight of Medical Group's performance of Medical Group’s obligations in cennection with the
applicable Alameda Alliance Program. Madical Group agrees to cooperate with Alameda Alliance in its
efforts to comply with the terms and conditions under the applicable Alameda Alliance Agreement(s).

5.2 Provider ManualiProvision of Protocols and Procedurcs

A Provider Manual shall be provided to Medical Group by Alameda Aliance. The Provider Manual, as
may be amended from time to time, is incorporated herein by reference. To the extent of any conflict
between this Agreement and the Pravider Manual, the terms of this Agreement shall govern. Changes
and updates to the operational policies in the Provider Manual shall be made periodicalty through provider
bulleting and/or amendments to the Provider Manual. Alameda Ajliance shall notify Medical Group with
forty-five (45) calendar days written notice {or other mutuaily agreed upon time frame} prior to
implementation of any changes or revisions to the Provider Manual, unless the change is necessary to
comply with either State or Federal law or regulations, or accreditation requirements. Such changes shall
not preclude Medical Group from exercising Medical Group's right to terminate this Agreement prior to
implementation of said change(s) pursuant to SECTION 11. TERM, TERMINATION AND NOTICE.

53 Member Eligibilify/Rogters

Alameda Alliance shall maintain a system for Member identification, including Member {dentification
Cards and electronic interface between Medical Group Provider and Alameda Alliance to enable Medical
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Group Provider to promptly determine a Member's eligibility for services. Medical Group hereby consents
to Alameda Alliance using Medical Group's address, phone number, office hours, language skills, type of
practice, willingness to accept patients, such as Board Certification, availability of handicapped access,
and availability of public transit to Medical Group’s office(s).

5.4 Disclosyre of Information

Alameda Alliance shall make available to Medical Group, upon contracting and upon written request as
well as on-line, such informaticn as is required by the regulations of Title 28 California Code of
Regulations Sections 1300.71(}) and {0). Alameda Alliance shall make the information available in the
Provider Manual and on the Alameda Alliance website.

5.5 Supporl Services

Alameda Alliance will assist Medical Group in all aspects of Medical Group's affiliation with Alameda
Alliance and participation in Alameda Alliance.

SECTION 6: PAYMENTS

6.1 PBayment for Covered Services Provided by Medical Group

fn exchange for Covered Services and related administrative services provided in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, Alameda Aliiance shall pay to Medical Group a monthly Capitation, if applicable,
Fee-for-Service and other compensation as set forth in Exhibits B, B1, C, C1 and D.

6.1.1 Capitation

6.1.1.1 Capitation and Other Payments. As applicable, Alameda Alliance shall pay to
Medicai Group a Capitation, in the amount set forth in Exhibit B1.

6.1.1.2 Encounter Data Submission. Medical Group shall submit encounter data and
claims for services in accordance with the Provider Manual and in a timely manner, not to exceed ane
hundred and eighty (180) calendar days from the date of service. At a minimum, encounter and claims
submissions must include ail requisite fields set forth in the Provider Manual and comply with all billing
conventions for CMS-1500 forms or such other forms as may be requested by Alameda Alliance from
time to time. Such submissicns shall include the actual dales each claim was received and adjudicated.
By submitting claims cor encounter data to Alameda Alliance, Medical Group will be deemed to have
certified the completeness and truthfulness of the claim or data.

6.1.1.3 Offset of Capitation Payments. As applicable, Alameda Alliance shall offsel against
Capitation payrments to Medical Group for those payments made by Alameda Alliance for Capitated
Services, when such payment is necessary (i) tc provide timely Medically Necessary services to a
Medical Group Member or (i} to fulfifl a statutory or regulatory obligation and thereby avoid an adverse
impact on Alameda Alliance. It is understood that Alameda Alliance shail first request Medical Group
make such appropriate payment, and Alameda Alliance may then make payment if Medical Group fails to
do 50 in a timely manner.

6.1.2  Fee-For-Service Payment. For Non-Capitated Services, Medical Group shall bill Alameda
Aliiance for the provision of services in accordance with the procedures as set forth in the Provider
Manual. Alameda Alliance shail pay Medical Group for complete claims for Covered Services provided in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement at the rates set forth in Exhibits B, B1. C, C1 and D, as
applicable, minus any applicable co-payment. In order to receive payment for services rendered, not
included in Capitation payment, Medical Group shalf submit claims to Alameda Alliance within one
hundred and eighty (180} calendar days from the date of service for authorized health care services
provided to Members. The claim must be submitted on a CMS 1500 claim form (or its successor forms)
and shall include all information necessary to verify and substantiate the provision of and charges for
heafth care services, including providing the Authorization number, as applicable. Alameda Alfiance may
deny payment for any bills nct received by Alameda Alliance within one hundred and eighty {180}
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calendar days of the date of service and in such event, neither Medical Group nor Medical Group
Praviders may bill Member for such services. If Aiameda Alliance denies payment for failure of timely
filing, Medical Group has only 365 calendar days of such denial to appeal following such denial.

6.1.2.1 Payment Timeframe. {Jpon submission of a complete and uncontested Clean Claim,
payment or denial shail be made to Medical Group within forty-five (45) working days. An uncontested
Clean Claim shall include all information needed to process the claim.

8.12.1.1 Alameda aAlliance shall notify Medical Group in writing not later than
forty-five (45) working days after receipt of a claim by Alameda Alliance if Alameda Alliance intends to
contest or deny the claim. The notice shall identify the portion of the claim that is contested and the
specific reason Alameda Alliance is contesting the claim. If the claim is contested because Alameda
Alliance has not received the information necessary to determine Alameda Alliance liability for the claim,
Medical Group shall have forty-five (45) working days from the date of the notice to provide the
information reguested. Thereafter, Alameda Alliance shall complete its consideration of the claim within
forty-five (45) working days after Alameda Alliance receives the information requested by Alameda
Alliance.

6.1.22 |f Alameda Alliance identifies an overpayment it has made to Medical Group, it may
request a refund of such overpayment within three hundred sixty-five (3658) calendar days of the date the
payment was made, unless the overpayment is the result of fraud or misrepresentation on the part of
Medical Group. Alameda Aliiance shail notify Medical Group in writing of such overpayment. Medical
Group shall have thirty (30} caiendar days to contest Alameda Aiilance’s notice in writing. Alameda
Alliance shall process Medical Group's contest in accordance with the pravisions of the Provider Manual.
If Medical Group does not contest Alameda Alliance’s notice, Medical Group shall have thirty (30}
calendar days to reimburse Alameda Alliance or Alameda Alliance may offset such overpayment from
amounts due to Medical Group with a written detailed explanation of such offset. Alameda Afliance’s
procedures for notification of overpayments and notification of recovery of overpayments shall be in
accordance with Title 28 of the California Code of Regulations Section 1300.71(d).

6.1.3 Pay for Performance.

6.1.3.1 Payment. Alameda Alliance may pay Medical Group a performance based
payment(s) according to the criteria communicated to all Alameda Alliance Participating Providers. Such
payment({s) may include, but are not limited o, Medical Group's performance in administrative and quality
measures reflective of the Healthcare Effectiveness Data Information Set (HEDIS) Reporting, patient
satisfaction, site review scores, and timely reporting of encounter data. The performance hased
payment{s} shall be made no later than one hundred twenty (120) calendar days following the end of
Alameda Alliance's fiscal year each June 30th,

6.1.3.2 Performance Based Payment(s). To be qualified o receive performance based
payment(s), Medical Group shall be in good standing with Alameda Alliance (i) for the twelve month fiscal
year and through the date of the payment distribution and (i) for whom a Medical Services Agreement
was in effect as of June 30 of the fiscal year for which the payment is being determined. The payment(s)
may be decreased or eliminated at the sole discretion of Alameda Afliance.

6.1.3.3 Timeliness. The timeliness of payment by Alameda Alliance may he contingent upan
and may be deiayed or deferred as a result of non-payment or deferral of payment from the California
Pepartment of Health Care Services to Alameda Alliance. Once Alameda Alliance receives fuli payment
from DHCS Alameda Alliance shall pay Participating Physician within ten {10) working days.

6.2 Pavments for Non-Covered Services

To the extent permitted by law and subject to the obligation to coordinate benefits, Medical Group may
seek payment directly from or on behalf of Medi-Cal and Group Care Members for Non-Covered Services
at Medical Group’s usual and customary charges for such services. Notwithstanding the above, in order
to seek payment from a Member, Medical Group or Medical Group Provider must first have advised
Member in writing, before the services were rendered, that the services in guestion will not be covered
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and that, if Member decides to obtain the services, Member will be financially liabte for payment for those
services.

6.3 Ihird Party Liens

In the event a Member seeks and obtains a recovery from a third party or a third party's insurer for injuries
caused to that Member, and only to the extent permitted by the Alameda Alliance Program applicabie to
Member, Member’s Evidence of Coverage and by State and/or Federat law, Medical Group shali have the
right to assert a third party lien for and to recover from Member the reasonable value of Covered Services
provided to Member by Medical Group for the injuries caused by the third party. Medical Group
acknowledges that recoveries on behalf of Medi-Cal Members are not permitted, such recoveries being
due to the State of California. Medical Group’s pursuit and recovery under third party liens shall be
conducted in strict accordance with State and Federal laws and the procedures set forth in the Provider
Manual. Alameda Alliance shall similardy have the right to assert a lien for and recover for payments made
by Alameda Alliance for the treatment of such injuries. Medical Group shall cooperate with Alameda
Alliance in identifying such Third Party Liahility claims and in praviding such information, within such time
frarmmes, as set forth in the Pravider Manual. Medical Group shall cooperate with and assist Alameda
Alliance and DHCS in obtaining said recoveries, including but not limited to, any claims or other records
requested by DHCS and needed for the pursuit of recovery. Medical Group shall notify Alameda Alliance
of any event or occurrence involving a Medical Group Member ihat is connected to a civil suit, worker's
compensation claim or casualty insurance claim conceming Medical Group Member's health condition.

6.4 Coordination of Benefits

6.4.1  Primary Payor. When Alameda Alliance is primary under applicabie Coordination of
Benefits (COB) rules provided in Titte 28 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 1300.67.13,
Alameda Alliance shall pay Participating Physician as set forth is this Agreement in Exhibit B, 81, C, C1
and D, as applicable. In the event that Alameda Aliiance is not the primary payor of Medical Group
Member, Medical Group must first seek reimbursement from the primary payor in accordance with
Alameda Alliance's policy and procedure on Coordination of Benefits, set forth in the Provider Manual
before making any demand for payment from Alameda Alliance. Medical Group shall cooperate with and
abide by Alameda Alliance's administration of Coordination of Benefit rules set forth in the contracts
under this Agreement, as applicable, and the Coordination of Benefit rules set forth in the Provider
Manual. Alameda Alliance’s obligation hereunder with respect to such Covered Services shall be limited
to the amount, if any, which when added to the amount obtained by Medical Group fram such primary
payors, equals the amount of compensation for which Medical Group is entiied under this Agreement for
such services.

6.5 Member Billing

651 Member Non-Liability. Members will not be liable for payment of monies owed by
Alameda Alliance or its delegates. Medical Group shall and shall require each Medica! Group Provider to
iock only to Alameda Alliance, and, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement and, if applicable, its
delegates, for compensation for Covered Services renderad to a Member. Medical Group shalt and shall
reguire each Medical Group Provider to iook to the applicable Alameda Aliance Program for payment of
any services covered under the Members Evidence of Coverage.

6.5.2 Action Against Member, Medical Group agrees and shall require each Medical Group
Provider o agree that they will not, under any circumstances (including but not timited to nonpayment by
or insolvency of Alameda Alliance) bill, charge, colect a depasit from, seek compensation from, seek
remuneration from, seek reimbursement frorm, impose a Surcharge on or have any recourse against
Mermber or persons acting on behalf of Member (other than Alameda Alliance), except to the extent that
Copayments are specified in Member’s applicable Alameda Alliance Program, its associated Evidence of
Caverage and State and/or Federal law under this Agreement or for Non-Covered Services or as
permitted under the Coordination of Benefits provision of this Agreement. Medical Group agrees and shall
require each Medical Group Provider to agree not to maintain any action at law or in equity against a
Member to collect sums that are cwed by Alameda Alliance under the terms of this Agreement, even if
Alameda Alliance fails to pay, becomes insolvent or otherwise breaches the terms and conditions of this
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Agreement. Medical Group shall and shall require each Medical Group Provider ta, whenever a
Surcharge has occurrad, refund, cor ensure the subcontractor or Covering Physician refunds, the charge
within fifieen (15) calendar days to Member, notifying Alameda Alliance of the action taken.

5.5.3 Copayments for Group Care Members only. Participating Physician shail bill and collect
from Member any Copayments, co-insurance and deductibles specifically permitted in a Member's
Evidence of Coverage or by regulatary agencies. Participating Physician shali use best efforts to arrange
payment terms for any authorized Copayments, coinsurance and deductibles, if requested by a Member
or Member's legal representative.

6.54 Modification Limitations/Regulatory Approval. No modification of this section 6.5 of the
Agreement shadl be effective until fifteen (13) calendar days after the appropriate State andfor Federal
regulating enlity has received written notification of the propased changes, or any longer period that the
State or Federal regulating entity may require.

6.6 Limitation of Action

Neither DHCS, CMS, DMHC, the State of California or the County of Alameda, or such other entities that
Alameda Alliance may enter into an agreement with shall be liable for payment of monies cwed by
Alameda Alliance or its delegates.

6.7 Withhold and Adjustments of Payments

6.7.1 Failure to Comply with Alameda Altiance Milization Management and Quality
improvement Program. Payments to Medical Group made pursuant to this Agreement may be withheld
by Alameda Alliance in the event Medical Group or Medical Group Providers fail, after receiving
appropriale notification, to materially comply with Alarmeda Alliance Utilization Management or Guality
Improvement Program, including, but not limited to autharization procedures, site visits, re-credentialing,
and corrective action plans, and Grievance Procedures until Medical Group compiies. Upon Medical
Group compliance, payments withheld to Medical Group will be reversed.

8.7.2 Non-Payment to Alameda Alliance. In the event DHCS, CMS, Public Authority and/or
such other entities for whom Alameda Alliance contracts with to provide health care services fails to pay
monthly premiums for such services, Alameda Alliance reserves the right to defer payments to Medica!
Group. To the extant that payments by DHCS, CMS, Public Authority andfor such other entities with
whom Alameda Alliance contracts with to provide services caver all manthly premiums for which Alameda
Alliance is owed, Alameda Alliance will pay deferred payment amounts covered by those monthly
premiums to the provider.

6.7.3 Administration of Payments. Alameda Alliance agrees to transmit Capitation Payments
and other payments to Medical Group in accordance with the terms and procedures set forih in the
Agreement. All payments are subject to the availability of Federal congressional appropriation of funds.
The State of California operates on a fiscal year from July 1 thraugh June 30. The DHCS' funding is
based on the budget and appropriations, and subject to the availakility of Federal congressional
appropriation of funds. In turn, payments to State contractors are tied to the scope of services in State law
and amounts budgeted.

SECTION 7: RECORDS, AUDITS AND REPORTS

7.1 RBecords To B¢ Kep}

7.1.1  Financial. Medical Group shall and shall require each Medical Group Provider to maintain
on a current basis, books, records, documents, and other evidence, using accounting procedures and
practices sufficient to reflect properly all direct and indirect costs of whatever nature claimed to have been
incurred in the performance of this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shalt keep separate records of the number and
nature of visits by Medical Group Members, Medical Group agrees thal the books and records of Medical
Group may not be removed from the state of California without the prior consent of DMHC.
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7.1.2  Medical Group Member Medical Records. Medical Group shall and shall require each
Medical Group Provider to maintain in an accurate and timely manner the usual and customary records
for Members in the same manner as for other patients of Medical Greup and Medical Group Providers.
Medical Group shall and shall require each Medical Group Provider to maintain madical records related to
a Medical Group Member's eligibility for services, the service rendered, Medical Group Member to whom
the service was rendered, the date of the service, the Medical Necessity of the service and the quality of
the gervice provided. Te the extent permitted by law, Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall
provide Alameda Alliance and regulatory agencies access to the member medical record at no cost, as
well as all pertinent information relating to the health care for each Member.

7.1.3 Transfer of Medical Group Member. The obligation to maintain records shalf not be
waived by the transfer of Medical Group Members. As provided under Section 11.8.2, in the event of
termination or suspension of this Agreement, Medical Group Members’ medical records shail be
maintained and accessible to Alameda Alliance or other Participating Providers at a reasonable tocation
and within a reasonabie time. Upen termination of this Agreement, or the re-assignment or transfer of
Members, one copy of such records shall be provided withaut charge to Member's new Medical Group
upon request.

7.2 nspection Rights

7.2.1  Availability of Records. Medical Group at no cost shall require each Medical Group
Provider o provide all of their books, subcontracts and recards (including member medical records)
pertaining to the goeds and services furnished under the terms of this Agreement or pertaining to any
threatened or pending litigation by or against DHCS, and make such records available for inspection,
examination cr copying in a timely manner by: Alameda Alliance, DHCS, CMS, DMHC, the United States
Cepartment of Justice, the Comptrolier General, the Gavernment Accountability Office, County of
Alameda, or other governmental agency with jurisdiction over the parties to this Agreement, at all
reasonable times al Medical Group's or Medical Group Providers' facility or at such other mutually-
agreeable focation in California. Such records shall be maintained in accordance with the general
standards applicable to such book or record-keeping; and for a term of at least ten {10) years from the
close of the most recent Alameda Alliance fiscal year in which this Agreement was in effect or for such
longer pericd as may be required by law.

7.2.2  Audit of Records. Records may be audited and reviewed for purposes including, but not
limitad to, manitoring of the following areas: (i) level and guality of care, and the necessity and
appropriateness of the services provided; {ii) internal procedures for assuring efficiency, economy, and
quality of care; (iii} grievances relating to medical care and their disposition; (iv) financial records, status
and reporting; and (v} the Medical Group subcontracts and Medical Group's compensation/finance
records relating to such subcontract and compensation from Alameda Alliance when determined
necessary by Alameda Alliance in erder {o comply with statutes, regulations or contractual obligations to
assure accountability for public funds. [f GHCS, CM5 or the DHHS Inspector General determines there is
a reasonable possibility of fraud of similar risk, DHCS, CMS, or the DHHS Inspector may inspect,
evaluate and audit Medical Group at any time. Upon resolution of full investigation of fraud, DHCS
reserves the right to suspend or terminate the Medical Group from participation in the Medi-Cal program,
seek recovery of payments made to Medical Group, impose other sanctions provided under the State and
terminate this Agreement.

7.23  Transmittal of Medical Records. Witnout limiting the foregoing, Medical Group shall,
without charge, transmit Member's medical records information to a Member's other providers, to
government officials, and to Alameda Alliance for administrative purposes.

7.2.4 Member Access to Medical Records. Medical Group shall and shall require each Medical
Group Provider to ensure that Members without charge have access to their medical recerds in
accordance with the requirements of Member's applicable Alameda Alliance Program and State and/or
Federal law.
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7.3 Reporing

Medical Group shall provide necessary information, which shall include but is not limited to encounter
data, to support Alameda Alliance compliance with any regulatory requirements of the Member's
applicable Alameda Alliance Program, its associated Member's Evidance of Coverage and by State
and/or Federal law. Alameda Alliance shall provide Medical Group with formats and timeframes of such
reports. Medical Group shall also provide ad hoc reports, upon request, to support Alameda Alliance
compliance with Applicable Requirements.

7.4 Regquired Changes

Medical Group and Medical Group Providers agree to implement any changes reasonably required as a
resuit of any such inspection, examination or audit.

SECTION 8: INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

8.1 Professional Liability losurance

Each Medical Group Provider who provides services pursuant to this Agreement, whether for
compensation or volurtary, shall be covered by fiability insurance of at least One Million Dollars
{$1,000,000) per accurrence, and Three Million Dollars in annual aggregate ($3,000,000). Insurance
coverage shall include professionai errors and omissions (malpractice] in providing health care services
to Medical Group Members. Medical Group or each Medical Group Provider shall purchase "tail
coverage” in the same amounts for a period of not less than five (5) years following the effective
termination date of the above mentioned policy in the event that said policy is a "claims made" policy. If
Medical Group or @ Medical Group Provider fails ta purchase tail coverage as required herefn, Alameda
Aliiance shall have the right to purchase said coverage and Medical Group and Medical Group Providers
collectively shall be liable to Alameda Alliance for all costs and expenses incurred in said purchase. In
addition to coverage for each Medical Group Provider, Medical Group shall have professional liability
coverage for Medical Group as an entity in the One Million Dollar ($1,000,000), Three Million Dollar
($3,000,000) amounts set forth abave and with the five {5) year tail coverage provided for above.

8.2 QtherInsurance

Medical Group and each Medical Group Provider shall carry general liability insurance in at least the
minimum amount of Threg Hundred Thousand Doilars {$300,000) per occurrence and workers'
compensation and employers' liability coverage to the extent required by law.

8.3 Cedificates ot Insurance

Medical Group at Medical Group's sole cost and expense shalt provide to Alameda Alliance upon request
certificates of insurance or verifications of required coverage, and shalt provide a thirty {30) calendar day
written notice to Alameda Afliance of any notice of cancellation or material change in coverage for any
and all coverage required by this Agreement, and for subsequent renewals of all required coverage.,

8.4  Notification of Modification/Termination of Material T

Medical Group shall provide timely notification to Alameda Alliance of Medical Group’s andfor Medica
Group Provider's insurance coverage termination or modification.

85 Indemnification of Al 12 All

Medical Group and Medical Group Providers agree to indemnify, to defend at their sole expense, to save
and hold harmless Alameda Alfiance, the Federal Government, State of California, and County of
Alameda, and their respective directors, supervisors, officers, agents, and employees, from any and all
liability in addition to any and all lesses, claims, actions, lawsuits, damages, judgments of any kind
whatsoever arising out of the breach of contract, negligent acts, omissions or intentional misconduct of
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Medical Group or, Medical Group Providers, their employees, including but not limited to court costs and
reasonabie attorneys’ fees, in conneclion with the performance of this Agreement,

8.6 |ngd ificat] f Medical G

Except as limited by, and subject to, any privileges and immunities that may apply to Alameda Alliance as
a county public agency under the Califomnia Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.35, Title 1 ofthe
California Government Code and other applicable provisions granting privileges and immunities to public
agencies, Alameda Alliance agrees to indemnify, to defend at its sole expense, to save and hold
harmless Medical Group and Medical Group's respective directors, supervisors, officers, agents, and
employees, from any and all liability in addition to any and all losses, claims, actions, lawsuits, damages,
judgments of any kind whatsoever arising out of the breach of contract or intentional misconduct of
Alameda Alliance or Alameda Alliance's empioyees, including but not limited to court costs and
reasonable attorneys’ fees, in connaction with the performance of this Agreement.

87  Non-Exclusivity

The parties acknowledge that Medical Group will not render professional services exclusively on behalf of
Alameda Alliance or Members. However, Medical Group shall be willing and able to accept and serve as
the Primary Care Physician for Alameda Alliance Members who select or are assigned to Medical Group
as their Primary Care Physician. Members have the right at all times to designate whether they shall be
served by Medical Group and Alameda Alliance does not represent or warrant that any particular number
or type of Member{s} shall select Medical Group to service as their Primary Gare Physician. Medical
Group shall neither represent nor imply in any way that such services are being rendered by or on behalf
of Alameda Alliance.

SECTION 9: MEMBER GRIEVANCES

9.1  Submission of Member Grievance

All Member complaints and grievances received by Medical Group or Medical Group Providers must be
forwarded immediately to Alameda Alliance. In the event a Member files a complaint or grievance
regarding Medical Group or any Medical Group Provider, Medica!l Group and Medical Group Provider
agree to cooperate with and participate in Alameda Alliance Member Grievance Procedures as they
pertain to complaints and grievances filed by Members including those Member Grievance Procedures
set forth in the Provider Manua! in accordance with the time limits required by the Member's applicabie
Alameda Alliance Program and State andfor Federal law.

9.2 Resclution of Member Grievance

Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall comply with Alameda Alliance's resolution of any such
complaints or grievances including specific findings, conclusicns and crders of DMHC. Medicat Group
shall adhere to these procedures for the prompt receipt, processing, and resolution of such matters in
accordance with ail Applicable Reguirements.

SECTION 10: PROVIDER GRIEVANCES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

10.1 PBrovider Grievances

10.1.1 Provider Grievance Procedures. Alameda Alliance's Provider Grievance Procedures
described in the Provider Manual comply with Sections 1367(R), 1371, 1371.1, 1371.2, 1371.22, 1371.35,
1371.38, 1371.37, 1371.4, and 1371.8 of the California Health and Safety Code and Sections 1300.71,
1300.71.38, 1300.71.4, and 1300.77.4 of Title 28 of the California Code of Regulations. Medical Group
has the right to file a grievance in accordance with Alameda Alliance's formal grievance and formal
dispute resclution process.
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10.1.2 Complaints Regarding Alameda Alliance Owversight. Should Medical Group have
complaints or concerns related to any action taken by Alameda Alliance with respect to the oversight and
administration of Medical Group or Medical Group Frovider's provision of heaith care services, including,
but not limited to, scope of service determinations, Autharization decisions, and the assignment or
reassignment of Medical Group Members, such complaints or concerns shall be fully resolved acceording
to the Provider Grievance Procedures as set forth in the Provider Manuat.

10.1.3 Binding Decision. In executing this Agreement, Medical Group and Alameda Alliance
agree to be bound by the decisions and resolutions on such issues that emerge from the Provider
Grievance Procedures except as otherwise provided by law.

10.1.4 Complaints Regarding Contractual Obligations. Medical Group complaints related to
performance by the parties of their respective contractual obfigations herein, other than those covered in
section 10.1.2, shall be resclved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution Procedure set forth in section 10.2 of
this Agreement.

10.2 Dispute Resolution

If a dispute arises relating to the performance by the parties of their respective obligations under this
Agreement, which cannot be settled threugh negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle
the dispute through the Provider Grievance Procedures as set forth in the Provider Manual. Except for
matters that are subiect to Member or other Grievance Procedures as described in sections 8.1 and 3.2
and in the Provider Manual and exciuding any dispute arising out of, relating to, or in connection with any
malpractice or professional fiability claim {unless expressly consented to by the parties’ insurance
carriers} if the parties hereto are unable to resclve any dispute arising out of, relating to or in connection
with this agreement, or the construction of interpretation of this Agreement, and the internal dispute
resolution process has been exhausted without achieving a resoiution, then such dispute shall be
resolved as follows:

10.2.1 Binding Arbitration. Medical Group and Alameda Aliiance shall submit the dispute to
binding arbitration. if the parties cannct agree on an arbitrator within ten (10} working days after either
parly has requested that the dispute be submitted to arbitration, then the parties agree that the arbitrator
shall be a retired judge from the San Francisco panel of JAMS/Endispute.

10.2.2 Shared Costs. The parties shall share all costs of arbitration. The prevailing party shall be
entifled to reimbursement by the other party of such party's reasonable attomeys' fees, costs and any
arbitration fees hereunder.

10.2.3 Substantive Law. The substantive law of the State of California and Federal substantive
taw where State law is preempted, shall be applied by the arbitrator. The parties shalf have the rights of
discovery as provided for in Parl 4 of the California Code of Civil Procedure and as provided for in
Sections 1283 and 1283.05 of said Code. The California Code of Evidence shall apply to testimony and
documents submitted to the arbitrator. The arbitrator shall have the power to enforce the rights, remedies,
duties, liabilities, and obiigations of discovery by the imposition of the same terms. conditions and
penaities as can he imposed in like circumstances in a civil action by a Superior Court of the State of
California. Copies of all exhibits and demonstrative evidence to be used at the arbitration shall be duly
exchanged in advance. However, rebuttal and impeachment evidence need not be exchanged until
presented at the arbitration haaring.

10.2.4 Arbitration Location. Arbitration shall take place in Alameda, California unless the parties
otherwise agree. As soon as reasonably practical, a hearing with respect to the dispute or matter o be
resclved shall be conducted by the arbitrator. As soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, the arbitrator
shalt arrive at a final decision, which shall include factual findings and legal reasoning, which the decision
is based, which shall be reduced to writing, signed by the arbitrator and mailed ta each of the parties and
their legal counsel,

10.2.5 Arbitrator Powers. The arbitrator shall have the power to grant all legs! and equitable
remedies and award compensatory damages provided by California law, except that punitive damages
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may not be awarded. The arbitrator shail not have the power to commit errors of law or legal reasoning,
and the award may be vacated or correct pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1286.2
or 1286.6 for any such error.

10.2.6 Arbitration Decisions. Afl decisions of the arbitrator shall be final, binding and coenclusive
on the parties and shall constitute the onty method of resolving disputes or matters subject to arbitration
pursuant to this Agreement. The arbitrator or court of appropriate jurisdiction may issue a writ of
execution to enforce the arbitrator's judgment. Judgment may be entered upon such a decision in
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction theraof.

10.2.7 Injunctive Relief. Notwithstanding the above, in the event either party wishes to obiain
injunctive relief or a temporary restraining order, such party may initiate an action for such relief in a court
of law and the decision of the court of law with respact to the injunctive relief or temporary restraining
order shall be subject to appeal only through the courts of law. The courts of law shall not have the
authority to review or grant any request or demand for damages or declaratory relief.

10.2.8 Conditions of Arbitration. Notwithstanding the forgoing, any and all arbitration
proceedings are canditicnal upon such proceedings being coverad within the parties’ respective risk
insurance policies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, neither party shall be required to arbitrate
malpractice or other third party ciaims.

10.2.9 Alleged Injury or Death. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should the parties agree to
arbitrate any dispute arising out of or connected to the alleged injury or death of 2 Member or any action
described in Section 340.5 of the California Code of Civil Procedure, such arbitration shall be subject to
the California Medical injury Compensation Reform Act of 1975, as amended from time to time, as if the
arbitration were an action fited in State court, and shail be deemed time barred and unenforceable, and
not subject to arbitration, unless a written demand for arbitration 1o such dispute has been delivered to the
applicable party hereto, within the time allowed to commence an action under Section 340 .5 of the
California Code of Civil Procedure.

SECTION 11: TERM, TERMINATION AND NOTICE

111 Jem

The effeclive dale of this Agreement shall be as stated in the opening paragraph of this Agreement. The
Agreement shall have an initial term of one year (the “Initial Term”) and shall automatically renew for
subsequent periods of one (1) year until such time as this Agreement is terminated pursuant to the terms
set forth herein,

11.2 Termination Without Cause

Following the Initial Term, Medical Group or Alameda Aliiance may terminate this Agreement at any time
without cause upon providing the other party with sixty (60} calendar days prior written notice, The
termination shall become effective the first day of the month following the expiration of the notice period.

11.3  Termination for Material Breach

Either party may, subject o the cure period set forth in Section 11.3.3, terminate this Agreement for
materiat cause after written notice as set forth hereinafter, The following shall constitute a material cause
for termination.

11.3.1 Medical Group. Medical Group may terminate for material cause if: (i) Alameda Adliance
fails, except as provided in Section 6.7, to consistently make payments by the dates such payments are due;
or, {ii revocation of Alameda Alliance's license necessary for the performance of this Agreement: or, (jij)
Alameda Alliance breaches any material term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement.
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11.3.2 Alameda Alliance. Alameda Alliance may terminate for material cause if: {i there is a filing
of bankruptey by Medicat Group, a parent or subsidiary or substantiat deterioration in the financial condition of
Medical Group, a parent, affiliate or subsidiary, or, (i} Medical Group fails to provide quality health care
services consistent with the standards set forth in this Agresment; or, (i) Medical Group breaches any
material term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement, including but not limited to: {a} failure of Medical
Group or Medical Group Providers to comply with Alameda Alliance's policies and procedures including
Member Grievance or Quality Improvement Committee decisions, Applicable Requirements, the provisions of
the Provider Manual or other requirerments of Alameda Alliance; or (b) expiration or earlier termination of
applicable Alameda Alliance Agreement.

11.3.3 Notice and Cure Period. A party seeking to terminate this Agresment for materiai breach
shall notify the other party in writing of the nature of the breach and the other party shall have thirty (30)
calendar days from the receipt of such notice to cure or otherwise elirminate such cause. I the other party
does not remeady the breach, io the reasonable satisfaction of the non-breaching party. this Agreement shall
terminate at the end of the thirty (30) calendar day period.

11.4  Additional Bases for Termination

Medical Group or Alameda Alfiance may terminate this Agreement upen providing the other party with
sixty (80) calendar days prior written notice in the event there are: (i) changes affecting (or resulting from)
Alameda Alliance Agreement; or (i) substantial changes under other public or private health care
programs or policies, which will have a material datrimental financial effect on the operations of Medical
Group or Alameda Alliance. In any case where such notice is provided, both parties shall negotiate in
good faith during such sixty (60) calendar day period in an effort to develop a revised agreement, which,
to the extent reasonably practicable under the circumstance, will adequately protect the interests of both
parties in light of the change(s) which constituted the basis for the exercise of this termination provision.

11.5  |mmediate Termination

Notwithstanding any provision of section 11.3.3 to the contrary, Alameda Alliance may immediately
terminate this Agreement in the event that Medical Group is excluded from participation in applicable
Alameda Alliance Pragram, or if Medical Group and Medical Group Physician or Participating Provider
fails to maintain all insurance required herein, or if Alameda Alliance, after consulting with Medical Group,
determines in good faith that continuation cf this Agreement may reasonably be expected to jecpardize
the health, safety, or welfare of Members, or if Alameda Alliance reasonably determines, after consulting
with Medical Group, that Medical Group is likely to be financially unable to provide and/or pay for, in a
competent and timely manner, Covered Services.

Additionally, Alameda Alliance may immediately terminate this agreement upon the suspension or
revocation of Medical Group's license to practice medicing in the State of California; the suspension or
termination of Medical Group's membership on the active medical staff of any hospital; or the suspension,
revocation or reduction in Medical Group's clinical privileges at any hospital; or suspension from the State
Megi-Cal or Medicare program, or if Medical Group's name is found on the following Medi-Cal Suspended
and Ineligible Provider list posted at http://files. medi-cal. ca.govipubsdoco/Sangdltand. agp; or if Medical
Group Is subject of any indictments, disciplinary actions or progeedings under the terms of any Alameda
Alliance Program or by any government agency; or failure to meet Alameda Alliance’s re-credentialing
criteria.

11.6  Iermination for Anticipatory Breach

If Alameda Alliance reasonably determines that Medical Group will fail to fulfill its obligations as set forth
in this Agreement, or will viclate any of the covenants as set forth in this Agreement, Alameda Alliance
shall thereupon have the right to terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to
Medical Group of such termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. Based upon
Alameda Alliance’s reasonable determination, should Medical Group cure the anticipatory failure or
viotation, Alameda Alliance shall rescind its notice of termination.
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11.7  Termmination Not an Exciusive Remedy

The termination of this Agreement by either party pursuant to this SECTIGN 11: TERM, TERMINATION
AND NOTICE is not an exclusive remedy and such terminating party retains whatever rights in law or equity
as may be necessary to enforce its nghts under this Agreement. Alameda Alliance may, in lieu of
termination of this Agreement, withhold new Member assignment, suspend this Agreement, reassign
Members or suspend payment.

1.8 Effect of Termination

As of the date of termination, this Agreement shalt be considered of no further force or effect whatsoever, and
each of the parties shall be relieved and discharged here from, except under the conditions set forth below.

11.8.1 Rights or Obligations. Termination shall not affact any rights or obligations hereunder which
have previously accrued, or shall hereafter arise with respact to any occurrence prior to termination, and such
rights and ebligations shall continue to be governed by the terms of this Agreement.

11.8.2 Termination of This Agreement. In the event of termination of this Agreement, Medical
Group shall and shall require each Medical Group Provider to comply with all applicable reguirements of the
Knox-Keene Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder, including but not limited to these set forth in
California Health and Safety Code Section 1373.65.

11.8.3 Continuity of Care. Medical Group agrees and shall require each Medical Group Provider to
agree to conlinue rendering Covered Services for completion of such Covered Services under Califomia
Health and Safety Code Section 1373.96(c) and Section 422,504 of the Code of Federal Regulations after
the termination of this Agreement fo Medical Group Members at the rates in effect immediately prior to the
date of termination, for the duration of Alarneda Alliance Agreements in effect with Alameda Alliance through
which Members are enrolled with Alameda Alfiance, or unti! such time as Alameda Alliance has arranged for
the provision of such services through another Participating Provider. Alameda Alliance shall be financially
responsible for Covered Services provided by Medical Group Provider under this Continuity of Care
provision.

11.8.4 Transition of Care. Medical Group shali and shali require each Medical Group Provider to
cooperate with Alameda Alliance to faclitate a smooth transition of care for Medical Group Members to
other Parlicipating Providers. This cooperation shall include, at 2 minimum, an orderly transfer of medical
records of Medical Group Members to Participating Providers. ¥Without limiting the foregaing, Participating
Physician shall be responsible for the following: (a) coordination of referrals of Members to other
Participating Providers; (b) preventive services (¢) health rigsk assessments; (d} treatment planning; and
{d) monitoring of continuity of care and appropriateness of services.

11.8.5 Professional Rights Upon Termination. Medical Group shail be entitled to a fair hearing
regarding Alameda Alliance actions of denial, termination, sanction, or reduction of participation when the
cause of the action is related to clinical competency or professional conduct. Medical Group must exhaust
the remedies afforded by the Alameda Alliance’s Credentialing and re-credentialing policies. Otherwise,
the Medical Group shall have waived the hearing appeal rights of Alameda Alliance and shall have to
accept the plan's denial, termination, sanction, or reduction of participation.

11.8.5.1 Nofification wili be promptly made to Medical Group, via certified mail, of all actions
made by Alameda Alliance, which constitute grounds for a hearing as listed herein.

11.8.5.2 Medical Group has thirty (30} calendar days for the date of receipt of notification of
action in which to request a hearing.

11.8.5.3 Alameda Alliance’s termination of this Agreement in accordance with its termsshaii
be final and Medical Group shall have no right to a fair hearing or other procedure to appeal Alameda
Alliance’s decision through any formal or informal administrative hearing or review process of any kind,
except when the grounds for termination is due to medical disciplinary action or due to reasons of clinical
competency or professional conduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Alameda Alliance shall comply with
all applicable terminaticn notice and appeal requirements as may be provided in applicabie law.
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1186 Alameda Alliance Insolvency. Medical Group shall and shall require 2ach Medical Group
Provider to, in the event of Alameda Alliance's insclvency, continue rendering Covered Services to any
Member who is an inpatient of a hospital until such Member's discharge or transfer to another appropriate
faciitty.

11.8.7 Survival of Terms. The foliowing sections of this Agreement shall survive the termination of
this Agreement, whether such termination is the result of rescission of otherwise: Sections 1.31,3.14,3.1.5,
372,413,65 /71,72 73 74,85,86,91,82,101,10.2, 11.8.3, 11.84,12.6.

112 Member Communijcations Concerning Termination

Al written, printed, or electronic communications to Members concerning termination of this Agreement shall
comply with California Health and Safety Code Section 1373.65{f) if applicable.

11.10  Notification

Alameda Alliance and/or Medical Group as appropriate shall, as required, notify DHCS, CMS, DMHC, or
other appropriate govemmental agencies if this Agreement is terminated. Notification shall be provided in
writing and sent through the United States Postal Service via first-class registered or certified mail.

SECTION 12: GENERAL PROVISIONS

121 Non-Discrimination/Equal Employment,

Medical Group and Medical Group Providers' primary consideration shail be the guality of the heatth care
services rendered to Members. Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall not discriminate
against any Member in the provision of Covered Services con the basis of sex, marital status, sexual
orientation, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, income level, disability, health status, genstic
characteristics, health insurance coverage, utilization of medical or mental health services of supplies or
other uniawful basis inciuding without limitation, the filing by such Member of any cornpliant, grievance or
legal action against Medical Group or Medical Group Providers. Without limiting the foregoing, Medical
Group and Medical Group Providers shall comply with all Applicable Requirements regarding non-
discrimination and equal empicyment.

12.2  Assignment/Subcontracting

12.2.1  Accountability. Medical Group understands that Alameda Alliance may be held
accountable by regulatory agencies if Medical Group or Medical Group Providers or their subcontractors
or assignees fail to perform its duties under this Agreement or any subcontract amendment thereto.
Subject to the restrictions set forth herein, this Agreement shail be binding upon and shail inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective heirs {as applicable), legal representatives, and permitted
successors and assigns. Medical Group Members shalt not be included in any transfer of ownership or
control of Medical Group or & Medical Group Provider and shall not be automatically reassigned to any
purchaser of sama.

1222  Subcontracting Rights and Obligations. This Agreement is one for the personal
services of Medical Group and may not be assigned by Meadical Group without the prior written consent of
Alameda Alliance and DHCS. Any atternpt by Medical Group to assign this Agreement without prior
consent shail be null and void. Medical Group and Medical Group Providers shall net assign, transfer,
delegate or subcontract {collectively “Subcontract”) Medical Group’s rights or cbligations hereunder
without the prior written consent of Alameda Alliance, DHCS andfor the appropriate government agency,
if applicable. Any agreement to Subcontract Medical Group's rights or obligations shaf be void unless
such approvals are obtained. All agreements between Medical Group and Medical Group Providers and
any assignee, transferee, or subcontractor {the “Subcontractor™) shall be in writing and shall reguire
Subcontractor to comply with all terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to the following:

12.2.21 Availability of Records. Make ali applicable books and records availabie at ail
reasonable times for inspection, examinatian, or copying by Alameda Alliance, CMS, DHCS, DMHC, or
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any other governmental agency with jurisdiction over the parties to this Agreement as set forth in Section
4.11.

12.2.2.2 Records Retention. Retain such books and records for a term of at feast ten
(10) years from the close of Alameda Alliance’s fiscal year during which the Covered Services were
provided pursuant to the Subcontract as set forih in Section 7.2.1.

122.2.3 Surcharge. Not Surcharge for Covered Services provided to a Medicat Group
Member.

12.2.24 Compliance. Comply with all Applicable Requirements.

12.2.2.5 Submission of Claims. Submit Claims data in the manner consistent with the

terms of this Agreement, Provider Manual and Applicable Requirements.

12.2.2.6 Medical Group Responsibilities. Medical Group shall be responsible for each
assighee or subcontracltor performance under such assignment or subcontract. Alameda Alliance may
reguire Medical Group to remove from service any assignee or subcontractor who fails to comply with the
terms of this Agreement.

12.3 Waiver

A forgiveness by either party of any one or more defaults or performance failures on the part of the
defaulting party herein, shall not be construed to operate as a waiver by the forgiving party of its rights to
pursue legal remedies with respect to future defaults or performance faflures of the same or simitar nature
ar the defaults or performance failures related to other obligations of the defaulting party as set forth in
this Agreement,.

12.4 Severability

In the event any part of this Agreement is found to be unlawful or is ctherwise stricken, all other
provisicns shall remain in full force and effect and the parties shall continue to perform with respect
thereto.

12.5 Relationship of Parties

None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create nor shall be deemed or construed to
create any refationship between the parties hereto other than that of independent entities contracting with
each other herein solely for the purpose of affecting the provisions of this Agreement. Naither of the
parties hereto, nor any of their respective employees, shali be construed to be the agent, the employee or
the representative of the othar,

12.8 Confidentiality

12.6.1 Peer Related Information. Alameda Alliance and Medical Group Providers shall
maintain the confidentiality of peer related information to the fullest extent permitted by law. Medical
Group dues not waive the provisions of California Evidence Code Section 1157 and other applicable laws
with regard to peer review records.

12.6.1.1 Financial Information. Alameda Alliance agrees that it shall treat as confidential
all financial information provided by Medical Group in accordance with section 4.8.5 unless such
information is publicly available, and shall not disclose such information to others except as required by
law or as requested by Alameda Alliance’s ragulators.

12.6.2  Member Information and Records. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, any and all types of information, oral or written, pertaining to Medical Group Members is
confidential and shail be protected by Medical Group and Medical Group Providers from unautharized
disclosure in accordance with Applicable Requiraments, inciuding but not limited to, the Confidentiality of
Medical Information Act ("CMIA™), Title42, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 431.300 et seq., Section
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14100.2, California Welfare and Institutions Code, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
{HIPAA) and regulations adopted thereunder.

12.6.2.1 ldentifiable information. Identifiable information in Medical Group and Medical
Group Provider's possession regarding Medical Group Members will not be used for any purpose other
than carrying aut the express terms of this Agreament and will not be disclosed lo any party ather than
Alameda Alliance except as otherwise permitted by State and Federal law.

12.6.2.2 Disclosure of Information. All requests for disclosure of such information will be
promptly transmitted to Alameda Afliance.

12.6.3 Trade Sacrets/Compensation. Except as otherwise required by the Public Records Act
or by applicable regulatory agencies, the compensation terms of this Agreement and afl terms relating to
compensation shall be confidential. Medical Group shall and shall require each Medical Group Provider to
not disclose such terms (other than to government officials) except with the prior written consent of
Alameda Alliance. However, nothing herein shail prohibit Medical Group or Medical Group Providers from
disclosing to Members and others the method by which they are compensated (e.g. Capitation, Fee-For-
Service, etc.); it is the precise compensation amounts for which confidential treatment is required by this
provision.

12.8.4  Public Records. Medical Group acknowiedges and agrees that information,
communications and docurnents given by or to Alameda Alliance and meetings involving Alameda
Alliance management may be subject to public records and meetings iaws and reguiations, and Medicai
Group shall use best efforts to cooperate with Alameda Alliance in order that it may fully comply with the
reguirements of such {aws and requlations.

12.7  Ihird-Partv Rights

This Agreement is entered into by and between the parties hereto and for their benefit. There is no intent
by either party to create or establish a third-party beneficiary status or rights in a third party to this
Agreement, except for such rights expressly created and set forth in this Agreement. Except for such
parties, no such third party shall have any right to enforce or any right to enjoy any benefit created or
established under this Agreement.

128 Remedies

The remedies provided in this Agreement are not exclusive and are in addition to those provided by law.
Both parties recognize that monetary damages alone would be an insufficient remedy for a breach of
confidentiality pursuant to section 7.1 and 12.6. in the event of such a breach, the non-breaching party
shall be entitied to appropriate injunctive relief, in addition to all remedies, including menetary damages,
to which it is entitied by law. In the event that a party breaches this Agreement, the non-breaching party
shall be entitled to the expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and arbitration and/or court costs,
the nen-breaching party incurs as a result.

12.9 Eorce Majeure

Neither party will be responsible for failure of performance, other than for an obligation to pay money, due
to causes beyond its control, including without iimitation, acts of God or nature; terrorists acts, sovereign
acts of any Federal, State or foreign government; or shortage of materials.

12.10 Ambiguities

In the event of any ambiguity in this Agreement, this Agreement shall be interpreted according to its fair intent
and not for or against any one party on the basis of which party drafted the Agreement.

12.11 Captions

The captions herein are for convenience oniy and shall not affect the meaning or inferpretation of this

Agreement.
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12.12 Governing Law

The validity, enforcement, and interpretation of this Agreement shalf be determined and governad by
reference to the laws of the State of California and where applicable, the laws of the United States.

12.13 Change in Law

Should legislation affect the entittement of Medical Group Members or otherwise effect the terms of this
Agreement, this Agreement shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with Alameda Alliance’s
reasonable interpretation of the effect of the legislation.

12.14 Amendments

Alameda Alliance and/or Medical Group shall, nelify DHCS and, if appropriate, CMS, DMHG, Public Authority
or other appropriate govemment agencies regarding any amendments made pursuant to terms set forth
below if reguired. Parties acknowledge that the consent of DHCS and, under certain circumstances CMS,
DMHC, Public Authority or other appropriate govermment agencies shall be reguired for an amendment to be
effective which may take up to sixty (80} calendar days. Alameda Alliance will submit the amendment to the
DHCS at least thirty (30) calendar days pricr to the proposed effective date. The parties agree to cooperate in
obtaining such consent. Except as provided in this section, this Agreement may be amended only by mutual,
written consent of Alameda Alliance and Medical Group’s duly authorized representatives. Notwithstanding
the foregaing, if Alameda Alliance's legal counsel determings in good faith that this Agreement must be
modified to be in compliance with applicable State or Federal law or to meet the requirements of accreditation
organizations which accredit Alameda Alliance and its providers, Alameda Alliance may amend this
Agreement by delivering to Medical Group (the "Notice Date") a written amendment to this Agreement
incorporating the legalty required modifications {the "Legally-Required Amendment"), along with the reasons
therefore. Such Legally-Required Amendment shall be deemed accepted by Medical Group and an
amendment to this Agreement if Medical Group does not, within thirty {30) calendar days following said
Notice Date, deliver to Alameda Alliance its written cbjection of such Legally-Required Amendment. In the
event that Medical Group timely objects to such Legally-Required Amendment, then Medical Group and
Alameda Alliance shall confer in good faith regarding the amendment. in the event Medical Group and
Alameda Alliance cannot resclve Medical Group's objection, Medical Group may terminate this Agreement on
ninety (20} calendar days prior written notice to Alameda Aliance and the Legally-Reguired Amendment Io
which Medical Group chjected shall not be effective as to Medical Group during the termination notice period.

1215 Prospective Requirements

fn instances where Alameda Alliance is contractually obfigated by DHCS to revise its contracts with
providers to add newly prospective requirements to the Agreement, Medical Group or Subcontractor
agrees to comply with the néw requirements within thirty {30) calendar days from the effective date of the
proposed change.

1216  Notice

Whenever it shall become necessary for either party to notify the other party as provided for herein, such
notice shall be in writing and shail be served by overnight courier; or registered ar certified mail, return
receipt requested, addressed as foliows:

12.16.1 Served on Alameda Alliance. If served on Alameda Alliance, written notice shall be
addressed to the Chief Operating Officer at the address which appears on the signature page of this
Agreement unless another notice is specified in writing. If required by law or regulation, Medical Group
shall serve a separate notice to another party whose name and address have been provided by Alameda
Alliance in writing to Medical Group.

12.16.2 Served on Medical Group. If served on Medical Group, written notice shall be addressed
to Medical Group at the address which appears on the signature page of this Agreement unless another
notice address is specified in writing.
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12.16.3 Timeframe. Any such notice so mailed shall be deemed to have been served upon and
received by the addressee forty-eight (48) hours after the same has been deposited in registered or
certified United States mail, return receipt requested; or twenty-four {24} hours after deposit before the
daily deadline time with a reputable overnight courier or service. The parfy which dispatches the notice
shall have the burden of praving the date and time of deposit inta the United States mail should the issue
arise.

12.16.4 Change of Notice Location. Either party shall have the right to change the place to
which notice is to be sent by giving forty-eight (48) hours written notice to the other of any change of
address.

12.17 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, together with al! Schedules and Exhibits attached hereto and the Provider Manual,
contains the complete and exclusive Agreement between the parties relating to the rights herein granted
and the obiigations herein assumed. It is the express intention of the parties that any and all prior ar
contemporanecus agreements, promises, negotiations or representations, either oral or written, relating
to the subject matter and period governed by this Agreement which are not expressly set forth herein
shall be of no further force, effect or legal consequence after the effective date hersunder.

1218 Counterparts

This Agreement, and any amendments thereto, may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original document, but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

12.19 Peer Roview

The parties acknowledge and agreed that any Alameda Alliance committee that reviews the quality of
medicat services rendered by Medical Group or Medical Group Pravider shall act in the capacity of a peer
review committee for the purposes of applicabte law. For purposes of this section, “quality of medical
services” shalt include, without limitation, matters involving utllization management and review and
compliance with requirements, rules or regulations of Alameda Alliance refating the delivery, quality or
appropriateness of medical care provided to Members. Except as otherwise provided by law, the
immunities provided to peer review committees under applicable pravisions of the California Civil and
Health and Safety Code shali apply to any such Alameda Afliance committee, including Alameda
Alliance’s governing body, when performing the function described in the first sentence of this secticn
12.49.

12.20 |ndependent Contractor

Medical Group acknowledges and agrees that he or she is an independent contractor under this
Agreement and is a solely responsible for all compensation, benefits and withholds for his or her
employees and agents.

12.21 Proprietary Information

Medical Group acknowledges and agrees that alf information received from Alameda Alliance in
connection with Members and this Agresment, including without limitation, eligibility Member lists,
marketing malerials, Quality Improvement Plan, telephone numbers, Provider Manuals, records. and
agreements are proprietary information and trade secrets of Alameda Alliance, except tc the extent
available as public records.

12.22 Government Claims Act

Nothing in this Agreement modifies, amends or abridges the parties’ rights and obligations under
Government Code Section 900 et seq., and all resolution, policies, and regulations of the Alameda
Alliance for Health that implement Government Code section 900 ef seq.
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SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement o be effective on the date
first mentioned above.

PROVIDER ALAMEDA ALLIANCE FOR HEALTH

v L G

sighature signature

Name: ?F’(VQD Q#LﬁuELL

Title: Cro Matthew Woodruff
Chief Gperating Officer
Address: _:_g_"; e Th kel fve, 1240 South Loop Road
igusand g . . v 23 Alameda, California 94502
Fax:

P ~ g
. e : NI N Iv-f P
Emait: JHV Dj‘ﬁ.- ;w" ,ff_u}g? L £hET m‘?'—“'d"’

e
Date: o / Z.jf;’ i e Date. 085/06/2022

Tax ID#: 4 - 20igyoe s
nprg 12T ey

Medi-Cal # {if applicable}):

Medicare # (if applicable):

Matice contact/address if different from above:

Name;

Title:

Address:
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EXHIBIT A
COVERED SERVICES AND NON COVERED SERVICES

C. Covered Services

A, Participating Physician shall provide Covered Services to all Members who receive care
from Participating Physician as medically necessary.
B. Final determination of whether or not a service is covered will be made by Alameda

Alliance in accordance with the applicable program’s Evidence of Coverage, DHCS Medi-
Cal manual, DOFR and/or Provider Manual.

2. Medi-Cal Carve Out Benefits

In accordance with Alameda Alliance's Agreement with DHCS, there are some Medi-Cal benefits
which are not within the scope of Alameda Alliance’s Covered Services for Medi-Cal Members.
Subject to the conditions of the California Medi-Cal program, they may be covered outside
Alameda Alliance with or without the necessity of dis-enrofling. For a complete list of these
benefits please refer to the Member's Evidence of Coverage and Disclosure Forms located on the
Alameda Alliance web site listed under Carve-Out Benefits.

3. Benefit Exclusions ang Limitations

There are certain services that Alameda Alliance does not cover, or has set limitations to the
service. For a complete list of these benefits, please refer to the Member's Evidence of Coverage
and Disclosure Forms for the applicable program located on the Alameda Alliance website tisted
under Benefit Exclusions and Limitations.

Applicable Aiameda Alliance Program({s):
0 Medi-Cal (DHCS)
Alliance Group Care {IH3S)
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EXHIBIT B

REIMBURSEMENT — MEDI-CAL PRIMARY CARE PHYSICIAN

Intentionally Left Blank

All Provider Contract Boileriédle 32020
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EXHIBIT B-1
REIMBURSEMENT ~ GROUP CARE PRIMARY CARE PHYSICIAN

Intentionally Left Blank

All Prowder Contract Boilesplate 3-2020
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EXHIBITC
REIMBURSEMENT — MEDI-CAL (SPECIALIST)

Intentionally Left Blank

Al Prov-der Gonlrac: Bodenlats 3-2020
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EXHIBIT C-1

REIMBURSEMENT — GROUP CARE {SPECIALIST)

Intentionally Left Biank

All Parvider Contract BEqilerplabe 3-2020
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EXHIBIT D
ANCILLARY SERVICES-REIMBURSEMENT- MEDI-CAL/GROUP CARE

Scope: Hospice

Hospice services provided to members will be reimbursed at one-hundred percent {100%) of the
prevailing Medi-Cal rata.

If there is no prevailing Medi-Cal rate for a valid covered service or supply and the service is billed with a
valid Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) or Healthcare Common Procedural Coding System (HCPCS)
code, the reimbursement will pay at twenty five percent (25%) of bilted charges.

Scope: Palliative Care

Covered Services | Reimbursement
... . Rate
99343 $120.09
99344 $13475 |
99349 9030
99350 ! $140.18
99497 ' $121.78 |
- 99498 - $109.62
_ G0299- Registered Nurse  §165.00 per visit
G0155- Social Worker | $190.00 per visit |
G0162-Paltiative Care
Assessment- nitial Treatment $50.00 per visit
Pian
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EXHIBIT E
INITIAL HEALTH ASSESSMENT “IHA”
Initial Heaith Assessments ("IHA™)
[For Medi-Cal New Members]

An IHA is a comprehensive assessment completed during a patient's first visit with hisfher
PCP. The goal of the IHA is to assess acute, chronic and preventative health needs. The IHA
is a California Department of Health Care Services {DHCS) and Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid (CMS) requirement.

All new members over the age of 18 months must have an IHA completed by their PCP
within ane hundred twenty (120) calendar days of Plan enrcliment; newborns through 18
month-old members must have an IHA completed within sixty (60) cafendar days of Plan
enroliment.

The IHA consists of:

1. A Member comprehensive history, ghysical and mental status, and where age
appropriate, a developmental exam and immunizations;

2. An approved Individual Health Education Behavioral Assessment (IHEBA). The
Alliance recommends using the Staying Healthy Assessment.
asiamedaafliance.org/providers/medical-management/staying-healthy-assessment;

3. Appropriate guidance, health care coordination and referrals. Health Education
information and a Resource Directory of community refervals can be found on the

rescurces.
Members excluded from the requirement:

1. Members who have been a patient of yours in the past year or more and for which

documentation exists showing an iHA completed within the past 12 months.

Members who refuse the |HA. Refusal must be noted within the medical record.

3. Members who missed an appointment, where the provider documented two additional
attempts to reschedule.

P

Codes that qualify for IHA include:

[CPT Code [ Description

Alk Prow der Contracr Bailerplaee 3-2070
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_patient with PCP but new to the Alliance

99201- 98205 Office or other outpatient visit for the evaluation and management of
) new or established patient S
99211-89215 Office or other autpatient visit for the evaluation and management of
| established patient with PCP but new fo the Alliance
99381-99385 Comprehensive preventive visit and management of a new patient |
89391-99395 ' Comprehensive preventive visit and management of an established ;

99400, 59510, 59610, . Under vaginal delivery, antepartum and postpartum care procedures
59618 under cesarean delivery procedures, under delivery procedures after
previous cesarearn delivery, under delivery procedures after previous
cesarean delivery

99308

Nursing home- 99304- | New or estabiished palient comprehensive nursing faciiity assessments

Please call Alameda Alliance for Health Provider Services if you have any questions.

All Providor Contract Bolerplate 2-20240
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EXHIBIT F
BILLING
1. Billing
a. All claims must be submitted within one hundred eighty {180} calendar days from the

date of service or Alameda Aliance may refuse payment. If Participating Physician is
diligently pursuing Coordination of Benefits with another carrer, Participating Physician
may deiay submission of that claim up to one hundred eighty {180) calendar days
Tollowing the settlement with the primary carrier.

b. interest shall be paid on any late payment of a ctean, uncontested Medi-Cal claim as
fallows:

i. Late payment on a compiete claim for emergency services and care, which is
neither contesied not denied, shall automatically include the greater of $15 for
each t2-month period or portion thereof on a non-prorated basis, or interest at
the rate of 15 percent per annum for the period of time that the payment is late.

ii. Late payments on all other complete claims shall autornatically include interest at
the rate of 15 percent per annum for the period of time that the payment is late.

iii. Penalty for failure to automatically include the interest due on a late claims
payment as set forth above. if Alameda Altiance fails to automatically include
interest due on a late claim payment then Alameda Alliance shall pay
Participating Physician a $10 penalty for that late claim in addition to any
amounts due pursuant to this section.

c. If Member has Medicare or other insurance as their primary coverage then Participating
Physician must bill Medicare or the other carrier first before submitting Medi-Cal claims to
Alameda Alliance,

2. Payment

a. Alameda Alliance shali pay all of Participating Physician’s Clean Claims for Covered
Services within forty-five (45) working days of receipt; or within such shorter time period
as is required by law.

3. Misdirected Claims

Misdirected claims received by Alameda Ailiance shall be forwarded to the correct payer within
ten (10) working days, except as otherwise permitted by DHCS or other applicable regutations.

4. Claim Review and |nvestigation / Contested Claims - Medi-Cal

In accordance with H&SC § 1371, Alameda Alliance shall have the right to question claims or
itemns thereof, provided that Participating Physician is notified of the daims or items in dispute
within forty five (45) working days from the dale received; provided, further, that in any case
involving possible fraud or abuse or other improper biling practice, Alameda Alliance will have the
right to question the claims or items for a period of one (1} year after the discovery of the
impropriety. If a claim or portion thereof is contested on the basis that Alameda Alliance has not
received all information necessary to determine payer liability for the claim or portion thereof and
notice has been provided, pursuant to this section, Alameda Alliance shall have an additional
forty five (45) working days after receipt of this additionat information to complete reconsideration
of the claim. If Alameds Alliance has received all of the informalicn necessary o determine payer
liability for a canlested claim and has not reimbursed a claim it has determined to be payable
within forty five {45) working days of receipt of that information, interest shall accrue and be

45
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payable at a rate of fifteen percent {15%) per annum beginning with the first calendar day after
the forty five (45) working day pericd. If claims are for emergency room services, interest shall
accrue and be payable at $15.00 or 15%, whichever is higher.

5. Electronic Data Submissian
Participating Physician shall submit clean claims to Alameda Alliance electronically through a
contracted clearing house in a HIPAA standard ASC X12N 837 (005010X222) Professional and
ASC X12N 837 {005010X223) institutional transactions, unless otherwise agreed upon by the
parties, and shall contain valid 1ICD 10, CPT and HCPCS codes, as applicable.

Alameda Alliance for Health Contracted Clearing Houses

Payor ID # 95327 Ctaims Net

6. Prohibition on Upcoding, Unbundling, and Fraud
The following billing practices are prohibited. Such billing practices may he investigated and

reported by Afameda Alliance as potentiat fraud and abuse te any of Alameda Alliance’s
Regulatory Agencies.
« Billing for services performed by an unlicensed provider or one who has been excluded
from a federal health care program.
» Billing for services that were not performed at all or not performed as described.
+  Submitting claims for medical equipment, supplies, or services that were not necessary
+ Doubie billing.
= Upcoding or assigning a code that secures a higher reimbursement, rather than the
codes that match the services performed.
s Unbundling or billing parts of global fees separately.
» Knowingly misusing provider numbers.
s Failing to use coding modifiers accurately or appropriately,
» Preparing or submitting faise cost reports,
s Accepting Kickbacks or improper rebates in violation of applicable law.
= Falsely certifying medical necessity.

Al Provister Contract Boderolale 3«20
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EXHIBIT G
PROVIDER DIRECTORY UPDATES LIST OF CONTRACTED PROVIDERS

Provider shall comply with SB137 amended Section 1367.27 of the Health and Safety Code and provide
additicnal infermation on an ongoeing basis for updating Alarmeda Alliance’s Provider Directory. This
provider information is mandated to be updated on a quarterly basis pursuant to the terms of this
Alameda Alliance Agreement and shall comply with SB137 and the amended Section 1367.27 of the
Health and Safety Code. In the event that government cfficials or Alameda Alliance find any incorrect
information in the records provided by the Provider that have been identified by such government officials
or Alameda Alliance, the Provider shall have thirty (30) calendar days to correct this formation.

Practice Information

Please provide the following information in an excel format:

-

Pravider's first and last name in separate fields;

Practice name or namas as applicable, e.g. Federally Qualified Health Care Center narme,
Primary Care Clinic name, Specialty Practice name;

Practice address or addresses if provider sees Alameda Alliance Members at multiple sites;
Practice telephene number(s);

5.Provider Type, Natianal Provider Identifier (NPly number;

Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) number,

California license number and type of license;

. Area of specialty, including board certification, if any;

0. Provider's office emall address(es) if availabie;

1. If applicable, the name of each affiliated provider group through which provider sees Alameda
Altiance Members;

12. Hospital admitting privileges for in-network haspitals, as applicable;

13. Non-English language(s} spoken by provider;

14 Indicate whether a provider is accepting new patients or not;

15. Note Provider's affiliation with group i.e. contracted or employed; and

16. Provider office hours.

ra

T2 NO R W

At least once every six {6} months, Alameda Alliance will make an attempt to verify all of Participating
Physician's information in this scheduie in accordance with Heaith and Safety Code Section 1367.27 (/).
Participating Physicians shall respond to Alameda Alliance confirming receipt of request to verify
information, and shall provide a response verifying the reguested information within thirty {30) working
days of inilial attempt. If Participating Physician fails to respond to the initiat request, Alameda Alliance will
take appropriate steps to attermnpt to verify the requested information. Faiure lo provide a response
verifying and/or updating information may resultin removal from Alameda Alliance's Pravider Directory
and delay of payment. This reguirement is in no way intended to limit the obligation of provider to update
the alliance in accordance with section 4.3 of the Agreement.

48
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SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL
BY DEPARTMENT OF MANAGED HEALTH CARE, DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE
AND DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES

EXHIBIT H
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

For Covered Services provided ta Medi-Cal Covered Persons, Alameda Alliance for Health shall pay PCP
the lesser of. (i} the PCP's Allowable Charges for CPT codes; or (ii} one hundred twenty-five percent
(125%) of the State's Medi-Cal fee schedule or AAH s eguivalent fee schedule in effect on the date of
service and specific to the services rendered.

Both parties agree to negotiate a mutually agreed upon reimbursement methodology and rates within
thirty (30) calendar days of execution of this agreement,

Additional Provisions:

1.1

1.2

1.3

Code Change Updates, Updates to billing-refated codes (e.g., CPT, HCPCS, ICD-9/1CD-10,
DRG, and revenue codes) shall become effective on the date (“Code Change Effective Date”)
that is the later of: {i} the first day of the month following thirty (30} calendar days after publication
by the governmental agency having authority over the applicable product of such governmental
agency's acceptance of such code updates; or (i} the effective date of such code updates, as
determined by such governmental agency. Claim processed prior to the Code Change Effective
Date shall not be reprocessed to reflect any code updates.

Ege Change Undates. Updates to such fee schedule shall become effective on the date ("Fee
Change Effective Date”) that g the later of: {i) the first day of the month following sixty (60)
calendar days after publication by the governmental agency having autharity over the applicable
product of such governmental agency's acceptance of such fee schedule updates; or (i) the
effective date of such fee schedule updates, as determined by such govemmental agency.
Claims processed prior to the Fee Change Effective Date shall not be reprocessed to reflect any
updates to such fee schedule.

Pavment under this Exhibit; All payments under this Exhibit are subject to the terms and

conditions set forth in the Agreement and the Provider Manual.

49
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EXHIBIT |
INFORMATION REGARDING OFFICERS, OWNERS, AND STOCKHOLDERS

List the names of the officers, owners, stockholders owning more than 5% of the stock issued by the
physician, and major creditors holding mare than 5% of the organization identified on the execution page
of this Agreement. [This is a reguirement of Title 22, CCR, Segtion 53250).

50
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Contra Costa Counry STANDARD CONTRACT Numbher 77412
Standard Form L-1 {Purchase of Services - Long Form) Fund/Org 4 As Coded
Revised 2014 Account  #__ As Coded
Orher u
l.  Contract Identification.

[

L
.

Deparrment: Health Services — Contra Costa Tealth Flan (CCHP)

Subject: Hospice and Palliative Care Services

Parties. The County of Contra Costa, California (County), for its Department named above, and the
following named Contractor mutually agree and promise as follows:

Contractor: EAST BAY INTEGRATED CARE, INC. (DBA HOSPICE OF THE EAST BAY)
Capacity; Corporarion
Mddress: 3470 Buskirk Avenue, Pleasant Hill, California 94523

Term. The effective date of this Contract is January 1. 2022, It terminates on _December 31, 2024 unless
sooner terminated as provided herein.

Payment__Limit.  County's total paytnents to Contractor under this Centrace shall not exceed
$1,950,000.

County’s Oblications. County zhall make to the Contractor those payments described in the Pavment
Provisions attached hereto which are incorporated herein by reference, subject to all the terms and conditions
contained or incorporated herein.

Contractor’s Obligations. Conuactor shall provide thoese services and carry ourt that work described in the
Service Plan attached hercto which is incorperated herein by reference, subject to all the terms and conditions
contained or incorporared herein.

General and Special Conditions. This Contract is subject to the General Conditions and Special Conditions
{if any) artached herero, which are incorporated herein by reference.

Project. This Contract implements in whele or in part the following described Project, the application and
approval documents of which are incorporated herein by reference: Not Applicable

L-1{Page | of 2}
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Contra Costa County STANDARD CONTRACT Number 77-412

Standard Form L-1 (Purchase of Services - Long Form)
Revised 2014

9. Legal Authoritv. This Contract is entercd into under and subject to the following legal authorirics:

cited in the Contra Costa Ilealth Plan Requirements {Anachment A) and HIPAA Busingss Associate

Addendum, which_are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference,

10.  Signatures. These signatures attest the partics’ agreetnent herero:
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, CALIFORNIA

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ATTEST:  Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
By . 6.9.9.0.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.0.9.9.0.0.0.9,0.¢.0.9.9. 4
Chateman, Designec Prepity
CONTRACTOR
Signature A Signature B
Natne of business entity Name ot business ennity
East Bay Inteprared Care, Inc. {dba Tlospice of the East Bay [nregrated Care, Inc. (dba Hospice of the

Fast Bay) East Bay)

(—vﬁoc uSigned by: {—Dccusmned by:
P’Y !an CGLFEALD B‘}-

=3
(LR ) o oy

(Sienaturce of individual or officer) (Signature of individual or officer}
Cynthia Hatton president & CEO David Caldwell CFO
{Pririt namne and title A, if applicable) (Print name and title B, if applicable)

Note to Contractor: For corporations {profit or nonprofit) and limited liability companies, the contract must be
sigmed by two officers. Signarure A must be that of the chairman of the board, president, or vice-president; and
Signature B must be that of the secrctary, any assistant secretary, chief financial officer or any assistant treasurer
(Civil Code Section 1190 and Corporations Code Secrion 313). All signatures must be acknowledged as sct forth
on form L-2.

L-1 {Page 2 of 2)
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Contra Costa County ACKNOWLEDGMENTS/APPROVALS Number 77-412
Standard Form L-2 (Purchase of Services — Long Form)
Revised 2014.2

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to
which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy. or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA )

On . {Date), beforc me., _.__(Name and Title of the Officer),
personallvappeared _ o ,
who proved 1o me on the basis of satislactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) isfare subscribed o the within
wstrument and acknowledged (o me that hefshe/they execnied the same w histher/their autheonized capacityfics), and that by
hisiherytherr signanire(s) ou the instmument the persanis), or e eniily upon Lichall of which the personis) acled, executed
the instruinent,

[ certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws ol the State of Californis that the loregomg paragraph is (rue and
corTect.,

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL

Signature of Notary Public

Place Seal Above

ACKWOW LEDGAMENT (by Conpovation, Partnership, or Individual)
(Civil Clode 61189

APPROVALS
RECOMMENDED BY DEPARTMENT FORM APPROVED COUNTY COUNSEL
DacuSigned by:
County Counsel approval not requived
By N —— By per September 12 2006 Board Order
Designee Deputy County Counscl

APPROVLD: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

By:

Desinnes

Form L-2 {Page | ol 1)
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Contra Costa County PAYMENT PROVISIONS

Sraricdurd Form -1 (Fee Basis Contracts — Long Form)
Rovized 2014 Number 77412
L. Pavment Amounts. Subjcct to the Paviment Limit of this Contract and subject to the following Payment

!\._J

Provizions, County will pay Contractor the following fee as full compensation for all services, work,
expenses or costs provided or incurred by Conrractor:

a S5 monthly,

L. % per unir, as defined in the Service Plan,
1-_ 3 - . - T -
) after completion of all obligations and conditions herein, or

d. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Service Plan, Paragraph
C. {Compensation), at the rates set forth in Attachment B (Compensation), which is
attached hereto and is incorporated hercin by reference.

Payment Demands. Contractor shall submit written demands for payment on County Demand Form
D-15 in the manner and form prescribed by County. Contractor shall submir said demands for payment
no later than 30 days from the end of the month in which the contract services upon which such demand
is based were acwally rendered. Upon approval of payment demands by the head of the County
Department for which this Contract is made, er his designee, County will make payments as specified in
Paragraph [. (Payment Amounts) above.

Penalty for Late Submission. If County is unable to abtain reimbursement. from the State of California
as 1 resule of Contractor's failure to submic to County a rimely demand for payment as specitied in
Paragraph 2. (Payment Demands) above, County shall not pay Contractor for such services to the extent
County's recovery of funding is prejudiced by the delay even though such services were fully provided.

Right to Withhold. County has the right to withheld payment to Contractor when, in the opinion of
County expressed in writing to Contracter, (a) Conrractor’s performance, in whele or in part, cither has
not been carried out or is insufficiently documented, (b) Contractor has neglected, failed or refused w
furnish information or to cooperate with any inspection, review or audit of its program, work or records,
or (¢} Conmractor has failed o sufficiently iremize or document its demand(s) for payment.

Audit Exceptions. Contractor agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to, and/or complying
with any audit cxceptions by appropriate county, state or federal audit agencies resulting from ics
performance of this Contract. Within 30 days ol demand, Coneractor shall pay County the full amount
of Counry's obligation, if any, to the state and/or federal government resulting from any audit exceptions,
to the extent such are attributable to Contractor’s failure to petform properly any of its obligations under

this Contract.

Iniuials:

Conlractor - Counly Dept,

Form P-1 (Page | of 1)
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Conrma Costa County SERVICE PLAN
Standerd Forn L3
Revised 2014 Number 77-412
(A} Definitions. As used in this Contract, the following terms have the following meanings:
1. Covered Services are those medically necessary health care services, as determined by the Contra
Costa tlealth Plan (CCIIP). which a Member is entitled to reecive pursuant to, as applicable, a State
ol California Prepaid Health CCHP Agreement (PHP) or a CCHP benctit agreement.
2. Member is a person who is enrolled and is entitled to receive Covered Services from or through CC11P.
3. Participating Provider shall mean a health care provider, including licensed physicians and surgeons,
providers of ancillary services, hospitals, skilled nursing lacilities, and any other provider of health
care scrvices which/who has cntered into an agreement with CCHP te provide Covered Services to
CCHP Members.
4,  Primary Care Thvsician shall mean a CCIIP physician responsible for coordinating and

controlling the delivery of Covered Services to the Member,

(B} Administrative and Compliance Obligations.

-

Provision of Health Services. Contractor agrees to provide all authorized hospice and palliative services

which are within the scope of the Contractor’s qualifications to each Member who is referred to
Contractor by the Member's Primary Care Physician, pursuant to the utilization management procedures
and requirements of the CCHP, a copy of which is on file in the administrative office ol CCIIP and a
copy of which has been furnished to Contractor. [xcept in an emergency, all such relerrals must be
preauthorized as required by the CCHP s utilization management procedurcs. Contractor’s services shall
be consistent with accepted standards of care in Contra Costa County [or the specialty or field ol practice
in which Contractor is engaged.

Scope of Services. Upon request received by Contractor from CCHP Director (or designee), Contractor

shall provide its employces, in the job classifications listed below, to provide hospice and palliative
scrvices for CCHP Members. Contractor’s services shall be consistent with accepted standards of carc in
Contra Costa County lor the specialty or ficld ol practice in which Contractor is engaged. Contractor shall
provide licensed and qualified individuals in the job classifications listed and Contractor’s employees shall
provide services for CCIP Members as [ollows:

a. Skilled Nursing. Contractor shall provide part-time or intermitlent nursing care provided by or under

the supervision ol'a Registered Nurse or Licensed Vocational Nurses to assess and evaluate Members'
nursing nceds and provide neccessary treatment which are within the nurses’ scope of qualifications.
Services include evaluation visits, obscrvation, monitoring, training, and other services requiring
substantial specialized nursing skill.

b.  Hospice Services. Contractor shall provide the following hospice services to CCIIP members:

i. Registered Nurse visits;

il Licensed Vocational Nurse visits:

iii. Certified [ Tome Iealth Aide visits;

iv, Physical, Occupational, Speech and Respiratory therapies as needed;

V. Medical Social Worker visits;

vi. Counscling; and §us im

[nitials:
Contractar Counly Dept,

Form L-3 (Page [ o 5)
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Contra Costa Counly SERVICE PLAN
Scancard Form 1.3

Ruevised 2014 Number 77412

vii. Volunteer support.

The lollowing hospice services require pre-authorization:

i. Lnpatient hospitalization;

ii. Palliative radiation;

i, Tnlusion therapy;

iv. Any change in treatment or therapy frequencies;

v, Dielary consultation;

Vi, Acute hospitalization; and

vii. Change in the hospice level of care for the Mcmber.,

The following services are excluded unless separatcly authorized and priced prior to

utilization:
i Custodial care:
ii. Room and board;
iii. Experimental thcrapy:
v, In-home physician visit; and
V. Scrvices unrelated to the terminal illness.

i, Palliative Care Serviees. Contractor's employees shall provide the following palliative care
services to CCHP members:

i Physician Visits;
ii. Registered Nurse Visits; and
iii. Social Worker Visits.

The following requires pre-authorization from the CCHP Director, or designee, before they are to

be provided:
iv. Palliative Carc visits; and
v. Any change in trcatment therapy frequencies.

3. Referral and Coordination. Subject to CCIP*s Utilization Review Unit’s prior autherization and other
applicablc utilization review requircments, including coordination of approval ol the Member’s Primary
Care Physician, Contractor shall, as medically nccessary, refer Members to other specialist physicians,
health care facilitics, ancillary providers, and other health care providers. provided that such providers
and/or lacilities are Participating Providers,

4, Referrals and Prior Authorization.

a. Contractor shall comply with the utilization management procedures of the CCHP. Such procedures
may be amended from timg to time pursuant to Special Conditions Paragraph 7. (Modifications and
Amendments).  Contractor acknowledges that, except with an emcrgency, prior authorization is
required with respect to:

i The provision of all Contractor’s hospice services pursuant to Paragraph (B)
Administrative and Compliance Obligations, subparagraph 1. (Provision of Health
Services), above; or,

1i. The relerral of Members to other health care providers, including but not limited o health
carc lacilitics. for Covered Services. ﬁ
Initials: -

Contractor  County Dept.

Form L-3 (Page 2 of 5)
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Cantra Costa County SERVICE ’LAN
Srandard Form 1.3
Fevised 2014 Number 77412

3.

6.

9.

10.

b. Except with the prior authorization of CCHIs Utilization Review Unit, Contractor shall refer
Members only to Participating Providers.

¢. Upon CCHP’s Utilization Review Unit request, Contractor shall actively participate in CCIIP’s
quality assurance and/or utilization committees.

Contractor Licensure/Privileges. Contractor shall:

4. Maintain a current, valid and unrestricted license Lo practice their profession in the State of Calilomnia.

b. Continuously during the term ol this Contract, satisfy all credentialing and professional standards of
CCHP.

¢. Be certified for participation in the Medicare andfor Medi-Cal Programs if Contractor’s services are
a Medi-Cal and/or Medicare Program benefit.

Medi-Cal / Medicare Requirements. Contractor shall:

a.  Comply with Title V1 ol the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 304 of the Rehabilitation Act 1973,
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975;

b.  Not cmploy or contract with, directly or indirectly, entitics or individuals excluded from
participation in Medicare or Medi-Cal for the provision of health care, utilization review, medical
social work, or administrative services in respect to Members:

¢.  Not condition treatment or otherwise discriminate on the basis of whether a Member has or has not
execuled an advance directive;

d.  Comply with any other government requirements and rules imposed upon providers who provide
services to Medicare or Medi-Cal beneticiaries;

e.  Provide to the California Department of Health Services (DIIS). Health Care Financing
Administration (HCFA), and other State and Federal Agencies, such data, information, reports, and
access which arc required to be provided by State or Federal Regulations, or any contract between
CCIIP and DHS, or the CCHP and HICFA.

f.  Contractor shall furnish to the Peer Review Organization (PRO) under contract to HCFA, on-site
access to or copies of patient care records and other pertinent data, and permit the PRO or its sub-
contractors Lo examine Contractor operations and records as necessary for the PRO 10 carry out its
tunctions under applicable Federal Taw,

Grievance Process. Contractor shall cooperate with the grievance process emploved by the CCHP 10
respond to and resolve complaints from Members. Contractor shall comply with CCHP Mcember
Services Department’s resolution of any such complaints.

Collection of Copayments. CCUP shall notify Contractor of its copayment requirements, if any. and
Contractor shall collect and retain such copayments. Contractor shall not waive CCHP Member
Services Department’s CCHP's copayment requirements.

Directorigs. Contractor consents to the listing of their name and address and arca of medical practice
in dircetorics produced by CCHP’s Utilization Review Unil.  In the event of terrination of this
Contract, or if any such list information is incorrect, CCHP's Provider Relations Department shall
have no obligation to delete or correct such listing information until such time as CCIIP, in its sole
discretion, reissues its directorics.

Quality Management Program. Contractor shall cooperate with and participate in CCHP’s Quality

Management Program and provide to CCIHP information reasonably requested ﬁ ant Iherﬁf‘
Initials:

Comtractor County Dept.
Form 1.3 (Page 3 of 3)
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Contra Costa Counly SERVICE PLAN
Btandard Form 123
Rewvised 20014

I1.

Numhber 77412

Drug Formulary. To the cxient required by CCHP's Utilization Review Unit, Contractor shall

comply with the drug formulary requirements as may be now in eftect or adopted therealier.

(C) Compensation.

Reimbursement.

a.

Provided that Contractor has complied with all requirements of CCHP utilization management
program and has obtained all required auvthorizations (including any required prior authorizations)
and referrals for the provision ol Contractor’s services, then for the Covered Scrvices provided by
Contractor to Members hereunder, CCHP shall pay Contractor in accordance with the rates set forth
in Attachment B {Compensation), minus any copayments required to be collected pursuant to
Paragraph B (Administrative and Compliance Obligations), Subparagraph 8 (Collection of
Copayments), above.

Contractor shall accept payment by CCHP in accordance with this Contract, along with any
applicable Mcmber copayments. as payment in full for all professional, administrative, and other
services rendered by Contractor pursuant to this Contract.

Contractor acknowledges that CCLIP reserves the right to amend the compensation formula as sct
forth herein pursuant to the amendment process set forth in Special Conditions Paragraph 7.
{Modilications and Amendments) attached and incorporaled herein by reference.

Retroactive Additions / Deletions of Members. In the cvent CCHP retroactively adds a Membcer who

is a patient of Contractor, the compensation provisions of this Agreement shall apply from the effective
date such person becomes a Mcmber. In the event CCIIP retroactively delctes a Member, CCHP shall
compensate Contractor to the date CCHP acts to delete such Member, provided that prior authorization
was granted in accordance with Paragraph B.4.a., above.

No Billing of Members.

a.

In no event, including but not limited to non-pavment by CCHP, the insolvency of CCHP, or
breach oi this Contract, shall any Member be liable for any sums owed to Contractor by CCHP.
Contraclor shall not bill, charge, balance bill, collect a deposit or other sum, seek compensation,
or reimbursement from or maintain any action, or have any rccourse against, or make any
surcharge upon a Member or person acting on a Member’s behalf. 1f CCHP receives notice of
any action by Centractor in violation of this provision, it shall be entitled to takc appropriate
action, including the immediate termination of this Contract.

The obligations set lorth in this paragraph shall survive the termination ol'this Agreement regardiess
ol'the cause giving risc to such termination and shall be construed for the benefit of Members, and
these provisions shall supersede any oral or writicn agreement to the contrary now existing or
hereafter entcred inte between Contractor and any Mcember or any persons acting on behalf of either
ol them.

Notwithstanding the loregoing, Contractor may bill a Member who is not a Medi-Cal beneliciary
for the provision ol Non-Covered Scryices, provided that Contractor has first disclosed to the
Member, on a form approved by CCHJ, that the scrvices to be provided are Non-Covered Services

lor which the Member is Lo be (inancially responsible.
EDE i!}ﬁ
[mitial
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(D) Miscellaneous.

1.

10,

11.

Provider Manual. Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of CCHI”’s Provider Manual,
which is herehy incorporated herein by reference, as amended from time to time. Manual is posted on-line
at https://echealth.org/healthplan/providers/manual.php, and is hereby incorporated by reference.

Partial Invalidity. 1f any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force and cffect, unless the provisions held invalid
or unenforceable shall substantially impair the benefits of the remaining portions of this Contract.

No Volume Guarantee. CCIIP docs not represent, warrant, or guaraniee any minimum cnrellment of
Members (o Contractor under this Contract.

Non-Exclusive Agreement. Each party shall have at all times the right to enter into agreements
comparablc io this Contract with other persons or ¢ntities.

Determination of Eligibility. CCIIP may issue identification cards 1o Members.  Production of such
identification card shall be indicative of a person’s status as a Mcember, but shall not be conclusive of such
status. At Contractor’s request, CCLIP shall verify Member's Status. 1If Contractor obtains such
verification from CCHIP. CCIIP shall not retroactively deny pavment if CCIIP later determines Member's
non-eligibility, subject to the provisions of Paragraph C. (Compensation) (2}, above.

Waiver. The waiver of any breach of this Contract by either party shall not constitute a continuing waiver
or a waiver of any subsequent breach of either the same or any other provision of this Contract,
Non-Solicitation. During the term of this Contract. and for one (1) year thereafter, Contractor shall not

solicit, induce, or encourage any Member to disenroll from CCIIP or discontinue obtaining health care
services from or through CCHD.

Markefing. Nothing in this Contract shall prohibit, restrict or limit the Contractor from advertising as its
OWN CRtily,

HIPAA Requirements. Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements and procedures
established by the Health Tnsurance Portability and Accountability Acl (HIPAA) of 1996 and any
maodilications thereof, including but not limited to, the attached HIPAA Business Associate Addendum
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Contra Costa Health Plan Requirements. Contractor shall be subjeet to the aitached CCHP
Requirements {Attachment A). which are incorporated herein by reference.

Intellectnal Properiy. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it owns no rights in any of the data
gathered or generated as a vesult ol the services or actions that it provides under this Contract.

ins e 15

Contractor  Counly Dt.:-p_tj
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1. Compliance with Law. Patagraph 1. (Complance with Taw) of the General Conditions 1s hereby deleted and

Lo

.

teplaced with a new patagtaph to read as follows:

“l. Compliance with Law. Contractor is subject to and sha;, comply with all applicable tederal, statc
and local laws and repulations with respect to irs performance under this Contract, including but not limited
to, licensing, employment and purchasing practices; and wages, hours and conditions of employment,
including nondiscoimination; the Contra Costa Health Plan Requirements (Attachment A) which 1s
incorporated herein by reference; and with all Rules of the California Medical Board applicable to Contractor’s
medical practice.”

Inspeciions. Para h 2. fTnspecion of the General Conditions 18 herchy deleted and replaced with a new
nspecilons grap ] ) i T
paragraph to rcad as follows:

“2. Site Inspections. To the cxtent required by law or CCHP’s agreements with the California
Deparunent of [calth Carc Services (“IDHCS™) or the tederal Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services
{“CMS™), Contracror shall permit state and federal regulatory authoritics to conduet perodic site evaluauons
and inspections of Contractor’s facilides and records, and Contractor shall correct, as may be required by
Faw, any deficiencies in such facilives or records as determined by such evaluatons and inspecnons.”

Insurance Requirements. Paragraph 19 Jnsurance) of the General Conditons, subparagraph a.

(Commercial (reneral Liability lnsurance) 18 hereby deleted and replaced with 4 new subparagraph a. below,

o read as follows:
“a. Commercial General Liability Insurance. For all contracts where the total payment limit of

the contract is $300,000 or less, Contractor will provide commercial gencral habiliy insurance,

including coverage for business losses and for owned and non-owned automobiles, with a mintimum
cotibined single limit coverage of $500,000 for all damages, including consequental damages, due 1o
bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death to any person or damage o or destruction of property,
including the loss of use thereot, atising from each oecurrence. Said policies must constiture pramary
insurance as o Counly, the statc and federal governments, and their officers, agents, and employees,
so that other insurance policies held by them or their sclf-insurance programis) will not be required o
contribute w any loss covered under Confractor’s insutance policy or pohieics. For all contracts where
the total payment limit 1s greater than $500,000, the atorementoned insurance coverage to be prowided

by Contractor must have a minimum combined single limit coverage of §1.000,000.7

Insurance Requirements. Paragraph 19. {Tnsurance; of the General Conditions is hereby modified by the
addition of subparagraphs e and f. below, to read as tollows:

“e.  Professional Liability, Throughoul the term of this Contract, Contractor shall maintan all necessary

insurance for scrvices ro be provided by Contractor hercunder, including but not limited ro
professional malpracoce liability coverage. Malpracuce lability msurance shall be in an amount no
less than $1,000,000 per claim/$3,000,000 annual agpregare and shall be from a reputable insurance
company acceptable o the County. Contractor shall provide the Counry with 2 valid cernficate of

insurance evidencing the coverage required by this clause and shall prompdy advise County of any

—ps o=
lnitials: ! E

Comtraceor Counry Dept

and all claims paid by the insurer(s) under said insurance.
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f. Cyber Liability Insurance, If Contractor will be hosting County data or software on Contracrar’s
servers, Contractor shall provide commercial Cyber Tiability Insurance, in form and substance
satistactory to County, mcluding without limitation, coverage fot loss of dala, breaches of personally
identitiable informauon, call center services, credit monitoring remedies, identity restoration services,
and any penalties or fines thal may be assessed. Contractor shall cause such insurance 1o be endorsed
o include County and 1ts officers and emplovees as addivonal insureds. Such policies must constitute
primary insurance a5 1 County and its officers, agents, and emplovees, so thar othet insurance policics
held by them or their self-insurances programs will not be required o conuibute to any loss covered

under Contractors’ insutance policy or policies.”

5. Termination Paragraph 5. (Termination and Cancellation) of the General Conditions, is hereby modified by
the addition of a new subparagraph d., to read as follows:

£c

d. Termination re: Credentialing. In the event this Conteact is effective prior to the completion of
CCTTYs credennaling of Contractor, this contract shall immedhately terminate in the event that:

{1} CCHP determines that Conteactor does not satisty CCHP’s credenualing requitements; or

{2y Conrractor does not, as deterimined by CCHP, prompiy provide to CCHP necessary and requested

consencs for the release of credentdaling information or otherwise does not cooperate with CCIIP’s
credentialing process.”

. Payment Demand. Paragraph 2. (Payment Demands) of the Payment Provisions is hereby delered and
replaced with a new Paragraph 2., to read as follows:

“2: Billing Forms.

4. Contractor shall bill CCIIP on a periodic basis in a manner and on such forms as are acceptable 1o
CCIHP. Such forms shall conrain the same information as a fully completed UB.(M or CMS 1500
with complete CPT-4 or ICD-10 coding and the Member's Subscriber Number. CCIHIP shall advise
Contractor of any objectons to the bill or request addidonal information within thirte {307 davs of
receipt of the bill,

b.  Contractor agrees o exchange all claims submissions through clectronic transactions. Contractot
shall conform all electrome transactions o the Department of Health Care Services {DHCS;
Companion guide tor FID 274, DIICS may modify its Companion Guide for ET 274 ar any dme
without amending this agreement. Confractor 1s responsible for the accuracy, privacy and securitv
of transactions it submits to CCHP and agrees to comply with state and federal laws, including the
Adminstrauve Simplifications requirements of TIIPAA| as set out in the Code of Federal
Regulauons Tide 45 Parts 160164, including all privacy and secusity requirctents as set forth in
[TTPAA Y

Modifications and Amendments. ‘Ihis Contract may only be amended as sct forth in Paragraph 8
(Modifications and Amendments) of the General Conditions.  Tlowever, it 1s expressly understood and
acknowledged by Contractor that

1. CCHI™s Lalizaton Review Unit may, without Contractor’s consent, from rime to time, modify its
ulllizaion management procedures and requirements, including withour limtrarion, its requitements
regardimg pror authonzaton for services, by providing wrrten nouce of such modificarion(s; o

Contractor;, and
251 ne
Tniria]s:_é_ — E

Crontractar Counry Depr.
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COCHP may at any time amend any provision(s) of this Contract, including without imiratton, the
compensation provisions set forth in Paragraph (0 (Compensation) of the Service Plan, as follows:
CCHP shall deliver a copy of the woxt of such amendment wo Contractor, along with a summary of both
the proposed amendment and the procedures by which Contractor may reject the proposed amendment.
If Contractor wishes to reject the amendment, Contractor shall, within thirty {30} days following
Contractor’s receipt of the amendment, deliver to CCHT petsonally or by certified mail, retum receipt
requested, 2 wrtten and signed nouce of rejection. If Contractor does not so reject the amendment, i
shall be deemed accepred by Contractot and shall be effective at the later occurning of: (A} the cffective
date contained in the amendment, and (B} ar the expiration of the thirty (30} day period afforded
Conltractor to reject the antendment.  In the event Contractor rejects the anmendment, CCHI may, 1n
its sole discretion, terminate this Contract on no less than thirty (30} days advance wiitten notce (o
{Coniractor.

—eDS s
Initials:__!._ . |
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1. Compliange with Law. Contractor is subject to and must comply with all applicable federal, state, and loeal laws and
rcgulations with respect 1o its performance under this Contract. including but not limited to, licensing, cmployment, and
putchasing practices: and wages. hours, and conditions of cmployment, including nondiscrimination,

2. Imspection, Conlractor's performance, place of husiness, and records pertaining to this Contract are subiecl to
monitoring, inspection, review and audit by authorized representatives of the County, the State of California, and the
Uniled States Government.

3. Records. Contracior must kecp and make available for inspection and copying by authorized representatives of the
County, the State of California, and the United States Government, the Contractor's regular business records and such
additional records pertaining to this Contract as may be required by the County.

a. Retenlion of Records. Contractor must retain all documents pertaining 1o this Contract for five years trom the date
of submission of Contractor's final payment demand or final Cost Report; for any turther period that is required by
law: and until all federal/state audits arc complele and exceplions resolved for this Contract's funding period. Upon
request, Conlractor must make these records avaitable to authorized represeniatives ol the County, the State of
California, and the United States Government.

b, Acecess (0 Books and Records of Contractor, Subcontracior. Pursuant to Scction 1861(v)(1) of the Social
Security Act, and any regulations promulgated thereunder, Contractor must, upon writien request and until the
cxpiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to this Contract, make available 1o the County, the
Secretary of Health and Human Services, or the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized
representatives, this Coniract and books, documents, and records of Coniraclor necessary to certify the nature and
extent of all costs and charges hereunder,

Further, il Contractor carties oul any of the duties of this Contract through a subcontract with a value or cost of
$10,000 or more over a twelve-month period, such subcontract must contain a clause to the effect that upon written
request and until the expiration of five years afller the [urnishing of services pursuant 10 such subcontract, the
subcontractor must make available to the County, the Secretary, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly
authorized representatives, the subcontract and books, documents, and records ol the subcontractor necessary to
verify the nature and exient of all costs and charges thereunder.

This provision is in additien to any and all other terms regarding the maintenance or retention of records under this
Contracl and is binding on the heirs, successors, assigns and represeniatives of Contractor.

4. Reporting Requirements. Pursuant 10 Government Code Section 7350, Contractor must include in all documents and
wrilten reporls completed and submitted to Counly in accordance with this Contract, a separate section listing the
numbers and dollar amounts of all contracts and subcontracts relating 1o the preparalion of cach such document or
written repoit. This section applies only i[the Payment Limit of this Contract exceeds $3,000.

Contraclor County Dept.
Form L-3 (Page 1 of 7)
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5.

Termindation and Cancellation.

a. Writlen Notice. This Contract may be terminated by either party. in its sole discretion, upon thirty-day advance
written notice thereof to the other, and may be cancelled immediately by written mutual consent.

b. Failure to Perform. County, upon written notice lo Contractor, may immediately terminate this Contract should
Contractor tail to perform properly any of its obligations hereunder. In the event of such ermination, County may
procecd wilh the work in any reasonable manner it chooses. The cost to County ot completing Contracior's
performance will be deducted from any sum due Contractor under this Contract, without prejudice o County's righis
to recover damages.

¢. Cessation of Funding. Notwithstanding any contrary language in Paragraphs 5 and 11, in the cvent that [ederal,
state, or other non-County tunding [or this Contract ceases, this Contract is terminated without notice.

Eniire Agreement. This Contract contains all the terms and conditions agreed upen by the partics. Except as expressly
provided herein, no other understanding, oral or otherwise, reparding the subject matter of this Contract will be deemed

lo cxist or to bind any of the parties hereto.

Further Specifications for Operating Procedures. Detailed specifications of operating procedures and budgets
requircd by this Contract, including but not limited to, monitoring, evaluating, auditing, billing, er regulatory changes,
may be clarified in a written leuter signed by Contractor and the department head, or designee, of the county department
on whose behalf this Contract is made, No written clarification prepared pursuant to this Section will operate as an
amendmenl 10, or be considered to be a part of, this Contract.

Modifications and Amendments.

a. General Amendments. [n the event that the total Payment Limit of this Contract is less than $200,0006 and this
Contract was exceuled by the County’s Purchasing Agent, this Contract may be modified or amended by a written
document executed by Contractor and the County™s Purchasing Agent or the Contra Costa County Board of
Supervisors, subject to any required state or federal approval. In the event that the total Payment Limit of this
Contract exceeds $200,000 or this Contract was initially approved by the Board of Supervisors, this Centract may
be maodified or amended enly by a writtcn document exccuted by Contractor and the Contra Costa County Board of
Supervisors or, atter Board approvai, by ils designee, subject to any required stale or [ederal approval.

b. Minor Amendments. The Paymenl Provisions and the Service Plan may be amended by a written administrative
amendment executed by Contractor and the County Administrator (or designec), subjeet to any required state or
federal approval, provided that such administrative amendment may not increase the Mayment Limit of this Contract
or reduce the services Contractor is obligated to provide pursuant to this Contract.

Disputes. Disagrcements between County and Contractor concerning the meaning, requirements, or performance of
this Coniracl shall be subject te final written determination by the head of the county department [or which this Contract
is made, or his designee, or in accordance with the applicable procedures (if any) required by the state or fedcral

5
governmenl.
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15.

. Choive of Law and Personal Jurisdiction.

a. This Contract is made in Contra Costa County and is governed by, and must be construed in accordance with, the
laws of the State of Califomia.

b.  Any action relating to this Contract must be instituted and proseculed in the courts of Contra Costa County, State

of California.

. Conformance with Federal and State Regulations and Laws. Should federal or state regulations or laws louching

upon the subject of this Contracl be adopted or revised during the lerm hercol, this Contract will be deemed amendad
lo assure conformance wilh such federal or state requirements.

. No Waiver by County. Subjcct to Paragraph 9. (Disputes) of these General Conditions, inspections or approvals, or

statements by any officer, agent or cmployee of County indicating Contracior's performance or any part thereot complies
with the requirements of this Contract. or acceplance of the whole or any part of said performance. or payvments thercfor,
or any combination of these acts, do not relieve Contractor's obligation to fulfill this Contract as prescribed; nor is the
County thereby prevenled [rom bringing any action tor damages or enforcement arising from any failure to comply
with any of the terms and conditions of this Contract.

. Subeontract and Assignment. ‘This Contract binds the heirs, successors, assigns and representatives ot Contractor,

Prior written consent of the County Administrator or his designee, subject Lo any required state or federal approval, is
required betore the Contractor may enter inlo subcontracts for any work contemplated under this Contract, or before
the Contraclot may assign this Contract or monies due or to become duc, by operation of law or otherwise.

- Independent Contractor Status. The patties intend that Contractor, in performing the services specilicd herein, Is

acting as an independent contractor and that Contractor will control the work and the manner in which it is performed.
This Contract 15 not to be construed to create the relationship between the parties, or between County and any
Contractor employee, of agent. servanl, employce, partnership, joint venture, or association. Ncither Contractor, nor
any of its employcees, 1s a County employee. This Contract does not give Conlractor, or any of its employees, any right
to participate in any pension plan, workers’ compensation plan, insurance, bonus. or similar benefits County provides
to its employees. Inthe event that County cxereises its right to terminale this Conlract, Contractor expressly agrees that
it will have no recourse or right of appeal under any rules. regulations, ordinances. or laws applicable to cmployees.

Conflicts of Interest. Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest,
direct or indirect, that represents a [inancial conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise conflict in any

manner or degree with the performance of its services hereunder. Contractor further covenants thal in the performance
of this Contract, no person having any such interests will be employed by Contractor. [f requested to do so by County,
Contractor will complele a “Statement of Cconomic Interest” form and file it with County and will require any other
person doing work under this Contract 1o complete a “Statement of Economic [nterest™ form and file it with County,
Contractor covenants that Contractor, its employees and officials, are not now employed by County and have not been
so employed by Coumty within twelve months immediately preceding this Contract; or, if 5@) melmed did not then

L]

and do not now occupy a position that would create a conflict of interest under Goverln In

(S

Contractor County Dept.
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16.

18,

addition to any indemnity provided by Contractot in this Contract, Contractor will indemnifly, defend, and hold the
County harmless from any and all claims, investigations, liabilitics, or damages resulling [rom or related to any and all
alleged conflicts of interest. Contractor warrants that it has notl provided, attempted to provide, or oflered Lo provide
any money, gift, gratuity, thing of value, or compensalion of any kind to obtain this Contract.

Confidentiality. To the extent allowed under the California Public Records Act, Contractor agrees to comply and o
require its officers, partners, associates, agents and employees to comply with all applicable state or lederal statutes or
regulations respecting confidentiality, including but not limited to, the identity of persons served under this Contract,
their records, or services provided them, and assures that no person will publish or disclose or permit or cause o be
published or disclosed, any list of persons receiving services, except as may be required in the administration of such
service. Contractor agrecs to inform all employees, agents and partners of the above provisions, and that any person
knowingly and inicniicnally disclosing such information other than as anthorized by law may be guilly of a

misdemeanor.

. Nondiscriminatory Services. Contractor agrees that all goods and services under this Contract will be available to all

qualified persons regardless of age, gender, race, religion, coler, national origin, cthnic background, disability, or sexual
orientation, and that none will be used. in whole or in part, for religious worship.

Indemnification. Contractor will defend, Indemnifly, save, and hold harmless County and its officers and employees
from any and all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, and liabilities for any damages, fines, sickness, death, or
injury o person(s) or property. including any and all administrative fines, penaltics or costs imposed as a result of an
administrative or quasi-judicial proceeding, arising direcily or indirectly from or connccled with the services provided
hereunder that arc caused, or claimed or alleged to be caused, in whole or inpart, by the negligence or willful misconduct
of Contractor, its olficers, employecs, agents, conlraclors, subcontractors, or any persons under its direction or control.
If requested by County, Centractor will defend any such suits at its solc cost and expense. If County elects to provide
its own defense, Contractor will reimburse County for any expenditures, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.
Contractor’s obligations under this section cxist regardless of concurrent negligence or willful misconduct on the part
of the County or any other person; provided, however, that Contractor 1s not required 1o indemnity County for the
proportion of liability a courl delermines is atributable to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Counly, its
officers and cmployees. This provision will survive the expiration or termination of this Contract.

. Insurance. During the entirc term of this Contract and any extension or imodification thereot, Contractor shall kecp in

cffect insurance policies meeting the following insurance requirements unless otherwise cxpressed in the Special
Conditions:

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance. For all coniracts where the total payment limit of the contract is
$500,000 or less. Contractor will provide commercial general liability insurance, including coverage for business
losses and for owned and non-owned automobiles, with a minimum combined single limit coverage of $500.000
for all damages, including consequential damages, due to bodily injury, sickness or discasc, or death to any person
or damage to or destruction of properly, including the loss of usc thereol, arising from each occurrence. Such
insurance must be endorsed (o include County and its officers and employees as additional insurcds as to all services
petformed by Contractor under this Contract. Said policies must constitule primary msurance as 1o County, the

state and federal govermmenls, and their officers, agents, and employees, so that olhm by

Contracter County Deptl.
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20,

21,

22,

23

them or their sell-insurance program{s) will not be required to contribule to any loss covered under Contraclor’s
insurance policy or policies. Contraclor must provide County with a copy of the endorsement making the Counly
an additional insured on all commercial general liability policies as required herein no later than the offective date
of this Contract. For all contracts where the total payment limit is greater than $300,000, the alorementioned
insurance coverage to be provided by Contractor must have a minimum combined single limit coverage of
$1.000,000.

b. Workers' Compensation. Contractor must provide workers’ compensation insurance coverage for its employces.

¢. Certificate of Insurange. ‘The Contraclor must provide County with (a) certificale(s) of insurance evidencing

liability and worker's compensation insurance as required herein no later than the effective date ol this Contract. If
Contractor should renew the insurance policy(ies) or acquire cither a new insurance policy(ies) or amend the
coverage afforded through an endorsement to the policy at any time during the term of this Contract, then Contractor
must provide (a) current certificate(s) of insurance.

d. Additional Insurance Provisions. No later than five days after Contractot’s receipt of: (i) a notice of cancellation,
anotice of an intention to cancel, or a nolice ol a lapse in any of Contractor’s insurance coverage required by this
Contract, or (i) a noticc of a matetial change 1o Contractor’s insurance coverage required by this Contract,
Caontractor will provide Department a copy of such notice of cancellalion, notice of intention to cancel, notice of
lapse of coverage, or netice of material change. Contractor’s failure to provide Department the notice as required
by the preceding sentence is a default under this Contract

Notices. All notices provided [or by this Contract must be in writing and may be delivered by deposit in the United
States mail, postage prepaid. Notices to County must be addressed to the head of the county department for which this
Contract is made. Nolices to Contractor must be addressed 1o the Contractor's address designated herein. T'he effective
date of notice is the date ol deposit in the mails or of other delivery, excepl thal the effective date of notice 1o County
is the date of receipt by the head of the counly department tor which thiz Contract is made.

Primacy of General Conditions. Inthe event of a conflict between the General Conditions and the Special Conditions,
the General Conditions govern unless the Special Conditions or Service Plan expressly provide otherwise.

Monrenewal. Contractor understands and agrees that there is no representation, implicalion, or understanding that the
services provided by Contractor under this Contract will be purchased by County under a new contract following
cxpiration or termination of this Conlract, and Contractor waives all rights or claims to notice or hearing respecting any
[ailurc to continue purchasing all or any such services from Contractor.

Possessory Interest. 1fthis Contract results in Contractor having posscssion of, claim or right to the possession of land
or improvements, but does not vest ownership of the land or improvements in the same person, or if this Conlract results
in the placement of taxable improvements on tax exempt land (Revenue & Taxation Code Scction 107), such interest
or improvements may represent a possessory interesl subject to property tax, and Conlraclor may be subject to the
payment of properly taxes levied on such interest.  Contractor agrees that this provision complies with the notice
requirements of Revenue & Taxation Code Section 107.6, and waives all rights to further notice or to damages under

~—-D5 os
that or any comparable statute. [*
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24, No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Contract may be construed to create, and the partics do not intend to

25,

26.

27,

create, any rights in third parties.

Copyrights, Rights in_Data, and Works Made for Hire. Contractor will not publish or transfer any materials
produced or resulling from activities supported by this Contract without the express writlen consent of the County
Adminisirator. All reports, orlginal drawings, graphics, plans, studies and other data and documents, in whalever forn
or format, assembled or prepared by Contactor or Centraclot’s subcontractors, consultants, and other agents in
connection with this Contract are “works made for hire™ (as defined in the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq.,
as amended) for County, and Contractor unconditionally and irrevocably transfers and assigns to Agency all righ, (itle,
and interest, including all copyrighls and other intellectual property tighis, in ot to the works madc for hire, Unless
required by law, Contractor shall not publish, transfer, discuss, or disclose any of the above-described works made for
hire or any information gathered, discovered, or generated in any way through this Agreement, without County’s prior
express written consent. 10 any of the works made for hirc is subject 1o copyright protection, County reserves the right
to copyright such works and Centractor agrees not Lo copyright such works. If any works made for hire are copyrighted,
Counly reserves a royalty-frec, irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, and use the works made for hire, in whole or
in part, without restriction or limitation, and to authorize others 10 do so.

Endorsemenis, In its capacity as a contractor with Contra Costa County, Contractor will not publicly endorsc er oppose
the use of any particular brand name or commercial product without the prior written approval of the Board of
Supervisors. In its County-contractor capacity, Contractor will not publicly atiribute qualities or lack of qualitics Lo a
particular brand name or commercial preduct in the absence of a well-cstablished and widely accepted scientific basis
for such claims or without the prior written approval of the Beard of Supervisors. In its County-contraclor capacity,
Contractor will not participate or appear in any commercially produced advertiscments designed to promote a particular
brand name or commercial product, even if Contractor is notl publicly endorsing a product, as long as the Contractor's
presence in the adverlisement can reasonably be interpreled as an endorsement of the product by ot on behalt of Contra
Costa County. Notwilhslanding the forcgoing, Contractor may express its views on products to other contractors, the
Board of Supervisors, County officers, or others who may be authorized by the Board of Supervisors or by law to
receive such views.

Required Audil.

a. If Contractor expends $750,000 or more In federal grant funds in any fiscal year from any source, Contractor must
provide to County, at Contractor's cxpense, an audit conforming to the requiretnents set forth in the most current
version of Code of Federal Regulations, Title 2, Part 200, Subpart F.

b. If Contractor expends less than $750,000 in federal grant funds in any [scal year from any source, but the grant
imposes specific audit requirements, Contractor must provide Coumy with an audit conforming to thosc
requirements.

¢. 1If Contractor expends less than $750,000 in federal grant funds in any [iscal year from any source, Contractor is
exempt from federal audit requirements for that year excepl as required by Code of I'ederal Regulations, Title 2,
Part 200, Subpart F. Coniractor shall make its records available for. and an audit may be required by, appropriate
olficials ofthe federal awarding agency, the General Accounting Olfice . the pass-thpougd entity and/or theLaaunty,
If an audil is required, Contractor must provide County with the audit.

Contraclor County Dept.
Form L-5 (Page 6 of 7)
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Contra Costa County GENERAL CONMTIONS
Standard I'orm L-5 (Purchase of Services - Long Form)
Revised 2016

d.  With respect o the audits specified in sections (a), (b) and () above, Contractor is solely tesponsible for arranging
[or the conduet of the audit, and for its cost. County may withhold the cstimated cost of the audit or 10 percent of
the contract amount, whichever Is greater, or ihe (inal payment, trom Contracior until County reccives the audit
from Contractor.

28. Authorization. Contracler, or the representative(s) signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, represents and
warrants that it has full power and authority 10 enter into this Contract and to perform the obligations set forth herein,

29. No Implied Wajver. The walver by County of any breach of any term or provision of this Coutract will not be deemed
to be a waiver of such term or provision or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or provision contained
herein.

iD‘S iDS

Contractor County Dept.
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ATTACHMENT A

CONTRA COSTA HEATLTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

Number: 77-412

These Contra Costa Health Plan Requirements are in addition to any and all other terms provided in the
Contract referenced by number above. If any provision of these Conrra Costa Health Plan Requirements
conflicts with any of the terms provided in this Contract, then these Contra Costa Health Plan Requirements

will prevail,

Pursuant to Stare Deparumnent of Health/County Contract £896-26103 {County #29-772), effective Ocrober 1,
1495, (or the latest revision); requirements of the Waxman-Duffy Prepaid Health Plan Act, (1972) and Knox-
Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975; Health and Safery Code 88 1340 et scq,; Welfare and Instinudons
Code, §8 14200 crseq.; Tirle 22, CCR, §8 53250, etseq. and Title 28, CCR, §§ 1300.43, et seq., the following
requirements are incorporated into the Contract referenced by number above.

bt

Contractor is subject to and will comply with all applicable MediACal contrace and, applicable local, stare
and federal laws and reeulations, and contracrial obligations incumbent upon the County under County
Contract #26-772, and any subsequent amendments thereto. In addidon, Contractor will comply with all
applicable requirements of the Stare Department of Health Care Services (hereinafter “DHCS”), Medi-Cal
Managed Care Program, including all applicable Medicaid laws, regulations, applicable stare and federal
laws, County agrees to inform the Contractor of prospective requirements added by DHCS to County's
Centract with DHCS before the requirement would be effective, and Contractor agrees to comply with the
new requirements within 30 days of the effective date, unless otherwise instructed by [YHCS and o the
extent possible.

A Contractor providing any hasic health care service to Contra Costa Health Plan (*Plan”) members must
meet all of the requirements of Chapters 3 and 4, Subdivision 1, Division 3, Title 22, CCR, (commencing
wich § 51000} that relate to the services provided by the Contractor.

Contractor’s compensation hereunder will not be based, in any way, on a percentage of the County's
compensation from the State DHCS, This agreement does not preclude the establishment of Contractor’s
rate based upon Welfare and Instirutions Code § 14453,

To the extent that Contractor is responsible for the coordination of care for members, County agrees to
share with Contracror any urilization data that DHCS has provided 1o County, and Contractor agrees to
receive the utilization data provided and use it as the Contractor is able for the purpose of Member care
coordination. Contractor will provide reports and abstract of treatment records in relation to Plan
members, as required by County. Coneractor shall meet all applicable care coordination requirements for
MediCal members as required by DS, including but not limited to the following care coordination
activities to assure availability and access to care, clinical services, specialty services and care management
services, including comprehensive basic and complex case management. Contractor agrees to exchange
available information and data, including metnberdevel data, to facilitate care coordination activities in
accordance with all applicable HIPAA requirements and other state and federal statures and regulations,
DS DS
-
Initiats: L-

Contracior County De .
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ANTUIACHIMENT A

CONTRA COSTA HEALTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

5. In addidion to the requirements of Paragraph 3. (Records) of the General Condidions, Contractor will

comply with the following additional requirements:

Records Disclosure and Access by Government Officials.

-

b,

Availability of Records. Contractor must comply with all monitoring provisions of the County’s
contracts and any monitoring requests by DHCS. Contractor will allow the audit, inspection, or
evaluation of its premises, physical facilities, equipment, examinarion, and copying of all beoks and
records including, but not limited to, working papers, reports, financial records, medical records,
encounter data, medical charts, computers or other electronic systems, and other documentation
pertaining to services rendered to Plan members, by the County, the State DHCS, Cenrers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services (*CMS"), the Srate Department of Managed ealth Care {“State
DMHC?), the ULS. Department of Health and Fluman Services (“DHHS™) Inspector General, the
2.5, Department of Justice ("DOJ™, and their duly auchorized representatives. Such books and
recards, including cncounter dara, will be made available at all reasonable times at the Contractor's
place of business, for a term of at least ten (10) years from the final date of the contract period, or
frem the date of completion of any audit, whichever is later. If DHCS, CMS or the DHHS
Inspector General determines there is u rensonable possibility of fraud or similar risk, DTTCS, CMS,
or the DHHS Inspecror Gencral may inspect, evaluarte and audic the Conrractor at any time. LUpon
resolution of a full investigation of fraud, DHCS reserves the right to suspend or terminate the
Conrractor from parricipation in the Medicaid program; seek recovery of payments made to che
Contractor, or impose other sanctions provided under the State plan or governing AllPlan lerters.
Contractor shall implement and maintain policies and procedures that are desiened to detect and
prevent fraud, waste and abuse. Upon request, and subject to legallyrequired patient consents,
Contractor will provide copies of Plan members' medical records ro the County and o Plan
members’ other treating physicians. County will reimburse Contractor for the cost of copying Plan
members’ medical records chat are requested by County. Additionally, upon request, Contractor
will timely gather, preserve, and provide to the DIICS, in the form and manner specified by DHCS,
any informarion specitied by DICS, subject to any lawlul privileges, in Contractor’s possession,
relating to threatencd or pending litigation by or against DITCS.

Maintenance of Records. Contractor must maintain clear and complete books and records thae
reftect all services rendered to Plan members in a form maintained in accordance with the general
standards applicable to such book or record keeping. Contractor will furcther maintain records of
the costs of services provided to Plan members and all co-payments and other payments received
by Conrractor from Plan members or others on their behalf. Contractor will maintain and stbmic
encounter and provider data in the time, form, and manner required by the County and che Scate
DHCS. Encounter and provider dara shall be complete, nccurare, reasonable and timely to allow
County meet its encounter and provider duta reporting requirements to DTTCS.

Clontractor must preserve its records for the longer of (i) seven (7) years after termination of chis
Contract, (i) onc (1) year after the Member reaches the age of majority, if the Member is a minor,
(1) the period of time required by applicable law, including the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs
and contracts o which Plan is subject, or (iv) ten (10Y years from the final date of the Contract or

Initials; M\

Comtractor County Depl
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i)

h.

ATTACHMENT A

CONTRA COSTA HEALTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

from the date of complerion of any audir, whichever is longer, or such longer time period if so
required by the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services {("CMS”).

Centractor must also comply with all provisions of the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980, the
Balunced Budget Act of 1997, and the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003, regarding access to books, documents, and records. Witchour limiting
the foregoing, Contractor must maintain, provide access to, and provide copies of records, this
Conrract, and any other information, to Government Officials and such orher officials entitled by
law or by Plan Government Progeam Contracts, as may be necessary for compliance by Plan with
the provisions of all applicable law and contractual recusirements governing Plan, Such records
must be available ar all reasonable rimes ar Coneractor’s place of business or ar some orher mutually
agreeable location in California.

In the event. that this Contract pertains to hospital-based physicians or that the Covered Services
include any other physician services, County retains the sole right and responsibility to notify
Members regarding the rermination of this Contract, and the rermination of any confract between
Contractor and a subcontractor physician, as applicable.

Contractor must document in each Member's medical record whether or not the Member hag
executed an advance dircctive. Contracror is subject to the requircments in Title 42 of the Code of
Federal Regulations 8§ 2.7 et seq., relating to the maintenance and disclosure of Member Records
reccived or acuired by federally assisted alcohol or drug programs.

Contractor acknowledges that County is required to provide CMS and other Government Officials
with encouncer data, as requested by such agencies. Such dara may include medical records and
other duta necessary to characrerize cach cncounter beoween a Member and Contracror.
Contractor agrees to cooperate with County and provide it with all such information in such form
and manner requested by County in order to meet such requirements.

Conteactor acknowledges and agrees thar Government Officials have che right to inspect, evaluate,
and audir the quality, approprinteness, and timeliness of Covered Services.

Subcontractor Records. All oi’ Contractor's subcontracts must be in writing.  Contractor must
maintain and make available, upon request, copies of all subcontracs and require thar the
subcontractor: 1. Make all applicable books and records available ac reasonable times for
inspection, examination, or copying by the State and federal DHCS, DHIS, DOJ, DMHC, and
the County; and 2. Retain such books and records for a term of ac least ten (10} vears from. the
close of the last fiscal vear.

6. General Conditions Paragraph 13, (Subcontract and Assignment) is hereby deleted in its entirety, and

replaced with a new Paragraph, to read as tollows:

%13, Subcontract and Assionment.

a. This Contract binds the heirs, successors, assigns and representatives of Contractor. Prior
written consent of the County Administrator or his designee, subject to any required state or federal
approval, is required before the Contracror may enrer into subcontraces for ang work congemplared

Caontracior County Depl.
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ATTACIIMENT A

CONTRA COSTA HEALTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

under this Contract, or before the Contracror may assign this Conrract or monies due or to become
due, by operarion of Law or otherwise.

b, In addition to the consent of the County Administrator or designee, the prior written consent
of DHCS s required before the Conrractor may enter into any subcontract lor any work
conterplated under this Contract.

c.  Any proposed amendments to any authorized subcontract must be approved in writing and in
advance by DHCS. Any proposed amendment to a subcontract muse be submitted, in writing, to
DHCS, ac least thirty (30) calendar days before the eifective date ol the proposed amendment
compensation, services, or the contract terin. Proposed amendments that are neither approved nor
disapproved by DICS, will become effective by operation of Law thirty (30) calendar days after
DIICS has acknowledged receipt or upon the dare specified in the Amendment, whichever date is
later.”

7. General Conditions Paragraph 8. {Modifications and Amendments), is hereby deleted in its entirety, and

replaced with a new Paragraph, o read as iollows:
tm 1

il8‘

Modifications and Amendments.

a. General Amendments. In the ¢vent that the Payment Limit of thizs Contract 3s S200,000 or

less, this Contract may be modified or amended only by a written document execured by
Coutractor and the County’s Purchasing Agent or the Contra Costa County Board of
Supervisors, subject to any required state or federal approval. In the cvent rhat the Payment Limit
ol this Contract exceeds $200,000, this Conrract may be modified or amended only by a written
document executed by Contractor and the Conrra Costn Counry Board of Supervisors or, alter
Board approval, by its designee, subject 1o any required state or federal approval,

b, Minor Amendments. The Payment Provisions and the Service Plan may he amended by &

written administrative amendment executed by Contractor and the County Administrator (or
designee), subjecr to any required state or federal approval, provided that such administrative
amendment may not increase the Payment Limit of this Contract or reduce the services
Contractor iz obligated o provide pursuant to this Contrace.

¢. Upon the requesc of DICS, 1 copy of any amendment to this conrract will be previded o
DIICS?

8.  Limitations on Billing of Members and DHCS.

.

Comntractor will not seek payments from the State or Plan members in the event that Counry does
not pay for services performed for Plan members pursuant to this Contract. Notwithstanding
insufficient tunding of the Medi-Cal Program or Medi-Cal contracts for Covered Services,
Contractor will not bill or seek any reimbursement from any Plan merber for services provided to
that member pursuant o chis Contract, except as expressly authorized by this Contract, applicable
law, or DHCS. The terms of this provision (i) survive any termination of this Contract, regardless
ol the cause giving rise  such termination, and will be construed o be for the benelit of Plan

DE os

Initals: -
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ATTACIHIMENT A

CONTRA COSTA HEALTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

members and DHCS; and, (i1} supersede any oral or written agreement to the contrary berween the
partics.

Contractor may bill a Plan member and collect payments {from Plan members for services which
are not Covered Services to which the Plan member is entitled from Plan or thac are nor authorized
by the Plan, but only if the Plan member executed a written acknowledgement of patient
responsibility prior to the provision of the service(s), in which rhe Plan member acknowledges that
stuch services are not covered by the Plan and are the Plan member's own financial responsibility.
Upon request, Contractor must provide County with a copy of any acknowledgment of partient
responaibilicy form executed by the Plan member or a person responsible for his/her care.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may not bill a Medi<al member, Healthy Families
member, or any other Government Program Member when prohibited by law.

Surcharges. Contractor must provide all covered services to Plan members under this Contract,
as periodically amended, with no surcharge to any Plan member.

9. Contractor will notily DHCS and Director of the Departrnent of Managed Health Care i the event chis
Contract is amended or terminated. Notice is considered given when deposited in the ULS. Mail, lirst

class postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

MediCal Managed Care Division State Department of Managed Health Care
Department of Health Care Services 980 9 Street, Suite 500
1501 Capitol Avenue, MS 4400 Sacramento, California 95814-2725

Sacramento, California 95899-7413

10, Turnover and Phase-out Period and Transfer of Care.

il

b.

At the expiration or terminatton of this Contrace, Contracror must assist County in the Turnover
Period, as reqttived by the State DHCS, in such a manner that the contnuity of access and qualiry
of care to Plan members is maintained. Upon termination of this Contract, Contractor must
continuc to provide Authorized Covercd Services to Members who are recciving Covered Services
from Contractor until all such Covered Services are completed and the Member is discharged,
unless Plan makes reasonable and medically appropriate provision for the assumption of such
Covered Services by another haspital or healthcare facility. The compensation and other terins
and conditions, including the rates set forth in the Payment Provisions of this Contract, will
continue to apply to Covered Services provided o each such Member. The Tumover period
consists of the orderly transier to the State DHCS or successor Contracror, of Plan member’s
medical care including, but not limited to, the transfer of medical records, patient files, and any
other pertinent information neceszary for efficient case management of Plan members,

At the completion of the Turnover Period, Contractor must assist County in the Phase-out Period,
as teqquired by the State DICS, which will ensure that County has completed all remaining
contractual obligations under this Contract.  County will remain liable for covered scrvices
provided o Plan members by the Contractor until the services being rendered are completed or
County makes reasonable and medically appropriate provisions for the ansfer of such serviges.

Initials: =
Contragtor County Depl.
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13.

14.

ATTACHMTNT A

CONTRA COSTA HEALTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

¢.  In the event of termination of this Conrtract for any reason, Contractor will assist the Plan in the
tansler of eare for Plan members, Plan will continue to provide payment to Contractor at the
agreed upon capitation rates listed in the Payment Provisions, that are provided after termination
and hefore rransicr of carc. In the event of tenminarion of Contracror’s subcontract for any reason,
Contractor agrees to assist Plan in the transter of care for Plan members.

d. In the event Contractor is suspended, terrinated, or decertified from participation in the Medi-
Cal Program, or otherwise ceases operations with limited or no prior notice, Contractor will not
receive pavment for services provided after the decertification, suspension, or termination dare.
Contractor must hotify County immediately upon receiving a decertification notification from the
California Deparument of Public Tlcalth or any other notice that Contracror has been suspended
or excluded from the Medi-Cal program.

e. Contractor agrees to revoke the delegation of activities or obligations, or specify other remedies in
instances where DHCS or Plan determine that the Contractor has not performed satisfacrorily.

Pavment of Claims. Counry will timely pay Contractor claims within (ortydive (45) working days after

receipt. Notice must be provided to Contractor in the case of contested claims within foroefive (45)
working days after receipt.  County will have sufficient claims processing/pavinent systems to timely
process and pay Contractor and to reasonably determine the status of received claims and caleulare
provisions for incurred but not reported claitns as required under Tide 28, CCR, §8 1300.77.1 and
1300.77.2.

Third Party Tort Liability. County and Contractor will not make any claim for recovery of the value of

services rendered o a Plan member when such claim would be hased on a recovery im an action involving
the tort Lability of a chird parcy or casualty linbiliry insurance, including Workers” Compensation awards
and uninsured mototists coverage. County and Contractor will identify and netify State DHCS of cases
in which an action by the Plan member involing the tort or Worker' Compensation liability of a third
party could result in recovery by the Plan member of funds o which the State DHCS has lien rights under
Article 3.5 (commencing with § 14124.70), Part 3, Division 9, Welfare and Institutions Code. Such cases
will be referred o the State DHCS within 10 days of discovery.

Assumption of Risk. County assumes the total risk ol providing covered services for each Plan meraber
as specified in Tide 22, § 93251 (), (o), (), and (¢}, cxcept as otherwise allowed in Conrract #29-772 wich
the State DFICS and any subscquent amendment thereto, and accordingly noted in this Contract.

Disputes. General Conditions Paragraph 9. (Disputces), is hereby deleted in its entirety, and replaced with
a new Paragraph, to read as follows:

“9,  Disputes/Grigvances. Contractor is entitled to all protections afforded them under the Health Care
Providers” Bill of Rights. Ciration: Tlealth & Safety Code §1375.7. Contractor has the right to
submir 1 grievance and Contractor hereby agrees 10 abide by the Plan's formal grievance process to

rcsolve Provider grievances as deseribed in the Provider Manual, as periodically smended, which is

incorporated herein by reference, and which iz on file in the Plin’s Admigisemtive offices-bacated

Initials:
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16.

ATTACHMENT A

CONTRA COSTA HEALTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

at 595 Center Avenue, Suite 100, in Martinez, and a copy of which County has previded 1o
Contractor. Disputes hetween County and Contractor concerning the meaning, requirements, or
performance of this Conmact are subject to the formal Provider grievance process. A gricvance may
be filed with che Conea Cosea Health Plan, Director of Provider Relations, in written form via ULS.
mail, private courier, or in person to:

Conura Cosra Health Plan

¢/o Director of Provider Relations
595 Center Avenue, Suire 100
Martinez, California 94553

Health Care Languase and Assistance.

&.

Utilizarion Management/Quali

Interpreter Services. Contractor will provide all Plan membets with all interpretive services
required by che Provider Manual.

Coentractor must communicate fully and clearly, without regard to benetit coverage limitations,
with Plan members and/or dheir authorized representacives, in a culturally competent manner,
about all treacment oprions, including the option of no treatment, deemed to be medically
appropriate for a Plan member's particular condition. Contractor must provide Plan members
with dizabilities with necessary assistance to effectively communicate berween Contractor and Plan

member.

Contracror must comply with standards and requirements sct forth in the Health and Safety Code
§ 1367.04 to provide members with access to language assistance in obtaining health care services. In
addition, Contractor must cooperate with the Couney by providing any information necessary to asscss
compliance with health care language assistance.

County will provide Coneractor cultural comperency, sensitivity, and diversity training.

s/Discharge Planning. For those Contracts that

County has determined Contractor is authorized to perform duties and activities associated with Plan
operations, including, but noc limited to quality assurance, member services, matkering, and credentialing,

g 1 & &
("Dlegated Contracs™), the following provisions apply:

.

Nao individuals responsible for atilization management decisions with respect to Plan members iy

receive financial incentives that reward the individual for issuing denials of coverage or service or

rhat ¢ncourage decisions thar result in underutilization.

To the extent applicable, Contractor must comply with the applicable requirements ot 42 CFR
427,208 and 422.210, or successor regalations {the “PIP Rules”}, including physician incentive
plan disclosure and maintenance of stoploss protection, and must comply with informarion
requests and audits by Plan and CMS regarding compliance with the PIP Rules. Upon requesr,
and as required for Plan to comply with its obligations under the PIP Rules, Contractor must obtain

and disclose to Plan and CMS the rerms of the payment arrangements nd

Tmals;

Contractor Countty D:C[.ﬂ.
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17.

18.

19.

ATTACHMENT A

CONTRA COSTA HEALTH PLAN REQUIREMENTS

Contractor Physicians, and must provide evidence of compliance with applicable requitements of
the PIP Rules.

c. Contractor agrees o allow County to use provider's petrformance data. Quality Improvement
disease management, health education/promotion, and cultural and linguistic initiatives will be
derermined through collaborarive processes thar include CCHP/CCHS clinical and administracive
statf. Contractors are expected to cooperare with Quality Tmprovement activities.

d. Conrtractor must provide discharge planning scrvices for Plan members.  Contractor must
cooperate with Plan o assure timely and appropriate discharge of Plan members. Discharge
planning services begin upon the Plan member’s admission to a hospital and continue undil
completed by the medically-appropriate discharge date. Contractor must provide to Plan, upon
request, docuinentation of the discharge planning process for any Plan member.

e. Contractor must notify the Plan of the hospital admission of any Plan meniber within the same or
next business day.

f Contractor must respond to any request by Plan for medical informarion within the same or next
business day.

Provider Updates. Contracror shall update the County within five {5) business days if: (i) Contractor is

nof accepting new patients; or {ii) if Contractor had previously not accepted new patients, but Contracror
is currenty accepting new patients.

If Contractor is not accepting new patients, Contractor shall direct an enrollee or potential enrollee
seeking to become a new memher to both the Plan for additional assistance in finding a provider and to
the Departient of Managed Health Care ro report any potential directory inaceuracy.

For those Network Providers ac risk for non-contracted emergency services, Contractor is responsible
for coverage and payment of emergency services and post stubilization care services and must cover and
pay for emergency services regardless of whether the Provider thar furnishes the services has a contract
with the Plan. Contractor may not deny payment lor treatment obtained when a member had an
emergency medical condition, including cases in which the absence of immediate medical attention
would not have had the outcomes specified in 42 CFR Section 438.114 (@) of the definition of
emergency medical condition. Furcher, Contractor may not deny payment for rreatment obrained when
a representative of Contractor instructs the member to seek emnergency services.

Approved by Counry Counsel: Decemnlier 2021 J— —

Levitials:
Contractor Clounty Iept.
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ATTACHIMENT B
Number; 77412
COMPENSATION
Subject to the provisions of this Contract, County shall pay Contractor ac the rates set forth below, but shall not

exceed $630,000 for the period Tanuary 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022; $650,000 for the period January 1,
2023 through December 31, 2023; and $630,000 for the period January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024,

1. For Hospice Services:

a. For Commercial Members and Medi-Cal Members: County shall pay Provider those races set
forch in the prevailing Medicare Schedule of Maximum Allowances in eftfect at time ot service.
Contractor will bill CCHP using the tollowing codes:

Service Revenue Code ‘ Notes
Routine 0650 High rare  ; Routine home care rates include one per diem rate for days
home care 0639 Low rate ¢ 160 (High rate), and onc per diem rate (or days 60+ (Low Race),

Add-on payinents for hospice social worker and nursing visies

Service 552 provided during the last 7 days of life when provided during
Intensity (billed in 15 routine home care; minimum of 15 minutes, maximum of 4
Add-on minute increments} | hours total per day. There are no Service [neensity Add-On .

payments during the first 2 days of admission.

Continuous . '

[ 052 : Hourly Rate
10me care
Inpatient - ,
I't 035 : Per Diem Rate
respite carc : )
(General i
mpatient 0o56™" Per Diem Rate
care L

** Revente Code 0656 must be bilied in conjuncrion woth TICPCS Code T2045. A treatment
authorization request (TAR) is required.

b. LongTerm Care shall include a variety of services designed to meer the Members’ health or
personal care needs during a long or shore period of time. Members who elect rhe MediCal hospice
benelit are not disenrolled from CCHP,

Contractor will hill CCHP using the following codes:

L 638 llospice Care in a Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) (Per diem), Medi-Cal custodial is 95% of the
rate for the SNT; and
ii. 658: Hospice Long Term Care Room and Board (Per diem), Mcdi-Cal custodial is 95% of the rare
for the SNF. DS os
[y hY R — _—
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ATTACHMENT B
Numbet: 77412

C. For Original Medicare (AKA Feefor-Service Medicare Members):

Covered services and supplies for Members who are Original Medicare recipients will be reimbursed at
tehe Medicare rate of payiment by Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in effect ac titme
of service. Provider will bill Medicare CMS as primary pavor.

2. For Palliative Care Services:

a. For Commercial Members and Medi-Cal Members:
$145.00 | 99343 po mp | Hemewsin
new partient initial 45 minute
$205.00 | 99344 ! P9 Mpy | Home visit _
: ' new patient initial 60 minurte
: ) TTome visit
146.00 09349 gt MD o
$l40 4 ’ ML established padends) 45 minute
i . -
$20000 | 99350 P Mp | Hemevisic
established patient 60 minute
$ 86.00 95497 Pg MD l{ Advanced Care Planning by M.D.
o T ' | first 30 minutes
$ 80.00 99408 Po MDY Advanced Care Planning by M.
N ' ’ >3 minutes
516500 G299 551 9 EN Per Visir
519Q.00 Q155 361 PO SW Per Visic

“**All CPT codes above to be billed with modifier “P9" for record keeping purposes
to separate existing services from Palliative Care services a8 DHCS has vet to define

specitic Palliative Care codes.

b. For Original Medicare (AKA Fee-for-Service Medicare Members):
Covered services and supplies for Members who are Original Medicare recipients will be
reimbursed at the Medicare tate of payment by Conters for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(CMS) in effeer at time of servoce. Provider will bill Medicare CMS as primary payor.

Note: Payment will be made only for those senvices that are pre approved by CC

Trifials:

Contractor County Dent
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Number: 77-412
HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM

T'o the extent, and as long as required by the [lealth Insurance Poriability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the

Health

Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, this IIPAA Business Assoclate

Addendum (*Addendum™) supplements and is made a part of the Contract identified as Number 77-412
(hereinafter referred to as “Agrecment™) by and between a Covered Entity (Contra Costa County for its Health
Services Department, hercinaller referred 1o as “County™) and Business Associate (the Contractor identified in

the Agreement, hereinaftcr relerred o as “Associare™).

A. County wishes to disclose certain information 1o Associate pursuant to the tlerms of the Agreement,
some ol which may constitute PProtected Health Information (“PHI™) under Federal law, defined below.

B. County and Associale intend Lo protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI disclesed to

Associate pursuanl to the Agreement as required by the Ilealth Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law 104-191(*HI[PAA™), the Health Information Technoelogy for
Economic and Clinical Ilealth Act, Public Law 111005 (*FITTECH Act™), and the rcgulations
promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department ol Health and fluman Services (collectively, the
“HTPAA regulations™), and other applicable laws.

C. As parl of the TTIPAA regulations, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, defined below, require
County to enter into a contract containing specilic requirements with Associate prior to the disclosure
of PHL as set forth in, but not limited to, Title 45, Sections 164.314(a), 164,502(a) and (e), and
164.504(¢) ol the Code of Federal Regulations and contained in this Addendum.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information pursuant to this Addendum. the

parties agree as follows;

[. Definitions. As uscd in this Addendum, the following terms have the following meanings:

d.

Breach has the meaning given to such term under the ITTTECH Act and HIPA A regulations set forth at
42 1L.8.C. Section 17921 and 45 C.F.R. Scction 164.402.

Breach Notification Rule means the IIIPAA regulation that is codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164,
Subparts A and D.

Business Associate {“Associate”) has thc mcaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, the
Security Rule, and the HITECIT Act, including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17938 and 45
C.F.R. Section 160.103.

Confidential Medical Information Act nieans California Civil Code Sections 56 ¢t seq.

Covercd Entity has the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule and the Sceurity Rule,
including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 160.103,

D3 08
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Number: 77-412
Data Aggregation has the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limiied

10, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.301,
Day means calendar day unless otherwise indicated.

Designated Record Set has the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not
limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

Electronic Media means:

{1} [Llectronic storage media including memory devices in computers (hard drives) and any
removable/transportable digital memory medium, such as magnetic tape or disk, optical disk, or
digital memory card; or

(2) ‘lransmission media used to exchange information already in clectronic storage media.
Transmission media include, for example, the Intemet (wide-open), extranet (using internet
technology to link a business with information accessible only 1o collaborating parties), leased
lines, dial-up lines, private networks, and the physical movement of removable/transportable
clectronic storage media.

Eleetronic Protected ITealth Information (ePHI) means any Protected Health Information that is
stored in or transmitted by eleetronic media.

Electronic Health Record has the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act, including, but
not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17921.

Health Care Operations has the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not
limited 1o, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

HIPAA Rules or Final Rule means the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, Breach Notification Rule and
Enforcement Rule sct forth at 45 C.F.R. Part 160 and Pari 164.

Privacy Rule means the Standards {or Privacy of Individually 1dentifiable [Tealth Taformation set forih
in 45 C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164, Subparts A and L.,

Protected Health Information (“PTITI) means any information in any form or medium, including oral,
paper, or clectronic: (i} that relates to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an
individual; the provision of health carc to an individual; or the past, present or {uturc pavment for the
provision of health care to an individual; and (ii) that identifies the individual or with respect to which
there is a reasonable basis to belicve the information can be used (o identily the individual, and shall
have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule. including, but net limited to, 45 C.F.R.
Section 164.501. Protceted Health Information includes electronic Protected Health Information.

Protected Information means PHI provided by County 1o Associate or crealed, maintained, received
or transmitted by Associate on behalf of the County in connection with the Agreement.

Secretary means the Secretary ol (the ULS. Depariment of Health and Fluman Services,

Initiais; !
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Number; 77-412
r. Security Incident has the meaning given (o such term under the Security Rule, including, but not limited
to, 45, C.T'.R. Section 164.304.

Security Rule means the HIPA A regulation that is codificd at 45. C.I'.R Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A
and C.

t. Unsecured PHI has the meaning given to such term under the IIITECH Act and any guidance issued
pursuant to said Act including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17932(h) and 45 C.F.R. Section
164.402,

Terms used in this Addendum but not defined have the meanings given to such terms under the HIPAA
Rules.

[l

Obligations of Associate. Associate acknowledges that it is directly required to comply with HIPAA, the

HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations and the Final Rule, and that Associate is directly hable under the

HIPAA Rules, and subject to civil and criminal penalties for failure to comply with the Confidential Medical

Information Act or for using and disclosing Protected Information when the use and disclosure is not

authorized by the Agrcement, the Addendum or as requircd by law. Associate acknowledges that it is

directly liable and subjcct to civil penalties for failing to safcguard ePlIl in accordance with the TIIPAA

Security Rule. Assaciate further acknowledges that Associate may be liable for the acts or omissions of its

agents or subcontractors.

a. Permitted Uses. Associate shall not use Protected Information cxcept for the purpose of performing
Associale’s obligations under the Agreement and as permitted or required under the Agreement and this
Addendum or as required by law. Turther, Associate shall not use¢ Protected Information in any manner
that would constitute a violation of the Privacy Rule or the HITECIT Act if the County used it in the

same manner.

b. Permitted Disclosures. Associate shail not disclose Protected Information in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy Rule or the HITECLE Act if so disclesed by County. However,
Associate may disclose Protected Information (i) in a manner permitted pursuant to the Agreement and
this Addendum, (ii) lor the proper management and administration of Associate, (ii1) as required by law,
or (iv) for Data Aggregation purposes for the Health Care Operations of County. To the extent that
Associate discloses Protected Information Lo a third party, Associate must obtain, prior to making any
such disclosure (i) reasonable written assurances rom such third party that such Protecled Information
will be held confidential as provided pursuant to this Addendum and used or disclosed only as required
by law or for the purposes for which it was disclosed to such third party, and (i) a writlen agreement
from such third party to immediately notily Associate of any breaches ol confidentiality, suspected
breaches, sccurity incidents, or unauthorized uscs or disclosures of the Protected Information, in
accordance with Paragraphs 2.1, and 2.g. of this Addendum. to the extent such third party has obtained
knowledge of such occurrences.

lntials; @ L——-uu
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Prohibited Uses and Disclosures. Associate shall not use or disclose PHI other than as permitted or

requircd by the Agreement and this Addendum, or as Required by Law. Associate shall not use or
disclose Protected Information for fundraising or marketing purposes. Associate shall not disclose
Protected Information to a health plan for payment or healih carc operations purposes if the patient has
requested this special restriction, and has paid out-of-pocket in (ull for the health care item or service to
which the PI1T solcly relates. Associate shall not directly or indircetly receive remuneration in exchange
for Protected Information, ¢xcept with the prior writlen consent of County and as permitied by the
HITECH Act, 42 11.5.C. Section 17935(d)2} and the HIPAA regulations, 45 C.F.R. Scclion
164.502{aX 5)(i1); however, this prohibition shall not affect payment by County 1o Associate lor services
provided pursuant to the Agreement.

Appropriate Safeguards. Asscciate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent the unpermitted
usc or disclosure of Protecied Information, including but not limited to, the administrative, physical, and
technical safeguards thal reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of Protected Information that it creates. receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of County
as required by the Agreement or this Addendum and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. Sections 164.308,
164310, and 164.312. Associate shall comply with the policics, procedures. and documentation
requirements of the Security Rule, including, but nat limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.316.

Business Associate’s Agents and Subcontractors. Associate shail enter into written agreements with
any agent or subcontractor, to whom it provides Protected Information received from the County or
created, received, maintained or transmitted by Associate on behalf of the County to implement the
safeguards required by paragraph 2.d. above with respect to Flectronic P11 Associate shall ensure that
its agents and subcontractors agree in writing to the same restrictions, conditions and requirements that
apply to Associate with respect 1o such information. This includes the requirement to immediately
notily the Associate of any instances of any breach, sccurity incident, intrusion, or unauthorized access
1o or use or disclosure of Pl of which it becomes aware. Upon request. Associate shall provide copies
ol such agreements to the County. Associate shall implement and maintain sanctions against any agent,
subconlractor or other representative that violates such restrictions, conditions or requirements and shall
mitigate the effects of any such violation.

Notification of Breach or Suspected Breach,

Associate will notily County orally and in writing in the manner sct forth in paragraph 2.g, within
twenty-four (24) hours of its discovery of any suspected or actual breach of Protected Information; any
use or disclosure of Protected Information not permitied by the Agreement or this Addendurg; any
Securily Incident; and any actual or suspected use or disclosure of data in violation of applicable federal
or state laws or regulations by Associate or its agents or subcontractors.  Associate will take (i) prompt
corrective action to cure any deficiencies and (i) any action pertaining to such unauthorized uses or
disclosures required by applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

.1 @
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#. Breach Notification Process. (i) Written Notice. Associate shall notify County by writing to the

County’s Privacy Officer within twenty-four (24} hours of its discovery of any suspected or actual

breach of Protected Information as described by paragraph 2.f. above. Associate’s written notification
shall be securely transmitted to:

Contra Costa County Privacy Officer
50 Douglas Drive, Suite 310-E
Martinez, CA 94553

Or Privacy. Officeredhsd.cocounty.us

(i) Oral notice. In addition 1o the written notice required by 2.g.1., Associate shall notify County by
calling the County’s Privacy Officer within twenty-four {24) hours of its discovery of any suspected or
actual breach of Protcclted Inlormation as described by paragraph 2.f. above. Associate’s oral
notification shall b¢ made by calling:

Contra Costa County Privacy Officer
(925) 957-5430

If the notification is made after business hours, on a weekend or a holiday, Associale will call the 24-
hour Privacy Hotline at 1-800-659-4611 to submit the report.

Written and oral notifications shall include, to the extent possible, the identification of each individual
whose unsceured Protected Information has been, or is reasonably belicved by the Associate 1o have
heen accessed. acquired, used, or disclosed, as well as any other information the County is required to
include in notilication to the individual. the media. the Secretary, and any other entity under the Breach
Natification Rule and any other applicable statc or lederal laws, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R.
Section 164.404 through 45 C.F.R. Scction 164.408. Associate shall take (i) prompt corrective action
to curc any such deficiencies; and (ii) any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by
applicable lederal and state laws and regulations.

h. Access to Protected Information. Associate agrees to0 make Protected Information maintained by
Associate or its agents or subcontractors in Designated Record Scts available to County for inspection
and copying within five (5) days of a request by County to ¢nable County to fulfill its obligations under
slate law and the Privacy Rulc, including but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.524. If Associate
maintains Protected Information in electronic format, Associate shali provide such information in
clectronic format to enable County to fulfill its obligations under the IIITECH Act and HIPAA
regulations. including, but not limited to. 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(e) and 45 C.F.R. Section 164.524,

i. Amendment of Protected Health Information. Within ten {10) dayvs of receipt ol a request by County
for an amendment of Protected Information or a record about an individual contained in a Designated

Q -
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Record Set, Associate and ils agents and subcontractors shall make such Protected Information available
to County for amendment or other documentation and incorporale any such amendment to enable
County to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy Rule including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section
164.526. Il an individual requests an amendment of Protected Information directly from Associate, its
agents or subcontractors, Associate must notify County within five (5) calendar days of the request.
County, in ils sole discretion, will determine whether to approve or deny a request for an amendment ol
Protected Information maintained by Associate, its agents or subcontractors.

J. Availability of Protected lnformation and Accounting of Disclosures. Within ten (10) davs of a
request by County lor an accounting of disclosures of Protected Information, Associate and its agents
or subcentraclors shall make available to County the information required to provide an accounting of
disclosures to enable County to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited
o, 45 C.I'.R, Scction 164.528, and the HITECH Act, including, but not limited o, 42 U.S.C. Section
17935(¢), as determined by County. As set forth in, and as limited by, 45 CI'R Section 164,528,
Associate nced not provide an accounting to County of disclosures: (i) to carry out trealment, payment
or health care operations, as set forth in 45 C.T.R. Section 164,506; (ii) to individuals of PHI about them
as set forth in 45 CFR 164.502; (iii) incident to a use or disclosure otherwise permilled or required by
this Subpart as provided in 45 C.I.R. 164.502; (iv) pursuant to an authorization as provided in 45 C.F.R.
Section 164.508; (v) to persons involved in the individual’s care or other notification purposes as set
forth in 45 CFR Section 164.510; (vi} lor national security or intelligence purposes as set forth in 45
C.I"R. Scctien 164.512(k)2): {vii) to correctional institutions or law enforcement officials as set forth
in 45 C.F.IR. Section 164.512(k)5): or {viii) as part of a limited data sel in accordance with 45 C.F.R.
164.514{c). Associate agrees 1o implement a process that allows for an accounting to be collected and
maintaincd by Associate and ils agenis or subcontractors for at least six (6) vears prior to the request,
but not before the compliance date ol the Privacy Rule. However, accounting of disclosures from an
Elcetronic Health Record for treatment, payment or health care operations purposcs are required o be
collected and maintained lor only three (3) years prior to the request, and only 10 the extent that Associate
maintains an electronic health record and is subject to this requirement. Al a minimum, the accounting
must include: (i) the datc of disclosure; (ii) the name of the enlity or person who received Protected
Information and, il known, the address of the entity or person; (iii) a bricf description of Protceted
Information disclosed; and (iv} a brief statement of the purpose of the disclosure that reasonably informs
the individual of the basis for the disclosure, or, in lieu of such statement, a copy of the individual’s
authorization or a copy of the written request for disclosure pursuant to 45 C.F.R. Scction 164.502
(@a)2)(yor 45 C.F.R. Section 164.512, ilany. Inthe event that the request or an accounting is delivered
dircetly to Associate or its agents or subcontractors, Associate shall forward the request, in writing, to
County within five (5) days of receipt. Associate shall not prepare, deliver or otherwise respond to the
request for accounting without prior County approval.

k. Governmental Access to Records. Associate agrees to make ils internal practices, books, and records
relating 10 the use and disclosure of Protected Information available to County and (o the Scerctary for
purposes of detcrmining Assoclate’s and County’s compliance with HIPAA. Associate shall provide
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County a copy of any Protected Information and other documents and records that Associate provides
to the Secretary concurrently with providing such Protected Information to the Secretary,

Minimum Necessary. Associale and its agents and subcontractors will request. use. and disclose only
the minimum amount of Protected Information necessary (o accomplish the purposc ol the request, use,
or disclosure. Associate understands and agrees that the definition of “minimum necessary™ is in flux
and shall keep itself informed of guidance issued by the Secretary with respect o what constitutes
“minimum necessary.”

m. Data Ownership, Associate acknowledges that Associate has no ownership rights with respect to the

Protected Information.

Retention of Protected Information. Except as provided in Section 3.c. of this Addendum, Associate
and ils subcontractors and agents must retain all Protected Information throughout the term of the
Agreement and must continue to maintain the information required by Section 2.h. ol this Addendum
lor a period ol six (6} years after termination or expiration of the Agreement. However, accounting of
disclosures (rom an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment or health care operations purposes
arc required 1o be collected and maintained for three (3) years prior to the request, and only (o the extent
that Associate maintains an electronic health record and is subject to this requirement.

Associate’s Insurance. Tn addition 1o any other insurance requirements specified in the Agreement,
Associate will, at its solc cost and expense, insure its activitics in connection with this Addendum,
Associatc will obtain, keep in force and maintain insurance or equivalent program(s) of self-insurance
with appropriate limits, as determined by County, that will cover losses that may arise from any breach
of this Addcndum, violation of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, HIPAA regulations or applicable California
law. It is expressly understood and agreed that the insurance required herein does not in any way limit
the liability of Associate with respect to its activitics in connection with this Addendum.

p. Breach Pattern or Practice by Associate’s Agents or Subcontractors. Pursuant to 42 U.5.C. Section

17934(b) and 45 C.F.R. Section 164.504(c) (1) (ii}. il the Associate knows of a pattern of activity or
practice of an agent or subcontractor that constitutes a malterial breach or violation of the agent or
subconiractor’s obligations under the Agreement or Addendum, the Associatc must lake reasonable
steps to cure the breach or ¢nd the vielation. Associate shall mect with its agent or subcontractor 1o
discuss and attempt to resolve the matter, Such meeting will be considered one of the reasonable steps
1o curc the breach or end the violation. [fthe steps taken are unsuccessiul, the Associate must terminale
its Agrcement with the agent or subcontractor, il leasible. Associate shall provide written notice to
County ol any pattern of activity or practice of’ Assoclate’s agents or subcontractors that Associate
belicves constitutes a material breach or violation of the agent or subcontractor’s obligations under the
Agreement or Addendum within five (3) days ol discovery.

Audits, Inspections and Enforcecment. At any lime during the term of the Agreement, with or withoul
notice, County and its authorized agents or contractors may inspect Assoclate’s facilities, systems,
boaks, rccords, agreements and written policics and procedures as may be necessary to deiermine the
cxtent Lo which Associate’s sccurity safcguards comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, HIPAA

~——D% os
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regulations, and this Addendum, The fact that County has the right to conduct such inspection, that
County conducts an inspection or fails to inspect. does not relieve Associate of its responsibility to
comply with this Addendum, County’s failure to detect. or County's detection but failure to notify
Associate of, or to require Associate to remediate unsatisfactory practices, does not constitute
acceptance of such practice or a walver ol County’s rights under the Agreement or Addendum.
Associate shall notily County within five (5) days of discovery that it is, or that any of its agents or
subcontractors are, the subject of a non-County audit, compliance review or complaint investigation
regarding HIPA A or other health privacy-related matter.

3. Termination.

a. Material Breach., A breach by Associate of any material provision ol this Addendum, as determined
by County, shall constilute a malcrial breach of the Agreement and will be grounds for immediate
termination of the Agrecment pursuant to the Agreement’s General Conditions, paragraph 5 (b), Failure
to Perform.

b. Reasonable Steps to Cure Breach. Notwithstanding County’s right to terminate the Agreement
immediately, if County knows ol an activity or practice of Associate that constitulcs a material breach
or vielation of Associate’s obligations under the provisions of this Addendum, County may elect to
provide Associate an opportunity to cure such breach or end such siolation. 11" Associate’s efforts to
cure such breach or end such violation are unsuccessful, County will either {i) lerminatc the Agreement,
(f teasible or (ii) il termination of the Agreement is nol feasible, County will report Associate’s breach
or vielation to the Secretary.

c. Effect of Termination. If the Agreement is lerminated for anyv reason, Associate must, at the exclusive
option of County, return or destroy all Protected Information that Associate, its agents and
subcontractors, still maintain in any form. Associate may not retain any copies of such Protected
Information. If County determines that retum or destruction is not feasible, Associate may retain the
Protected Information but must continue to ¢xtend the protections and satis{y its obligations under this
Addendum. With regard to the retained Protected Information. Associate will limit further use of such
Protected Information to thosc purposcs that make the return or destruction of such Protected
Information infeasible. I County dircets Associate to destroy the Protected Information, Associate must
act in accordance with the Secretary’s guidance regarding the proper destruction of PHI and provide the
County with writien certification that the Protected Intormation has been destroyed. The obligations of
Associate under this paragraph shall survive the Agreement,

d. Indemnification. In addition to any indemnification requirements ol the A greement, Associate agrees
to save, hold harmless and indemnify County for the costs ol any mitigation undertaken by Associate.
Associate agrees 1o assume responsibility for any and all costs associated with the County's noti lication
of individuals alfccted by a breach or unaathorized aceess, use or disclosureDJ:ny Associate or its
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cmployees, officers, subcontractors, agents or other representatives when such notification is required
by any statc or federal law or regulation. or under any applicable contract to which County is a party.
Associatle agrees 1o save, hold harmless, defend at its own expense if County so requests. and indemnify
County, including County’s employees, dircetors, oflicers, subcontractors, agents or other members of
its work{orce (cach of the foregoing hereinafter referred to as “Indemnified Party”), against all actual
and dircet losses suffered by the Indemnificd Party and against all liability to third partics arising from
ot in connection with any breach of this Agreement or from any acts or omissions related to this
Agreement by Associate or its employees, dircctors, officers, subcontractors, agents or other members
ol its work force. Accordingly, on demand, Associate shall reimburse any Indemnificd Party (or any and
all actual and direct losses, liabilities, lost profits, fincs, penalties, costs or expenses (including
rcasonable attorneys’ fees) which may for any rcason be imposed upon any Indemnified Party by reason
of any suit, claim, action. proceeding or demand by any third party which results from the Associate’s
acts or emissions hereunder.  The obligations of Associate under this provision shall survive the

Agreement.

Penaltics/Fings. Associate shall pay any penalty or finc asscssed against County arising from Associale’s
failurc to comply with (he obligations imposed by the Addendum, HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA
regulations and other state and federal laws related Lo security and privacy. Associate shall pay any penalty
or finc assessed against County arising from Associale’s {ailure 1o comply with all applicable Federal or
State Health Care Program Requirements, including, but not limited to any penalties or fings, which may be
assessed under a Federal or State False Claims Act provision.

Disclaimer. County makes no warranly or representation that compliance by Associate with this
Addendum, HIPAA, the HTTECH Act, or the HIPAA regulations. will be adequate or satisfactory for
Associate’s own purposes. Associale is solely responsible for all decisions made by Associate regarding
the saleguarding of PHL.

Changes to Privacy Laws.

a. Compliance with Law. County and Associate acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to
clectronic data security and privacy are evolving and that this Addendum may require amendment to
cnsure compliance with such developments. County and Associate agree Lo take such action{s) as may
be necessary to implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECII Act, the HIPAA
regulations, and other applicable state and federal laws rclating to the security and conlidentiality of

PHI.

h. Amendment to Addendum. In the event that a change to state or federal law, statute, or regulation
materially affects the terms and conditions of this Addendum, the parties agree that County may

DS [}
Initials: _é_ - E

Cimtractor Couniy Dept.
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unilaterally amend the Addendum, il an amendment is required to remain in compliance with state or

federal law or regulation.

Cybersecurity Risk. [n addition to the obligations Associate has in the Agreement and this Addendum,
Associatc will manage cybersecurity risk by staying current with, and integrating into its sceurity
program where appropriate, available federal and state agency guidance regarding cybersecurity of PIIL
This includes, but is not limited to, the National Institute of Standards and Technology Cybersecurity
Framework, the Cybersecurity Awareness Initfative of the Office for Civil Rights and the Olfice of the
National Coordinator for Health Information Technology.

7. Miscellaneous Provisions.

4. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. Associate will make itself, and any

o

subcontractors, employecs or agent assisting Associate in the performance of its obligations under the
Agreement, available to County, at no cost 1o County, 1o testily as witnesses or otherwise, in the event
of litigation or administrative proceedings against County, its officers or employees, based upon a
claimed violation ol {TIPAA, the HI'IECH Act, the ITIPAA regulations, or any other laws relating to
security and privacy and arising out of the Agreement or this Addendum,

No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in this Addendum is intended to confer, nor
shall anything herein conlfer, upon anv person other than County, Associate, and their respective
successors or assigns, any rights, remedics, obligations, or liabilities whatsocver.

Interpretation. ‘Lhe provisions of this Addendum prevail over any provisions in the Agreement that
may conflict, or appear to be inconsistent with, any provision of this Addendum. This Addendum and
the Agreement will be interpreted as broadly as nceessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the
HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations and other state and federal laws related to sccurity and privacy.
The partics agree that any ambiguity in this Addendum will be resolved in favor of a meaning that
complics, and is consistent, with [ITPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations and other state and
federal laws related to security and privacy.,

Survival. The obligations of Assaciate pursuant to Scetions 2.j. and 3.c. of this Addendum survive the
termination or expiration of the Agreement.

Intgals: _S>——
Contractor County Depl.
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11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(d){5)(.J}

Description of how each health facility will comply with the Alfred E. Alquist
Hospital Facilities Seismic Safety Act of 1983 (H&S Section 129675-130070),
including the certified Structural Performance Category of every building
affected by the transaction and a copy of every final determination letter

received from the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (now

referred to as the Department of Health Care Access and Information) for every
building affected by the transaction or asreement

N/A



11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(d)}5)K)

Deseription of the measure proposed by the applicant to mitigate or eliminate any potential
adverse effect on availability or aceessibility of health care services to the affected community that
may result from the agreement or transaction

Hospice East Bay and Chapters do not anticipate that the Transaction will result in any adverse
cfleet on the availability or accessibility of health care services in Hospice East Bay's service arca.
Rather, as referenced in the responses to (dX4)(B) and (d)(5)%11), once the Transaction has been
completed Hospice Last Bay and Chapters will evaluate opportunitics to increase the health care
services offered in Hospice East Bay’s service arca.

Hospice East Bay and Chapters have agreed in Section 7.3 of the Affiliation Agreement that alter
the Closing all asscts of Hospice East Bay will continue to be used for qualifying healtheare and
charitable purposes. All assets on Hospice East Bay's balance sheet as of the Closing and any proceeds
from the sale of any real property or health facility owned by Hospice East Bay as of the Closing net of
any gains or losses on invested assets, including, without limitation (i) that certain rcal property located
at 3470 Buskirk Avenue, Pleasant Hill, California 94523 and {ii) the Bruns House inpatient hospice
facility located at 2849 Miranda Avenue, Alamo, California 94507, will, unless otherwise decided by
vote of the Hospice East Bay board (excluding board members who are also Chapters officers or
cmployvees), be irrevocably dedicated to use in Hospice Bast Bay’s service area.

Hospice East Bay and Chapters have also agreed that for at least five (5) vears atter the Closing,
Chapters shall not take any action 1o restrict. prohibit or limit Hospice East Bay’s ability to maintain
existing “speeialty” programs that include the Bruns House, Veterans Program, Bridge Program {grief
scrvices for children and teens) and Music Therapy as long as any operating losses from those programs
can be funded through 4 combination of Tlospice East Bay's fundraising efforts and non-reserved
investments.



11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 299.5¢d

A list of the primary languages spoken at the health facility or facility thai

rovides similar health eare and the threshold Janguages for Medi-Cal

beneficiaries, as determined by the State Departmeni of Health Carc Services for
the county where the health facility is located

The threshold languages for Contra Costa County are: English, Chinese and Spanish.
English is the primary language spoken at the facility, with Language Line Solutions (formerly
ATET lLanguage Line) available lor audio or video interpretation for over 290 languages.



Title 11, California Code ol Regulations, § 999.5(d)(6)

POSSIBLE EFFECT ON COMPETITION




11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(d}(6}{A)

For any agreement or transaction for which a Premerger Nofification and
Report Form is required to be submitted to the Federal Trade Commission
under the Hart-Scoll-Rodino Antitrust Improvemenis Act of 1976, a brief
analysis of the possible effect of any proposed merger or acquisition of each
health care facility or facility that provides similar health care that is the subject
of the agreement or transaction on competition and market share in any relevani
product or geographic market.

NiA



11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(0){(6WB

The applicant shall provide the Premerger Notification and Report Form and
any attachments thereto as filed with the Federal Trade Commission pursuant to
the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and 16 C.E.R.
Parts 801-803. The procedure for designating information as confidential set
forth in section 999.5(c)(3) of these regulations shall a F to_any informailion

submitted under this subsection,

N/A



Title 11, California Code of Regulations, § 999.53(d)(7)

OTHER PUBLIC INTEREST FACTORS




11 Cal. Code Reg, Section 999.5(d)7)

The written notice of any proposed agreement or transaction set forth in
section 999.5(a)(1) of thesc regulations shall include a section entitled "Other Public

Interest Factors' that contains any other information the applicant believes the Attorney
General should consider in deciding whether the proposed_agreement or transaction is in
the public interest

None beyond the inlormation that is already contained in this potice



11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(d)(8)

" The written notice of any proposed agreement or transaction set forth in
section 999.5{a)(1} shall include a resolution of the board of directors of the applicant
authorizing the filing of the written notice and a statement by the chair of the board
that the contents of the written notiee are true, accurate and complete.

Attached to this Section are the lollowing:
. A copy of the Board Chair Attestation by Hospice Fast Bay

. A copy ol'the Board Resolution
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ATTESTATION

November |3, 2024

This attestation (this “Attestation™) is made consistent with California Code of Regulations
tit. 11§ 999.5(d){8) and relatcs to the proposed affiliation between Chapters Health
System, In¢., a Florida not for profit corporation (“Chapters™) and East Bay Tntegrated Care, Inc,
d/b/a Hospice Tast Bay. a California nonpro(it public benefit corporation {“Haospice East Bay™).
As required under California Corporations Code § 5914, IHospice East Bay is providing written
notice to the California Attomey General regarding the proposed affiliation with Chapters (the
“Written Notice™),

The undersigned. being the Chair of the Board of Directors ol Hospice East Bay, hereby
attests that the contents of the Written Notice are true, accurate and complete.

* %

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has cxceuted this Attestation on the date first
written above,

EAST BAY INTEGRATED CARE, INC. D/B/A
HOSPICE EAST BAY

" Signcd by.

By ]
Namie: MichelTE Topes
[ts: Chair of the Board of Directors

ronassy « Chapters Hospice Lust Buy — Attestation Re: Written Notice to Attarney General



RESOLLTION MO 2024-8-24

RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OOF
EAST BAV INTEGRATED CARE, INC. D/B/A HOSPICE FAST BAY
REGARDING THE AFFILTATION WITH CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.

WHEREAS. it is proposed that East Bay Integrated Care. Ine. dib/a LHospice Fast Bay,
Calitornia nonprofit public benetit corporation (1he “Corporation’™) aftitiate with Chaplers Heahh
System, Inc., o Florida not for profit corporation (“Chupters™), pursuant to the terms o un
Aftiliation Agreement (the “Affifiation Agreement™) that is suminarized in Exhibit A and thal i3
in substantially the torm presented to the Roard and attached to these Resolutions as Exhibit I3:

WHEREAS, in order (o ¢llecr the transactions contemnplated by the Afliliation Agreement
{eollectively, the *Affiliation ™). il is proposed that the Corporation should adopt the AAmended and
Restated Bylaws in substantially the form presented 1o the Board and attached Lo these Resolutions
as Exhibit C (the *Amended and Restated Bylaws™), which would become cftective only it the
Aftiliation is successfully completed and the closing conditions contained in the Alfiliation
Agreemenl are ali salislied or waived in aceordance with the Affiliation Agreement’s terms;

WHEREAS, as a resuft of the Affitiation Chapters will become the sole member of the
Corporation and the Corporation will become a subsidiary of Chapters:

WHERFEAS, the Corporation and Chapters desire to enter inte the AfTiliation Agreement
and consummate the Affiliation to accomplish a number of mutual goals, including the
preservation of the Corporation’s legacy and the perpetuation of the nonprofit hospice model of
comprehensive. community-based hospice care:

WHEREAS. the Board recognizes that the consummation ol the Affiliation will require
natice to, or the consent or approval ol various government agencics and privale parties, inciuding
without limitation the Attorney General of the State of Calitornia (with respeet o the change of
control of the Corporation’s (npaticnt hospice facility as contemplated by the Affiliation) and the
California Department of Public Health {with respect to the licensing of the Corporation’s facilities
and operations) (collectively, the "Reqguired Consents™);

WHEREAR, the Board has had an opportunity to review the Affiliation Agreement and
the Amended and Restated Bylaws: and

WHEREAS, the Board believes the Aftiliation is in the best interest ol the Corporation,
in turtherance ot its nonprofit and charitable purposes and for the benefit ot the communities
served by the Corporation. and desires w approve the Atfiliation, the Affiliaton Agreement, the
Amended and Restated Bylaws, and the documents and transactions they contemplate.

T3IR260% 2 Hespice Euast Buy Resolwions Re Chuprers Affifiation - ]



NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF BIRECTCRS OF TiE CORPORATION

RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS;

T

e

SR
w2l 2

It is in the best interest of the Corporatian, in furtherance of its nonprofic corporate and
charitable purposes and for the henetit of the communities served by the Corporation. to
entar into the Affiliation Agreement with Chapters, upon the walerial lerms and conditions
set torth in the Afliliation Agreement in substantially the form presented to this Board:

The Affiliation and the form, material terms. and provisions of the Affiliation Agrecment
in substantially the form presented o this Board are hereby adopted. approved and ratified
in all respects;

The Amended and Restated Bylaws in substantially the form presented to this Board are
hereby adapted, approved and ratified in all respects. to go into coffect anly upon the
successtul completion of the Affiliation and the satisfaction or waiver {in accordance with
the Aftiliation Agreement’s terms) of all reyuired closing conditions contained in the
Affiltation Agreement.

The Corporation’s ofticers are authorized and divected to negotiate, finalize. execute and
deliver the Affiliation Agreement and the Amended and Restated Bylaws in substantially
the form presented to this Roard. and to approve on behalt of the Corporation any
maodifications or amendments to the form of the Alfiliation Agreement or the Amended
and Restated Bylaws presented to this Board that do not alter the material terms of the
Afhilation Agreement or the Amended and Restated Bylaws: and

The Corporation’s officers are authorized and directed to seck all Reguired Consents, and
to provide all necessary notices and make all aecessary applications in connection with the
Afftliation.

OMNIBUS RESOLLTIONS

All officers. agents. attorneys and emplovess of the Corporation are authorized and
directed to do and perform, or cause 10 be done and performed. all such acts, deeds. and
things. and 1o make, execuie, and deliver, or cause 10 be made, executed. and delivered, all
such agreements. uadertakings, documents, insiruments, or certificates in the name of the
Corporation and to retain such counsel, agents, and advisors and 1o incur and payv such
expenses. fees, and laxes as shall, in the opinion of the Corporalion’s Interim President &
CLO, be deemed necessary or advisable {such necessity or advisability to be conclusively
cvidenced by the execution of such actians) to effectuate or carry out fully the purpose and
interest of all of the foregoing resolutions, including without limitation the Affiliation
Agreement. the Amended and Reswled Bylaws, the Affiliation and all of the actions
contcmplated thereby. which at ar after the ¢losing of the Affiliation Agreement may
include the tiling of an Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation
reflecting that Chaplers is the sole member of the Corporation; and

All aclions leken prior to these Resolutions by the dircctors. ofTicers. agents, attormeys and
emplovees of the Corporation in connection with the Affiliation Agreement, the Amended

Flispice Fast Bay Resofutivns Re: Chapters Affifiution - 2



and Restated Bylaws, or the Affiliation are hereby adopred, affirmed, approved, and
ratified in alf respects as the acts and deeds of the Cerporation,

JEad of Text: Certificaie of the Secretary Follows.|
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Certificate of the Secretary

The undersigned. Susan Burroughs, Secretary of the Board of Directors of Fast Bay Integrated
Care. Inc. d'bda Hospice Last Bay does hereby certify that the foregoing Reselution No. 2024-8-
26 ways passed, approved. and adopted by the Board of Directors of Fast Bay Integrated Care,
Inc. d/b/a Hospice Last Bay at a duly called and noticed meeting held on August 26. 2024, ai
which 2 quorum was present and voting.

iy |
Date: __ "1y

002 Hnspive fast Bay Resolutions Re. Clapters Affiliation Certificare of the Secretary



Exhibit &
Summary of Affiliation Agrecment and Amended & Restated Bylaws

See attached.

sxaes 2 Hospice Fast Buy Resolutions Re. Chaprers Affilfacion -- Swwmary of Affiliaiion Agreement and
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Exhibit B
Form of Atfifiation Agreement

See aitached.

E.

Mulansz Hospioe East Bay Resolutions Re: Chapters Aifiliation - Forar of Affiliation dgreemenr
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Exhibit €
Yorm of Amended and Restared Bylaws

See altached.

FAR2AIG D Hospice East Bay Resulutions Re: Chapters Affiliation - Form of Brlawy



Title 11, California Code of Regulations, § 999.5(d)(%)

TRANSFEREE INFORMATION




11 Cal. Code Res. Section 999.5(d}9)

The written notice of any proposed agrecment or transaction set forth in
section 999.5(a)(1) shall include a list of the officers and directors of the transferee, the
mnst recent audited financial statements for the transferee, the transferee’s sovernance

documents. such as the articles of inecorporation and hylaws, and a description of the
transfleree's policies, procedures, and eligibility requirements for the provision of
charity care

Attached to this Section are the following:

. A copy ol the Chapters Health System, Inc. Policy and Procedurc Manual for
Financial Assistance (Charity Care, Fxpanded Charity Care, & Uninsured
Discount} dated August 27, 2024

. A copy ot the list of Directors and Officers of Chapters

. A copy of the Chapters Health System, Inc. Conselidated Financial Statements
tor December 31, 2023 and 2022

. A copy of the Chaplers Flealth System, Inc. Second Articies of Amendment to
Third Restated Articles of Tncorporation

. A copy ol the Chapters Hecalth System, Inc. Third Restated Articles ol
Incorporation

. A copy of the Chapters Health System, Inc. Tweltth Amended Bylaws
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